G

qlenmank

ew way for

I-Iarnessmg

Potential
ving up the

Value Chain

;m

Integrated Annual Report
2022-23



02

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Contents

180

STATUTORY REPORTS

265

STATEMENTS

Scan the QR to know
more about us

=

Reference to
further reading
online

You can also find
this report online:

https:/glenmarkpharma.
com/investors/reports-

presentations/

02
04
06
(01:]
09
10
16
18
20
24
34
36
40
46
52
56
60
64
66
72
74
76
84
92
102
122
138
156
175
176

180
191
2N
234

265
276
277
278
280
282
335
344
345
346
348
350

403

About this Report
Led by Research and Scientific Expertise

An Exciting and Rewarding Journey

Our Performance Scorecard

Harnessing Novel Drugs Pipeline for Unmet Medical Needs
Message from the Chairman and Managing Director
Board of Directors

Geographical Footprint

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited

Respiratory

Dermatology

Oncology

Diabetes and Other Therapies
Glenmark Life Sciences Limited
Ichnos Sciences

Stakeholder Engagement
Materiality Assessment

ESG at Glenmark

Forward Looking Strategy

Our Value Creation Model
Governance Framework

Risk Management

Financial Capital

Manufactured Capital

Social & Relationship Capital
Intellectual Capital

Human Capital

Natural Capital

Corporate Information

Independent Non-Financial Assurance Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Board’s Report

Report on Corporate Governance

Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR)

Standalone Independent Auditor’s Report
Standalone Balance Sheet

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Consolidated Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GRI Index



At Glenmark, we are driven by a continuous
commitment to create ‘A new way for a

new world’. Harnessing the potential of our
core strengths of innovation, research and
development, and scientific knowledge, we
remain determined to consistently challenge
established treatment paradigms. It allows us
to identify and deliver promising solutions that
make a considerable difference to the lives of
patients in diverse geographies.

For four and a half decades, we have engaged a talent
pool comprising biopharmaceutical experts, scientists
and R&D professionals who support our constant quest
for unlocking greater value for patients. With significant
strides in the fields of dermatology, respiratory and
oncology, we have established successful franchises with
end-to-end capabilities for fulfilling the unmet needs in
patient care.

Our persistent efforts to harness the power of innovation
has enabled us to move up the value chain, from a
generic Company to an integrated global pharmaceutical
Company with a diverse portfolio of advanced drugs.
Supported by state-of-the-art manufacturing and R&D
facilities, our complex drug development methodology
ensures precision and compliance with stringent
regulatory standards. It is these qualities that continue to
increase the demand for our product portfolio in different
parts of the world.

Above all, our actions are guided by a strong
determination to uphold our environmental, social and
ethical responsibility. It keeps us on track to accelerate
profitability while paving the path for sustainable
value creation for a wide spectrum of stakeholders.

As we move up the value chain, our relentless pursuit
of excellence enables us to harness the potential of
scientific achievements and create a differentiated
position for Glenmark.



About this Report

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

ABOUT

this Report

We measure our success not only through financial, and research
achievements but also by the lives we touch, the stories we
reinvigorate, and the futures we restore. The story of every one of our
patients becomes part of our narrative and makes us the Company

we are today.

Our Strategy: Moving up the value
chain by developing more complex
and specialty medicines.

Through our patient-centric lens, we are constantly
innovating as a Company, monitoring our operations,
our strategies, and our research priorities to identify
ways in which we can do better, be more agile and
stronger as a Company. Innovation continues to
remain at the heart of our strategy.

With our global presence, the robust research
infrastructure that we have established over the years,
and the deep engagements we have developed with
the health care community, we believe the long-term
needs of our patients can be best served by finding
solutions to their evolving needs. Our strategic focus
of moving up the value chain - from generics and
simple dosage forms to more complex and branded
medicines - enables us to unlock the maximum
potential of our resources and better align them.

Moving up the value chain involves
the following investments of the
Company’s various capitals.

@ Investments of financial capital into R&D, building
our intellectual capital reserves by filing for patents
and developing innovative products.

@ Developing human capital across research, sales
teams as well as various support functions.

@ Investing into manufacturing capital in building and
maintaining state-of-art manufacturing facilities
with specialized skill sets at each plant.

@ Building internal capacity to engage with key
stakeholders such as regulators for approvals and
licensing.

@ Developing our social and relationship capital
through synergies with the healthcare communities,
regulators, and investors.

@ Building out our value chain by identifying specific
partners that can support the manufacturing
and delivery of specialty medicines, greater
collaboration with hospitals and research centers.
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About this Report

Integrated Reporting

In this report, we aim to elucidate Glenmark’s strategic
priorities and goals through the lens of the six
capitals. We also reflect on the past year and evaluate
the Company’s performance and impact across
economic, social, and environmental dimensions. By
integrating financial and non-financial information, we
offer a holistic perspective on how we create value,
both for our stakeholders and society at large.

@ Reporting Period: Financial Year beginning in April
2022 and ending in March 2023 (FY 2022-23/FY
2023/FY23).

@ Reporting Boundary: Unless otherwise stated
by way of notes in the report, this report is
prepared for Glenmark Pharmaceuticals (Glenmark
/ GPL) including all its Indian (Glenmark Life
Sciences/GLS) and overseas (such as Glenmark
Specialty S.A./GSSA; Ichnos Sciences Inc./Ichnos)
subsidiaries, at the Group level.

@ Reporting Standards and Frameworks: The content
of our Integrated Report is in reference to the
Integrated Reporting Framework and the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards 2021. We
have also drawn reference to and United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs) and
referred to the National Guidelines for Responsible
Business Conduct (NGRBC).

This report’s financial and statutory information
complies with the Companies Act, 2013, Indian
Accounting Standards, Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable
regulations.

External Assurance

Our statutory auditor, Suresh Surana & Associates LLP,
has provided assurance on our financial statements,
which can be found on page 265 and 335 of this
report. DNV Business Assurance India Private

Limited has independently assured the non-financial
information. The statement of assurance for
non-financial information can be found on page 176

of this report.

Feedback

We encourage our stakeholders to share their
feedback on this report as it would help strengthen
our future reporting efforts. Please contact
complianceofficer@glenmarkpharma.com for further
information.

Responsibility Statement

The Board collectively acknowledges the content of
this integrated report and believes that this report is a
fair representation of the holistic financial, operational
and sustainability performance of Glenmark for the
reporting year FY 2023.

Forward-looking Statements

Forward-looking statements might be included in
some parts of this report. ‘believes’, ‘expects’, ‘may’,
‘will’, ‘could’, ‘should’, ‘intends’, ‘estimates’, ‘plans’,
‘assumes’, and ‘anticipates’, as well as negative
versions, can be used to identify these. These forward-
looking statements are subject to certain risks and
opportunities that are either beyond the Company’s
control or dependent on the Company’s current
opinions and assumptions about future events. There
is a chance that the Company’s performance will
differ from the predicted results and performance
suggested in this report. Given the Company’s diverse
set of risks and possibilities, no guarantee can be
given that future results will be attained, since actual
outcomes for the Company and its subsidiaries may
differ substantially.
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Led by research and scientific expertise Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

LED BY RESEARCH

and scientific expertise

Carrying forward a rich legacy of
scientific innovation for over four
decades, Glenmark aspires to be
a leading, integrated, research-led
global pharmaceutical Company.
With consistent improvements in
our Branded Generics, Generics,
Specialty and OTC business,

we are expanding our offerings
across dermatology, respiratory
and oncology medications to
successfully move up the pharma
value chain.

Harnessing the potential of our research expertise,
we are engaging in robust clinical trials and pushing
the boundaries of innovation. It has not only
strengthened our presence in different countries
around the world, but has also empowered us

to address unmet medical needs and bridge the
gaps in existing markets. With 14" world-class
manufacturing facilities, 4 R&D centres, a vast
geographical presence in over 80 countries,

and a dedicated team of scientists, researchers,
and medical experts, we aspire for scientific
excellence, consistently adding a new dimension to
pharmaceutical innovation and development.

N Y TR

At Glenmark, we are dedicated to delivering
affordable, accessible, and high-quality health
care solutions by adhering to our Environment,
Social and Governance (ESG) commitments at
every stage of our business, in line with the UN
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) - thereby
empowering individuals and communities to lead
healthier and happier lives.

Vision
To emerge as a leading, integrated,

research-led global pharmaceutical
Company.

Includes Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd., Glenmark Life Sciences Ltd. and Ichnos Sciences Inc.
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Led by research and scientific expertise

GLENMARK AT A GLANCE

?_1,29,901 million

Revenue from operations

5.6%
YoY increase

22,784 million

EBITDA

17.5%
margin

1300+

patents granted till date

Achievement

We value the achievement of
objectives and consistently
strive towards our vision with
perseverance.

Respect

We respect all our
stakeholders.

Knowledge

We place an importance
on knowledge such that it
empowers our people to
find innovative solutions
to manage change.

£,774* million

PAT

U_S$ 250 million+

worth out-licensing deals
signed till date

1400+

inventions till date

*Lower due to one time exceptional item
Note: Data as of 31st March 2023
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An exciting and rewarding journey

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

AN EXCITING

and rewarding journey

Scaling the Value Chain

e

-

06

1977

Mr. Gracias Saldanha
(Founder Emeritus)
lays the foundation
stone of Glenmark.

1980

Commences
operations

in Russia and
CIs.

1999

Sets up its first
Research and
Development (R&D)
center at Sinnar.

2000

Goes public;
commands a market
capitalization of US$
40 million on the Indian
bourses, BSE and NSE.

2005

1979

Makes its foray into the

Dermatology therapy area
with the launch of ‘Candid
Cream’; a top selling brand

even today.

1983

Commissions
its first
manufacturing
unit in Nashik.

2001

Commences
production of APIs

at the Kurkumbh API
manufacturing facility
in Maharashtra.

Launches front-end commercial sales along
with its first generic product in the U.S.

Sets up its first manufacturing facility built

1987

Company Level Milestones

Enters the Respiratory
segment with the launch of
Ascoril®, a cough expectorant,
which has emerged as one of
its most successful brands.

2002

Acquires API
manufacturing
plants at Ankleshwar,
Guijarat.

2006

Makes debut in the
Oncology segment
with the launch of
Aprecap (aprepitant

2003

Establishes

North American
subsidiary, Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

2007

2004

Enters the European
market by incorporating
its subsidiary, Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals Europe
Limited.

to U.S. FDA specifications in Goa, India.

2014

Commissions new
manufacturing facility for
injectables and oral solids in
Monroe, North Carolina, U.S.

2018

Advances respiratory portfolio: The U.S. FDA
approves RYALTRIS®, formerly known as GSP 301 nasal
spray, Glenmark’s top respiratory pipeline candidate

capsules) in India.

2015

Grows respiratory portfolio: enters into an
agreement with Celon, Poland for generic
Seretide Accuhaler in Europe and receives
approval for its generic version in Russia.

2019
Spins out its API|

Sciences (GLS)

for review as a therapy for seasonal allergic rhinitis.

2020

Launches FabiFlu®
(favipiravir) for mild to
moderate COVID-19;
exported to 24
countries by June 2021.

2023

Becomes the second

Indian pharmaceutical
Company to have its Green
House Gas (GHG) emission
reduction targets approved
by the Science Based
Target initiative (SBTi).

2021

GLS gets listed on the
Indian bourses, BSE
and NSE.

2022

Enters the Central Eastern
Europe market with the
acquisition of Medicamenta,
a Czech-based
pharmaceutical Company.

2016

Launches differentiated
generics: introduces
Ezetimibe, generic version
of Zetia in the U.S.

arm, Glenmark Life

U.S. FDA grants approval for RYALTRIS®, the Company’s
first global branded specialty drug for the treatment
of symptoms of seasonal allergic rhinitis in adults and

paediatric patients 12 years of age and older. Marketed

Gets qualified for the SRR

production linked
incentive (PLI) scheme
for the pharmaceutical
sector, an initiative by
the Government of
India.

Portfolio

in the U.S. and Bausch Health in Canada.

Continues to expand its Over-The-Counter (OTC)

in the U.S. with the acquisition of approved

ANDAs from Wockhardt Limited.

Becomes the first Indian pharmaceutical Company

to raise a Sustainability-Linked Loan (SLL).



Annual Report 2023

An exciting and rewarding journey

° Our Innovation Journey

2000

Second R&D center

set up at Mahape,

Navi Mumbai to drive
innovation in Novel
Chemical Entities (NCE).

2006

Out-licenses its third
molecule, Melogliptin, to
Merck KGaA for US$ 31
million (total payment).

2010

Out-licenses GRC 15300,
its first-in-class TRPV3
antagonist, to Sanofi-
Aventis for US$ 25 million
(upfront payment).

2016

Adds GBR 1302,

GBR 1342 and GBR
1372 from the BEAT®
platform to expand the
Oncology portfolio.

2021

Ichnos out-licenses its
IL-IRAP antagonist,
ISB 880, to Almirall
SA for the for an
upfront payment of
EUR 20.8 million.

2004

Signs its first out-licensing
agreement for GRC 3886
with Forest Laboratories
for US$ 35 million (upfront
and milestone payments).

2007

Out-licenses first
portfolio, TRPV1
antagonist molecules, to
Eli Lilly for US$ 45 million.

20M

Out-licenses its first New
Biological Entity (NBE),
GBR 500, to Sanofi-Aventis
for US$ 55 million (upfront
and milestone payments).

2018

Signs an exclusive licensing
agreement with Harbour
Biomed in Greater China to
develop, manufacture and
commercialize GBR 1302.

2021

Ichnos makes an oral
presentation at the
63rd American Society
of Hematology (ASH)
Annual Meeting for
ISB 1442, as the First-
in-Class CD38 x CD47
2+1 Biparatopic BEAT®
bispecific antibody

for the treatment of
relapsed/refractory
Multiple Myeloma. ASH
is the world’s premier
event in malignant
and non-malignant
hematology.

2005

Strikes its second
out-licensing deal for
Oglemilast with Teijin
Pharma, Japan for US$ 6
million (upfront payment).

2009

Commisions third
R&D center in Taloja,
Maharashtra, India.

2012

Out-licenses

2006

Establishes its first R&D
Centre for New Biological
Entities (NBE) research in
Switzerland.

2014

Establishes new antibody

mPEGS-1 Inhibitor to manufacturing facility to

Forest Laboratories
for US$ 15 million
(upfront payment).

2019

Spins out an
innovation subsidiary
focusing on immuno-
oncology, Ichnos
Sciences Inc. (Ichnos).

2022

Subsidiary, Glenmark
Specialty S.A. (GSSA),
receives approval from
the Indian drug regulator,
Drug Controller General
of India, to conduct

a Phase 1 clinical

trial of GRC 54276, a
hematopoietic progenitor
kinase 1 (HPK1) inhibitor.

provide clinical GMP-grade
biologics for clinical trials in La
Chaux-de-Fonds, Switzerland.

2023

GSSA receives
acceptance from

U.S. FDA on its IND
application for GRC
54276 to proceed with
a Phase 1/2, first-in-
human clinical study
of the molecule for the
treatment of patients
with advanced solid
tumors and lymphomas.

Partnered asset of
Ichnos in immunology,
ISB 880, progresses to
Phase 1 studies initiated
by our partner Almirall.

Ichnos receives ‘orphan
drug designation’ (ODD)
from the U.S. FDA for
ISB 1442, a first-in-class
biparatopic 2+1 BEAT®
bispecific antibody
targeting CD38 and
CDA47, for the treatment
of relapsed/refractory
multiple myeloma.

Ichnos makes an oral
presentation at the 64th ASH
Annual Meeting for ISB 2001,
its first TREAT™ trispecific
(BCMAXCD38xCD3)
antibody.
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Our performance scorecard Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

OUR PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

5 year financial overview

(In ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS (IND AS) 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 1,33,068.96 1,24,715.77 1,09,941.45 1,08,005.71 1,00,736.05
Earning before Depreciation.Finance 22,783.70 23,202.98 20,843.82 18,576.84 17,939.37
Cost and Tax expenses (EBDITA)

Depreciation and Amortisation 6,112.68 4,867.15 4,435.54 4171.66 3,259.05
Profit for the year 3,774.00* 9,936.49 9,700.88 7,759.70 9,249.93
Equity Dividend 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.00
Equity Share Capital 28217 28217 28217 28217 28217
Reserves and Surplus 94,457.06 90,584.30 70,364.10 60,422.88 55,769.67
Net Worth 98,392.58 94,381.20 70,642.73 60,70113 56,048.07
Net Debt 29,046.94 22,598.22 35,493.33 37,583.59 35,123.90
Gross PPE & Intangible Assets 1,19,115.33 1,06,749.1 96,284.71 90,618.37 78,714.71
Net PPE & Intangible Assets 71,431.91 65,880.33 61,873.32 59,020.87 50,144.57
Key Indicators

Basic Earnings Per Share (INR) 10.53* 33.37 34.38 27.50 32.78
Return on Capital employed (EBIT"/ 14.05% 16.80% 17.27% 1517% 16.14%
Capital Employed **)

Return on Equity™” 11.86%* 12.04% 14.77% 13.29% 17.18%

EBIDTA = PBT + Depreciation + Finance Cost - Other Income

Net Worth = Equity + Reserves + Non-controlling interests

*FY 2023 profit and EPS lower due to one-time exceptional item.

~“EBIT = Profit before exceptional items & tax + Finance Cost - Other Income

** Capital Employed = Equity Share Capital + Other Equity - Intangible Assets + Current & Non-Current Borrowing + Deferred Tax liability
““Return on Equity = Net Profit / Average Equity
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HARNESSING NOVEL DRUGS

pipeline for unmet medical needs

With a constant focus on introducing novel drugs, we continue to
harness the potential of innovation to move up the value chain. We
are conducting clinical trials for various drug molecules that will be
beneficial for the treatment of oncology and immunology. It allows
us to build a solid pipeline of drugs that are more effective and at
the same time, in tune with changes in treatment paradigms.

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals .
Molecule ‘ Therapy ‘ Description/Target ‘ Phase
GRC 54276 Oncology HPK1 Inhibitor for Solid Tumors D
GRC 39815 ‘ Respiratory ‘ RORyt Inverse Against for COPD ‘ N
Ichnos Sciences .
Molecule Therapy Description/Target ‘ Phase

CD38 x CD3 BEAT®
1SB 1342 Oncology bispecific antibody \

CD38 x CD47 BEAT®
s Oncology bispecific antibody \

BCMA x CD38 x CD3 TREAT™
Iz elen LIieeleey trispecific antibody \

. OX40 antagonist monoclonal

et AL antibody for Atopic dermatitis J

IL-TRAP antagonist
'ASLBM8287244 Auto-immune monoclonal antibody for )

Autoimmune diseases

Phase 1 . . Phase 2 J ) Phase 3 “ 0
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Message from the Chairman and Managing Director Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

MESSAGE FROM

the Chairman and Managing Director

Our quest, to be

among the few Indian
pharmaceutical companies
to develop an innovative
drug for the world, has
driven us to tread two
parallel paths. One pursues
the discovery of a novel
chemical or biological
entity. The second has

led us to scale the value
chain by creating specialty

Dear Shareholders,

Reflecting upon FY 2023, it

is important to recognize the
various challenges stemming from
macroeconomic headwinds in our
operating environment. Despite
the hurdles, | am delighted to
share that we have delivered

a praiseworthy performance

yet again. It is through passion
backed by perseverance that has
enabled our teams to prevail.

Inflation which reached multi-
decadal highs caused a decline in
real incomes and a global cost-of-
living crisis. This also prompted

10

several developed and developing
economies to implement
aggressive monetary tightening
policies. The Federal Reserve

in the United States resorted

to interest rate hikes, which

had global ramifications. These
consequences resulted in capital
outflows and currency devaluation
in emerging countries, causing
balance-of-payment challenges
and heightening risks related to
debt sustainability.

The impact of the pandemic
and the geopolitical scenario

products, like RYALTRIS®,
that address gaps in

treatment. ‘
L

Glenn Saldanha

Chairman and Managing
Director, Glenmark

in Europe continued to exert
pressure on economies and
businesses worldwide. Escalating
raw material prices and logistics
costs further compounded the
operational complexities faced
by businesses. While there was

a macroeconomic slowdown in
Europe and the U.S. owing to the
war, we emerged stronger in both
these markets. Our India business
recorded double-digit growth in
secondary sales, while the Rest
of the World (RoW) markets
performed phenomenally well.
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Message from the Chairman and Managing Director

Building on our rich legacy
spanning four-and-a-half
decades, we now stand at an
inflection point in our journey as
a leading, integrated, research-
based, global pharmaceutical
Company. Over the years, we
have consistently engaged in
groundbreaking research and
developed specialty products
that address unmet patient
needs.

Business and operational
performance

Our performance in the last
fiscal year reflects a resilient
growth trajectory. In FY 2023,
our consolidated revenue from
operations stood at ¥1,29,901
million; up from £1,23,049
million, recording an overall
growth of 5.6% over the previous
year. We reported EBITDA of %
22,784 million during the fiscal
year, with margins of 17.5%. Our
performance, yet again, stood out
as a resolute testament to our
unwavering determination to not
just deliver but also flourish.

We continued to expand our
branded formulations business,
with it contributing 55% to

our revenues in FY 2023. We

now have the cardiac franchise
contributing more than US$ 100
million, and our brands Ascoril®
and Candid having more than US$
50 million in revenues. We expect
our first global branded specialty
product, RYALTRIS®, to soon enter
the US$ 50 million club.

During the reporting year, our
India business continued to
significantly outperform industry
growth rates - we were ranked
14th in India with a market share
of 212%. Glenmark’s products
continued to feature among the
Top 300 Brands in the Indian
Pharmaceutical Market;

with nine brands making it to the
marquee in FY 2023.

Glenmark gained market share
across segments with 35 launches
in the last fiscal; these also included
eight first-to-market launches.

Five of these launches were in the
Diabetes therapy areas, and one
each in Dermatology, Respiratory
and Oncology. Some of the notable
introductions were Indamet
(Indacaterol Mometazone) for the
treatment of Asthma; MINYM®,
topical Minocycline 4% Gel for the
treatment of moderate to severe
acne; and AKYNZEQO® IV, for the
prevention of chemotherapy-
induced nausea and vomiting,
under an exclusive licensing
agreement with Helsinn.

17%

|
Growth in Candid Powder™

73%

Growth in La Shield™

13%

|
Growth in Scalpe+™

We launched 35 products in the
India market, including eight first-
to-market launches. These include
five in diabetes, and one each

in dermatology, respiratory and
oncology therapy areas.“
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Message from the Chairman and Managing Director

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

We enhanced our offering for

the treatment of type 2 Diabetes
with SITAZIT® (Sitagliptin), LOBG®
(Lobeglitazone), and the ZITA®
range (Teneligliptin FDCs).

Our consumer care business
clocked a revenue of 32,330
million, marking a year-on-year
growth of 30%. This growth can
be attributed to the expansion
of the product range across the
three flagship brands, namely,
Candid Powder™, La Shield™, and
Scalpe+™.

We performed exceedingly well

in our global operations with
successful product launches across
key markets. In North America, we
filed a total of eight Abbreviated
New Drug Applications (ANDAS)
applications, received approval

for eight ANDASs, and successfully
launched eight new products,
comprising a mix of immediate-
release oral solids and an injectable.
As of March 31, 2023, Glenmark’s
marketing portfolio includes 183
generic products authorized for
distribution in the U.S. market.
During the year, we reached a
settlement agreement with Pfizer
for Axitinib Tablets, Img and 5mg
(generic version of Inlyta®).

In Europe, after reaching the major
milestone of exceeding annual sales
of US$ 200 million in FY 2022,
operations’ revenue sustained its
growth momentum in FY 2023.
Notably, during the year under
review, we entered the Italian
market and are looking forward to
expanding across the country in
the upcoming quarters.

Our RoW business recorded strong
growth across all sub-regions,
driven by key product launches

in Respiratory and Dermatology.

In the Russia-CIS region, our
expansion was driven by key
brands, including RYALTRIS®,
Ascoril® and Montlezir™. In the
Expectorants market in Russia,

12

we continued to maintain our
2nd ranking as revealed by IQVIA
MAT March 2023. In the LATAM
region, we recorded the highest
growth rate amongst the Top 20
companies in the covered market
in Brazil. Our Middle East and
Africa region recorded a strong
double-digit growth in secondary
sales. While the Kenya market was
hit by macroeconomic instability
and currency devaluation in FY
2023, our business remained
resilient. We also ranked 3rd in
the overall Kenya Pharmaceutical
Market. Moreover, we recorded
double-digit growth in base
business despite external
challenges in key countries in the
Asia Pacific region.

Our manufacturing plants received
multiple sustainability and EHS
awards this year:

@ Grow Care Award
(Environment) in Gold
Category - Indore

@ Platinum Apex India Green
Leaf Award - Nalagarh

@ National Level Occupation
Health & Safety Award - Goa

@® Gold Award at the Grow Care
India Fire Safety Awards -
Taloja R&D center.

FY 2023 was also a robust year for
our manufacturing units in India

- we witnessed strong growth in
production volumes across our
Goa, Baddi, Indore, Aurangabad,
Nashik, Nalagarh, and Sikkim

sites. Our overseas manufacturing
facilities, Pilar and Vysoké Myto,

sustained with their strong support.

Moving up the value chain

Since inception, we have
remained committed to making a
difference in the lives of patients
worldwide. Over the years, we
have progressed from developing
generics to becoming a global
pharmaceutical powerhouse also

focused on new drug discovery.
To sustain our growth trajectory,
we have leveraged our core
capabilities in generics, while
proactively exploring the field of
drug discovery.

We are further diversifying our
portfolio and building global
brands as we move up the value
chain. In 2020, we launched our
first global brand of specialty
medicine, RYALTRIS®, an intranasal
spray with a unique fixed-dose-
combination for the treatment of
seasonal allergic rhinitis (SAR).
During this fiscal, we continued
to make headway in launching
RYALTRIS® across numerous
markets.

In a significant development,
RYALTRIS® was approved by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) for the treatment of

SAR in not just adults, but also
children up to 12 years of age.
Launches in North America were
through commercial partnerships
with Hikma Pharmaceuticals

PLC. (for the U.S.) and Bausch
Health, Canada (for Canada).
This has been a major milestone
and demonstrates our focus on
strengthening our leadership in
the global respiratory segment.
Notably, RYALTRIS® has also been
gaining ground in Australia and
South Korea; ably driven by our
partners, Seqirus Pty. Ltd. and
Yuhan Corporation, respectively.

We launched RYALTRIS® in
12 markets
|

on our own/through a partner.

RYALTRIS® has also been
successfully commercialized in

27 markets

across the globe thus far.



Annual Report 2023

Message from the Chairman and Managing Director

Innovation pipeline

We firmly believe that an
innovative pipeline serves as a
key lever to drive our progress

up the value chain. To this end,
Glenmark has divided its efforts
for discovering and developing

an innovative molecule. Ichnos
Sciences Inc., Glenmark’s wholly
owned subsidiary, is an innovation
biotech Company focused

on the development of novel
biological molecules as potential
treatment options for oncology.
The Innovative Medicines Group,
on the other hand, is a Division
within Glenmark Pharmaceuticals.
Through this Division, we carry
out the development of innovative
therapies to address critical unmet
medical needs and to improve the
lives of patients and their families
with serious diseases. Our current
specialty pipeline consists of two
molecules in various stages of
clinical development; a molecule
each in the therapy areas of
respiratory and oncology.

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals

Glenmark has been developing
GRC 54276 (HPK1 Inhibitor)

as a novel, orally administered
immunotherapeutic agent for
patients with solid tumors.

In pre-clinical studies, when
administered alone, GRC 54276
has demonstrated substantial anti-
tumor effects, which are further
enhanced when combined with
already available immunotherapy.
The U.S. FDA approved our

IND application for GRC 54276
to proceed with a Phase 1/2,
first-in-human clinical study of
the molecule for the treatment
of patients with advanced

solid tumors and lymphomas.
This marks a major step as we
continue to expand our oncology
pipeline. We are excited about
the prospects of this new class of

We initiated the
Phase 1 studies

for four of our
clinical oncology
assets (including
those developed in
Ichnos); inflection
points (POC) for all
four molecules are
expected in FY 2024.

immuno-oncology medicines for
patients in need.

Our respiratory pipeline asset, GRC
39815 (a RORyt inhibitor), is being
developed as an inhaled therapy
for treating mild-to-moderate
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary
Disorder (COPD). It is currently in
Phase 1 clinical development in

the U.S.

Ichnos Sciences

Ichnos is developing a
differentiated pipeline with
potential first-in-class and best-
in-class assets. Committed to
raising the bar for biotechnology,
Ichnos has been making
significant contributions to the
fight against cancer. Its pipeline

of bi- and multi-specific antibody
therapeutics for oncology includes:

@ 1ISB1342,a CD38 x CD3
BEAT® bispecific antibody
for oncology. This molecule

is currently in Phase 1, but,

it shows promise in the
treatment of certain cancers
and has also received an
orphan drug designation.

@ 1SB1442,a CD38 x CD47
BEAT® bispecific antibody in
the field of oncology. Like ISB
1342, it is in Phase 1and has
been recognized as an
orphan drug.

@ ISB 2001, a BCMA x CD38
x CD3 TREAT™ trispecific
antibody for oncology. It is in
the Phase 1 and has received
an orphan drug designation.

ISB 830, an OX40 antagonist
monoclonal antibody, is
designed for atopic dermatitis
in the field of autoimmune
diseases. This molecule

has completed Phase 2B,
signifying considerable
progress in its development.

@ ISB 880/ALM27134, an IL-
1RAP antagonist monoclonal
antibody for autoimmune
diseases, was licensed out
to Almiral. It is in Phase 1
of clinical trials and holds
promise for addressing various
autoimmune conditions;
reflecting Glenmark’s
commitment to finding
innovative treatments for
patients in need.

Glenmark Life Sciences

To establish a notable presence
in the highly competitive U.S.
generics market, the Company’s
strategy included securing access
to affordable active pharmaceutical
ingredients (APIs), leading to

its foray into the API business.
Over the years, the API business
acquired external customers and
established itself as one of the
leading API players out of India.
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Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

After this business achieved
significant scale, Glenmark decided to
hive it off into a separate subsidiary
(Glenmark Life Sciences) to unlock its
full potential value. In 2019, Glenmark
Life Sciences (GLS) was launched

as a separate entity with a focus

on developing and manufacturing
high-quality API for pharmaceutical
companies worldwide. Today,
Glenmark Life Sciences independently
drives 70% of its business by catering
to the needs of other pharmaceutical
players.

468

DMFs and CEPs filed by GLS
across major markets

In its second year of being
successfully listed on the stock
exchanges, GLS has recorded a
robust financial performance. Its
revenue from operations, including
captive sales, stood at ¥21,612
million compared to 21,232 million,
recording a growth of over 1.8%; while
its profit after tax stood at

34,670 million compared to 4,187
million, recording a growth of over
11.5%. The growth was driven by
strong momentum in the Generic

14

API business as well as a significant
recovery in demand in the CDMO
business. Glenmark had originally
entered the APl manufacturing
space to ensure an uninterrupted
and captive supply for its U.S.
business. While both, Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals and Glenmark

Life Sciences are part of the same
Group, over the years, they have
been operating independently

with different growth strategies
and objectives. We are currently
engaged in a stake sale that is a
procedural requirement as per the
listing guidelines, which necessitates
Glenmark Pharmaceutical’s
shareholding in GLS to be brought

Through our project
‘Jal Kavach’, we aim to
alleviate water scarcity
and enhance the lives
of the communities

we serve
an

down to 75% no later than August
2024.

Putting our people first

Our people have been the driving
force behind our remarkable
performance. The sheer will and can-
do spirit of our dedicated team have
made these achievements possible.

At Glenmark, we aim to create a
value-driven, innovative and high-trust
organization, while also identifying

and developing high-potential talent.
To this end, we foster a positive work
environment for our talent pool and
prioritize their well-being. The Great
Place to Work™ (GPTW) Institute
certified us as a Great Place to Work in
India for FY 2024. It is a testament to
our values and the culture foster, which
we hope inspires our employees to
bring their best selves, feel empowered
to contribute, and take immense pride
in being a part of Glenmark.

Building a responsible
business

Promoting sustainability in all that
we do is an integral aspect of our
operations. It aligns with our core
values and our commitment to our
planet. Through the year under
review, we diligently worked towards
achieving our goals of becoming
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&9 million

Lives touched through
CSR interventions.

&2"‘ million

Lives enriched through
child health interventions

water neutral by 2025, achieving zero
waste to landfill across all our plants
by 2027, and carbon neutral by 2030.

To achieve water neutrality, we have
initiated the 'Jal Kavach' project in
Maharashtra, India. The project is
being carried out in over 19 villages in
Maharashtra and is aligned with the
UN Sustainable Development Goals.
Accessibility and availability of clean
water are essential for community
well-being and empowerment.
Recognizing this, we aim to alleviate
water scarcity and enhance the lives
of the communities we serve through
this program.

As part of our efforts to become
carbon neutral, we are striving to raise
the proportion of renewable energy
in our energy mix. Our initiatives
extend across multiple operational
areas, including manufacturing and
supply chain management. We are
honored to be the second Indian
pharmaceutical Company to have
our targets certified by the Science
Based Targets initiative (SBTi). We
are working to reduce our absolute
scope Tand 2 GHG emissions by
35% by FY 2035, along with a 28%
reduction in scope 3 GHG emissions
from various activities related to
pharmaceutical products. Focused
on enhancing carbon efficiency in
our operations, we have reduced our
carbon emission intensity by around

10% through our efforts over the last
three years.

Through the Glenmark Foundation,
we have touched millions of lives over
the past decade. Our ‘Impact@45’
CSR employee volunteering
campaign, launched on occasion of
Glenmark’s 45th anniversary, has
gained steady momentum and the
participation it has elicited from
across the world is on the rise. These
achievements have brought us
closer to our objective of positively
impacting the lives of 3 million
people by 2025 through community
development projects.

During the fiscal, we continued to

be recognized for our efforts in CSR.
Our ‘mMitra’ project received ‘The
Best Innovative CSR Project’ award

at the 5th Edition of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Summit. We
were also honored as the ‘Foundation
of the Year’ at the 7th Edition of

the Corporate Social Responsibility
Summit & Awards 2023 for our efforts
on improving mother and child health
in tribal regions of Sikkim and Madhya
Pradesh earned us this recognition.
Moreover, we were recognized

for our all-round sustainability

efforts by Businessworld (#3 in

the pharmaceutical and healthcare
sector) and the Economic Times.

Strategic objectives and
outlook

For the new financial year, we aim
to grow by 10-11% in revenues,
expand our EBITDA margin to
19-20%, and continue to focus on
enhancing free cash generation for
further debt reduction.

As we move up the value

chain, we will identify potential
candidates for building global
scale. Simultaneously, we are
working towards enhancing our
Dermatology, Oncology, and
Respiratory portfolios to establish
a formidable presence in these

core therapy areas through timely
launches. Differentiated products,
will be at the forefront of our

new launches in FY 2024 to gain
a competitive edge. These will
help us expand our presence in
the branded/specialty/complex
segments.

Goa, Baddi, and Monroe will
continue their remediation efforts
at the same momentum, and be
inspection-ready this financial year.
We are mindful of the fact that as
our scale of operations continue

to increase, it becomes even more
imperative to be Quality-Focused
and Compliant.

We persevere in our commitment
to excellence and remain focused
on delivering differentiated
products and services, harnessing
best-in-class technologies and
innovations. However, our journey is
not solely fueled by our aspirations
and is anchored in an unwavering
dedication to upholding our
environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities. We integrate these
principles into every aspect of

our business, creating a virtuous
cycle that benefits not only our
shareholders, but also society

at large.

In conclusion, | would like to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to all our
stakeholders. We look forward to
your support and encouragement as
we strive to enrich lives and make a
difference in the lives of patients all
across the world.

Regards,

S=—

Glenn Saldanha
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Board of Directors

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Glenn Saldanha
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Saldanha joined Glenmark in 1998, and subsequently became the Managing Director & CEO in 2000.
He transformed Glenmark into a truly multinational Company with revenues of over US$ 1.5 billion. Mr.
Saldanha envisions discovering, developing and introducing India’s first innovative drug for the world.
Under his leadership, Glenmark has evolved from an Indian branded generics business into a research-
driven and innovation-led global organization. Glenmark also won for two consecutive years the ‘Indian
Pharma Innovation of the Year’ award, conferred by the Government of India.

Mr. V. S. Mani

Executive Director & Global Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mani leads the organization’s worldwide Finance operations, as well as Legal and Secretarial
functions. He has over thirty years of rich industry experience across treasury, taxation, accounting,
financial planning and analysis, secretarial, legal, risk management, and investor relations. Mr. Mani has
also played a key role in mergers, acquisitions and spinouts of various companies in emerging and
mature markets. Prior to joining Glenmark in 2017, he was the President-Finance at the Bhartiya Group.
He has also held the position of the Chief Financial Officer at Cipla.

Mrs. Cherylann Pinto
Executive Director - Corporate Services

Mrs. Pinto is Director of Corporate Services at Glenmark since October 1999 and is an Executive
Member of the Board. With over three decades of experience in the pharmaceutical field, she currently
heads the Company’s Corporate Services that comprise the Human Resources (HR), Administration,
Insurance, Information Technology (IT), Corporate Communications, and Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) functions. Prior to Glenmark, she was an entrepreneur, establishing a pharmaceutical Company
where she served as Managing Director for ten years.

Dr. Brian W. Tempest

Non-Executive Independent Director

Dr. Tempest is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He has
been working in the pharmaceutical industry for the last five decades, and has managed healthcare
businesses in North America, South America, Europe, Africa, the Middle East, Australia, China, Japan
and India. Dr. Tempest is the editor of the Journal of Generic Medicines. He is non-executive chairman of
Touch Medical Holdings Ltd. and MMC Laboratories Ltd., UK.

Mr. Bernard Munos
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Munos is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He advises
organizations on being better innovators. Mr. Munos is a former member of the Advisory Council of
the National Center for Advancing Translational Sciences (NCATS); and of the National Academy of
Medicine’s Forum on Drug R&D and Translation. He also serves as an Advisor to the journal Science
Translational Medicine. His research on pharmaceutical innovation has been published in Nature and
Science magazines, and profiled by Forbes magazine.

Mr. Rajesh V. Desai

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Desai is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He has 37
years of rich experience, and has been the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of Glenmark
until 2016. Mr. Desai led the Finance, Legal and IT functions at Glenmark, and has contributed
significantly to its growth story.
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Mr. Sridhar Gorthi

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Gorthi is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He is partner
at Trilegal, and is part of the corporate practise Group along with being on the firm’s management
committee. Mr. Gorthi is considered a leading authority on corporate law, M&A and private equity in the
country. In addition to representing several international clients on inbound M&A in India, he has also
advised Indian companies about outbound M&A transactions in jurisdictions, such as the UK, the U.S,,
South Africa, Argentina, Indonesia and Sri Lanka.

Mrs. B. E. Saldanha

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Saldanha is a Non-Executive Director and a member of the promoter Group of Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals Limited. Prior to this, she was the Director for Exports and managed Glenmark’s
international operations from 1982 to 2005. During her 23-year tenure with the organization, she was
responsible for developing and growing the Company’s export business.

Mr. D. R. Mehta
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Mehta is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He has almost
four decades of experience in civil administration and management of public affairs. Mr. Mehta joined
the IAS in 1961 and has held positions in the Government of Rajasthan and the Government of India.

He has served as the Chairman of SEBI, the Deputy Governor of the RBI and the Director General of
Foreign Trade, Ministry of Commerce, Government of India.

Ms. Saira Ramasastry
Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Ramasastry is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. She

has over two decades of experience in the Life Sciences industry, successfully building companies as an
advisor, Board member and operational executive. Ms. Ramasastry is the Founder and Managing Partner
of Life Sciences Advisory, LLC. She serves on the Board of directors of several public biopharmaceutical
companies, on the industry advisory Board of the Michael J.Fox foundation, and formerly as a special
advisor for the G8 health initiatives. Ms. Ramasastry is also a health innovator fellow of the Aspen
Institute and a member of the Aspen Global Leadership Network.

Mrs. Vijayalakshmi lyer

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mrs. lyer is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. She has nearly
four decades of experience in the banking and finance sector in India. She retired as the chairman and
managing director of Bank of India in May 2015 where she played an instrumental role in structuring it

as an umbrella institution offering all kinds of banking and financial services. She also served as member
(finance and investment) at IRDAI from 2015 to 2017 where she played a significant role in the introduction
and amendment of various regulations related to, inter alia, finance and accounts, corporate governance,
mergers and acquisition, registration of new insurance companies and exposure of management.

Mr. Dipankar Bhattacharjee

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Bhattacharjee is a Non-Executive Independent Director at Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited. He
has over three decades of global experience leading healthcare businesses across North America,
Europe, APAC and MEA. Mr. Bhattacharjee was President & CEO - Global Generics Medicines at Teva
Pharmaceutical Industries, and earlier held senior leadership roles at Bausch & Lomb, Bank of America
and Nestlé. He currently advises investors on mergers and acquisitions in the European Generics space.
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Geographical Footprint Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

GEOGRAPHICAL

Footprint
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Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd. is a globally recognized Company,
renowned for its innovation-driven portfolio of branded generics,
generics, specialty, and over-the-counter (OTC) products. Our
dedication to offering specialized and affordable generics enables us to
maintain a focus on key therapeutic areas such as oncology, respiratory
and dermatology, thereby enabling us to capitalize on our true potential
to confidently move up the pharma value chain.

Our product portfolio

(o) & & @

Complex Oral Solids Liquids Topical Respiratory
Injectables Products MDI*/DPI##
and Biologics

Amongst the TOP 3* fastest Amongst the fastest growing
growing companies in Indian companies in IPM from 2019 to 2022 (CAGR of
Pharmaceutical Market (IPM). 12.3% vis-a-vis IPM CAGR of 10.3%).

Top Brands of Glenmark in Top 300 of IPM

TELMA® 383.4
TELMA®-H 265.7
TELMA®-AM 233.0
ASCORIL®-LS 224.9
CANDID® 152.5
CANDID®-B 134.6
ASCORIL®+ 130.3
ALEX® 120.9
ASCORIL® D PLUS 101.2

Note: Data according to IQVIA™ MAT March 2023
* Within top 15 players of IPM
#MDI - Metered-Dose Inhaler, #*DPI - Dry Powder Inhaler
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zd gld 5th 35

| |
In respiratory segment In dermatology In cardiac Products launched
segment segment

14t 15" 12.3%  30%ver

| |
Rank in oncology Rank in oral Recorded growth Growth of OTC business
segment anti-diabetes compared to
segment industry growth
of 9.5%

T"IPSOS MAT December 2022
2Excluding COVID portfolio

NORTH AMERICA

8 8 8 Top3

Products launched ANDA approvals Filings Rank in ~75% of
marketed portfolio

15t 15t 183

| |

Rank* in terms Rank* in terms of Products authorized

of volume (units) total prescriptions for distribution in the
U.S. market

*Among U.S. Generic Pharmaceutical Companies [includes Generics & Branded Generics]; Rx Only

Source: IQVIA™ MAT March 2023
Note: Data as of 31t March 2023
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U_S$225+ million 35 i

I
Revenue in FY 2023 Products launched Additional respiratory
products filed

Entered the

Top 15 Italian  20%+

|
Rank in the generics Market Growth across the
market of Germany region

REST OF THE WORLD (RoW)

(Asia, MEA, LATAM and RCIS regions)

20%+ 21 19 2@

| |
Growth across all Products Rank in In expectorants
sub-regions launched Dermatology in in Russia
Russia
Among Among
18%+ top 20 top 3
| ] |
Market share by highest growth rate in Kenya
RYALTRIS® in in Brazil
Australia”

“Top 10 products within ‘R1A1 - Nasal Corticosteroids without Anti Infectives’
category as per IQVIA™ + RYALTRIS®

Source: IQVIA™ MAT March 2023
Note: Data as of 31¢t March 2023 and excluding COVID portfolio.
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Respiratory

At Glenmark, our primary focus is on developing a comprehensive global
portfolio of respiratory products, including specialized medicines. During

FY 2023, we introduced several new products in different regions around the
world. One of our notable achievements during this period was the growing
acceptance for RYALTRIS®; thereby strengthening Glenmark’'s position as the
formidable player in the respiratory therapy.

During FY 2023, we introduced
Indamet™ DPI, a new fixed-

dose combination (FDC) for
patients in India suffering from
uncontrolled asthma. Indamet -
DPI is available in three different
strengths, combining a fixed dose
of Indacaterol (150 mcg) with
variable doses of Mometasone
(80 mcg, 160 mcg, and 320 mcg).
This novel medicine provides an
affordable treatment for adults

as well as adolescents aged 12
years and above, suffering from
uncontrolled asthma.

% VirX™ Nasal Spray

% INDAMET™ DPI

COPD occurs due to inflammation
and narrowing of the airways

that carry air to and from the
lungs. Airz°FB Capsule, launched
in the Indian market, helps to
relax the muscles around the
airways, thereby facilitating easier
breathing and provides relief from
symptoms of chest tightness,
shortness of breath, wheezing, and
coughing.

During FY 2023, we also launched
a number of nasal sprays, tablets
and inhalation medicines across

AIRZ g8

% Airz°FB

our ROW markets. VirX™ Nasal
Spray; a revolutionary disinfectant
nasal spray that effectively
prevents various respiratory
infections. With every spray into
the nostril, VirXx™ Nasal Spray
releases a small dose of nitric
oxide that blocks viruses, reduces
risk and kills 99.9% of airborne
viruses.

Key highlights

Glenmark
became the 2™
largest player

in Respiratory
Therapy in India.

Asoril®-LS has
become the

No. 1 brand in
Acute Respiratory
Therapy in India.
(Valued at

3225 crore as

per IQVIA™ MAT
March’23)
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Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

We launched Pirfenidone in

the European and U.S. markets.
Belonging to the pyridone class of
medications, it is utilized to treat
idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis.

Ipratropium, launched in the
European market, is a medication
that helps to widen the airways in
the lungs.

We also launched Ascoril®
expectorant in the Caribbean, and
Kazakhstan for the treatment of
cough with mucus.

% Pirfenidone

We launched Beclometasone
inhalers in Brazil for the treatment
of asthma and chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD). It helps
treat inflammation, severe allergies,
flare-ups of ongoing illnesses, and
many other medical problems

that require either reduction of
inflammation or suppression of the
immune system.

The launch of Aerogold® has
helped patients treat and prevent
bronchospasm associated with
asthma, bronchitis, emphysema,
and other lung diseases.

Glemont® tablet was launched

in the RoW market. It provides
relief and control the symptoms
of asthma and allergies. Our newly
launched Ascoril® expectorant in
the ROW markets is used in the
treatment of cough. It thins the
mucus in the nose, windpipe and
lungs, making it easier to cough. It
also has a cooling sensation that
relieves minor throat irritation.

% Ascroil® Expectorant
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RYALTRIS®

An effective solution for allergic rhinitis

Allergic rhinitis, a condition that affects over 400 million individuals globally, is prevalent among 10-30% of
adults and up to 40% of children, making it the fifth most common chronic disease. It not only gives rise to nasal
and ocular symptoms but, also disrupts work, physical activity and sleep patterns. To alleviate this condition,
Glenmark introduced RYALTRIS®, which has proved to be extremely successful in the treatment of allergic rhinitis.

RYALTRIS® is being marketed in different parts of the world. Additionally, Glenmark is focusing on strengthening
partnerships with key collaborators such as Bausch, Hikma, and Menarini to commercialize the product in new
geographies. RYALTRIS® has strengthened Glenmark’s specialty medicine portfolio and we strive to launch it
across more markets in Africa, Asia, Europe and the Middle East by the next fiscal year.

1. Austria

2.  Belgium ¢

3. Botswana

4. Czech Republic

5. Denmark

6. Ecuador

7. Finland

8. France 18. Saudi Arabia

9. Germany 19. South Africa

10. Ireland 20. South Korea
. ltaly 21. Spain

12. Malaysia 22. Sweden 12 markets globally
13. Namibia 23. The Philippines in FY 2023

14. Norway 24, UK

15. Peru 25. Ukraine

16. Poland 26. USA

17.  Russia 27. Uzbekistan
Map is for representational purpose only. 27 COU ntrles

Depiction of boundaries is not authoritative.
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Launched across

i

Australia, Europe, North America and in
several countries in Africa, the Middle East and

Latin America.

Partnerships in key markets

=

United States
Hikma

Pharmaceuticals PLC.

\\\\ 1y

South Korea

Yuhan Corporation.

~

Australia
Seqirus Pty Ltd.
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"

Canada

Bausch Health, Canada

Europe

Menarini Group

China

Grand Pharmaceutical
(China) Co. Ltd.

Ryaltris'2

Innovative and unique
fixed-dose combination nasal
spray for allergic rhinitis

RYALTRIS®, a nasal spray with a fixed-dose
combination of Mometasone Furoate (25 mcg), a
steroid, and Olopatadine Hydrochloride (665 mcg), an
antihistamine, was successfully launched in

FY 2021. This marked a major milestone for us, as

our first branded specialty medicine that was widely
accepted by patients as well as doctors across the
world. The success of RYALTRIS® showcases our
ability to develop and promote unique specialty
pharmaceuticals on a global scale.

Marketing applications
submitted in

70-

markets

Commercialized

1st

specialty product

Received

U.S. FDA

approval in January
2022, for the treatment
of symptoms of
seasonal allergic rhinitis
in adults and pediatric
patients of 12 years of
age and older
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MALAYSIA

In February 2023, we introduced RYALTRIS®
to the Malaysian market. The launch event,
a significant milestone, drew an impressive
attendance from various stakeholders.

Since its launch, both doctors and patients have
spoken highly of Ryaltris® and its benefits. Some
patients have even reported experiencing instant

relief from runny noses and ocular symptoms due to
allergic rhinitis, which has been a source of immense

solace for them. The introduction of Ryaltris® has
brought excitement among doctors, as it provides
them with a second fixed-dose combination for the
treatment of allergic rhinitis in their patients. The
doctors find Ryaltris® to be an attractive option and
are enthusiastic about utilizing it in their practise:

SOUTH AFRICA

In September 2020, RYALTRIS® was
introduced to the South African market

and was eagerly embraced by physicians

as it promised to eliminate the need for
multiple therapies to address the bothersome
symptoms associated with allergic rhinitis.
This unique FDC quickly gained popularity
among doctors, pharmacists, and patients,
due to its effectiveness in offering relief to
patients.

Over the past three years, RYALTRIS® has
made significant progress. By making
registration amendments, we have expanded
the bandwidth for the patient population
eligible for treatment, including those aged
twelve and older, patients with allergic

rhino conjunctivitis, and those in need of

an effective long-term treatment. This year,
RYALTRIS® will achieve another milestone by
becoming more readily available to patients
as an over-the-counter brand.

Patient satisfaction is of utmost importance
and the feedback we have received from
clinicians, key opinion leaders (KOLs),
medical societies and patients themselves
serves as evidence that RYALTRIS® is
clinically effective, as stated in our literature.
We are not only revolutionizing the treatment
of allergic rhinitis but, also enhancing

the quality of life of patients who rely on
RYALTRIS® on a daily basis.

Dr. Thulja Trikamjee
Clinical Professor of Pediatrics,

Division of Allergy & Immunology, University of Cape Town
Lung Institute, South Africa

RYALTRIS® has been a game-changer in the treatment of allergic
rhinitis! With its rising prevalence and the resulting increasing
awareness; patients now expect better treatment alternatives.
Previously, our options were limited, especially within South
Africa, to the availability of plain corticosteroid based nasal
sprays alone. Having read the data from international studies
and trials, | was excited to see the effect RYALTRIS® had on my
patients. | have prescribed the spray for daily usage and am
quite satisfied with its clinical outcome and positive feedback.
A patient generally visits an allergologist after having consulted
numerous healthcare professionals. For me, one of the greatest
benefits has been our ability to provide that ‘extra’ efficacy and
see beneficial results within a shorter time span. '
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Ukraine

The Ukrainian government’s
statistical service has
reported that there are
approximately 9 million
people in Ukraine suffering
from allergic rhinitis

and in need of medical
treatment. RYALTRIS®,

our innovative fix dose
combination, came into play
as a solution. Despite the
challenging circumstances in
Ukraine, Glenmark remains
committed to providing
effective and high-quality
medication to patients in
that region.
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In its debut year, RYALTRIS®
quickly gained traction,
capturing a notable 5%
market share. Its immediate
relevance and efficacy in
alleviating allergic rhinitis
symptoms were evident,
showecasing its positive
impact. Beyond being a
symptom-reliever, RYALTRIS®
has become a driving force
behind our business growth
in Ukraine, highlighting

its immense value in

both improving lives and
contributing to our success.
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Prof. Oleksandr Semenyuk

PhD, MD Associate Professor
(Department of Otorhinolaryngology,
Danylo Halytsky Lviv National Medical
University), Ukraine

Doctors in Ukraine are required to work at all
difficult times. Patients seek salvation from
allergies in the hope of regaining the ability

to breathe through the nose. At the same

time, patients want to avoid polypragmasia,

if it is necessary to use numerous drugs

several times a day. The intense rhythm of life
sometimes does not leave the patients time for
themselves. Since the private medicine market
is developed in Ukraine, patients are looking for
new opportunities to improve their treatment,
and seek to receive modern evidence-based
treatment.

For them, RYALTRIS® evolved into such a tool.
Clinical trials and a solid scientific foundation
make it simple to persuade doctors to order the
first course of therapy. And later, the obtained
positive results confirm all expectations. The
rapid elimination of symptoms of allergic
rhinitis (rhinorrhea, nasal congestion, allergic
conjunctivitis) makes doctors and patients in
favor of RYALTRIS® and treatment in general.
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Feedback on RYALTRIS®

Dr. January E. Gelera
Secretary, Academy Rhinolo
Philippines

RYALTRIS® Nasal Spray is a phenomenal product
that has greatly improved the overall nasal health
of my patients. Its unique formulation combines
two active ingredients, an antihistamine, and a
nasal steroid, making it a comprehensive solution
for addressing both allergic rhinitis symptoms and
nasal inflammation. The synergistic effect of these
components provides efficient and rapid relief
from nasal congestion, sneezing, and itching.

Another standout feature of RYALTRIS® is its
long-lasting action, which has allowed my
patients to enjoy uninterrupted relief from allergy
symptoms throughout the day. Lastly, RYALTRIS®
does not leave behind any unpleasant aftertaste
or a sensation of dryness in the nasal passages.

Overall, RYALTRIS® Nasal Spray has exceeded
my expectations, providing effective, efficient
and long-lasting relief from rhinitis. Thus, | highly
recommend RYALTRIS® to my patients seeking

a reliable and gentle solution for their allergic
rhinitis and related symptoms. ,

Dr. Joseph Ray Richard R. Cedeiio

Chairman, Department of Otolaryngology
Head & Neck Surgery Makati Medical Center,
Philippines

When RYALTRIS® became available in the
Philippines, it was a game changer in the treatment
of Allergic Rhinitis. The response was quick and
easily abated, if not fully resolved, the symptoms
of allergic rhinitis. My patients were satisfied,

and all of them responded well. They were able
to go back to their usual physical activities, able
to concentrate on their work or studies and able
to sleep well. It is truly satisfying to see a patient
happy. Quality and effectivity is always important,
Thank you for giving us RYALTRIS®. '
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Prof. Shilenkova Victoria V.

Professor of the Department of
Otorhinolaryngology of Yaroslavl State
Medical University, General Secretary
of the Russia Society of Rhinologists.
Russia

Current data on the efficacy and safety of
medications, depending on the severity of allergic
rhinitis (AR), comorbidity, and the patient’s
adherence to standard treatment regimens,

dictate new approaches to the optimal choice

of therapy based on combined medications. The
emergence of a fixed combination of RYALTRIS® in
Russia has expanded the capabilities of healthcare
professionals to achieve control of AR symptoms in
children and adults. The local positive experience
of using RYALTRIS® confirms the results of the

high efficacy and safety along with the rapid onset
of action obtained in international studies. The
combination of mometasone-olopatadine was
included in the list of recommended drugs in the
Clinical Guidelines on Allergic rhinitis of the Russian
Society of Rhinologists in 2022, developed on the
basis of ARIA 2020 (Allergic Rhinitis and its Impact
on Asthma).

32

Prof. Smolkin Yuri S.

Professor of the Department of Clinical
Immunology and Allergology of Federal
Scientific Clinical Center FMBA RF, President
of the Association of Pediatric Allergists and
Immunologists of Russia (APAIR)

Russia

The treatment of allergic rhinitis in children

has always been a difficult task for a specialist.
Glenmark offered a universal solution - a highly
effective medicine, RYALTRIS®, in a convenient
form of nasal spray. It is the only fixed doses
combination of topical corticosteroid and
antihistamine, approved in Russia for children
from 6 years old. Combining the properties of the
best molecules in their class (mometasone and
olopatadine) and the possibility of simultaneous
action on various mediators of allergic rhinitis,
allows our patients to see a quick result of action
and maintain stable control in case long-term
use is necessary. Patient safety is a key concern
in pediatric practise, however, the data of clinical
trials of RYALTRIS® on children over 6 years old
allows us to confidently recommend this fixed
combination to our patients. '
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Prof. Dr. hab. n. med. Piotr Kuna

Department of Internal Medicine, Asthma and Allergy

Medical University of Lodz
Poland

RYALTRIS® is a combination of the topical modern
steroid, Mometasone, with a topical antihistamine
that further stabilizes mast cells. Olopatadine is the
newest drug for the treatment of allergic rhinitis
and conjunctivitis. My experience so far has been
very good. Patients are satisfied with the treatment
with RYALTRIS® - the drug helps them reduce the
symptoms of rhinitis and conjunctivitis and is well
tolerated. Patients willingly continue treatment
with RYALTRIS®, while praising its neutral smell

and its good tolerability. | am switching more and
more patients who have failed with other drugs to
RYALTRIS® with great success.

Dr. hab. n. med. Wojciech Feleszko

Medical University of Warsaw
Poland

As a Professor of Pediatrics and Clinical
Immunology, | have found RYALTRIS® to be highly
effective and well-tolerated in pediatric patients
with allergic rhinitis. Its unique combination of
active ingredients provides significant relief,
particularly in challenging cases where other
treatments have failed. The overwhelmingly positive
feedback from pediatric patients using RYALTRIS®
underscores its preference as a user-friendly nasal
spray option, enabling improved compliance and
long-term management. | confidently endorse the
use of RYALTRIS® in our clinical practise to provide
adequate relief and enhance the overall quality of
life for our young patients with AR. '
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Dermatology

We have made noteworthy
advancements in our dermatology
portfolio with the introduction
of several new products. Among
these, the enhanced Candid®
Prickly Heat Powder launched in
India, stands out as a powerful
antibacterial solution that
effectively eliminates germs,
prevents itching from rashes
due to excessive sweating, and
combats body odour.

Another important addition in
this lineup is the launch of India’s
first topical Minocycline 4% Gel
under the brand name Minym®,

a remarkable breakthrough in
acne treatment in India. Acne,

a common skin condition, often
poses challenges due to growing
antibiotic resistance. The Minym®
Gel, a topical Minocycline 4%

Gel, addresses these concerns
with potent antibacterial and
anti-inflammatory properties. Its
unparalleled resistance prevention
and efficacy in patients aged nine
years and above make it a game-
changer in acne care, addressing
immediate and long-term
treatment needs effectively.

A key highlight of our skincare line
in the country is the introduction
of La Shield® Probiotic Moisturizer.
Infused with Probiotics, it
promotes healthier skin by
revitalising the skin’s microbiome
and locking in moisture for an
impressive 72 hours.

In addition, Isavuconazole has
been launched to address fungal
infections, including invasive
aspergillosis and mucormycosis,
presenting a crucial treatment
option for individuals with
compromised immune systems.

Lasderma Cream was , introduced
in Mexico, combines three active
ingredients to target and inhibit
skin pigmentary activity. This
versatile cream addresses a
range of hyperchromias, such as
melasma, lentigines, and post-
inflammatory hyperpigmentation,
while also enhancing the skin’s
radiance.

In addition, the introduction of

Tacroz, the first generic Tacrolimus,

in Malaysia is a significant step
towards treating moderate to

severe atopic eczema that is
unresponsive to conventional
treatments. This generic version
replaces the use of topical steroids
and offers a larger package size

to facilitate treatment of larger
surface areas.

Moreover, our dermatology
portfolio has been bolstered by
the launch of Momate ointment,
and Powercort Cream in Myanmar.
Momate effectively manages
conditions like eczema, psoriasis,
dermatitis, and rash, reducing
symptoms like swelling, itching,
and redness. Powercort Cream,
adds to the portfolio’s strength by
offering a potent steroid treatment
for Atopic Dermatitis and Psoriasis.
Fenismart gel, available over-the-
counter in Russia, provides relief
from itchy skin caused by various
factors, apart from cholestasis.
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Oncology & Other therapies

Cancer is unyielding, but then, so are we in advancing our understanding of

the disease’s science to transform treatments. Glenmark’s dedicated team of
researchers and clinicians shares a common goal: uncovering breakthroughs
to improve the lives of cancer patients.

We have introduced a compelling
array of oncology products in

the past year, demonstrating

our commitment to advancing
cancer treatment options. Among
these advancements, Abiratone
launched in the European region
the U.S. and Argentina stands

out as a prominent addition.
Abiratone, a targeted therapy,
exhibits potential in the treatment
of prostate cancer by inhibiting
key enzymes involved in hormone
production, thereby suppressing
cancer growth. Additionally,
Sunitinib and Pazopanib, both
launched in the European region
are multi-targeted tyrosine kinase
inhibitors, and have emerged as

% Abiraterone

noteworthy offerings in the fight
against various solid tumors. These
medications interfere with signals
that drive tumors angiogenesis
and cell proliferation, showcasing
our dedication to developing
solutions that combat cancer

at a molecular level. Moreover,
our portfolio expansion includes
Capecitabine, introduced in the
European region is a valuable
addition. It provides a targeted
approach for treating breast and
colorectal cancers by converting
to an active compound within
tumors cells. The introduction of
Azacitidine reinforces our focus
on haematological malignancies,
as this medication offers potential
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benefits for patients with
myelodysplastic syndromes and
acute myeloid leukaemia. We have
also introduced Lenalidomide,

in the Europe region. It is an
immunomodulatory agent
offering potential therapeutic
options for multiple myeloma

and certain types of lymphomas.
These introductions collectively
underscore our noteworthy
contributions to the evolving
landscape of oncology treatments.
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Continued focus on therapy growth

Chemotherapy, a prevalent cancer treatment
method, often brings about debilitating side-
effects like nausea and vomiting. We have
partnered exclusively with Helsinn, a Swiss
biopharma Group Company, to be the first

in India to offer the innovative LV. injection
formulation AKYNZEO" |V, designed to
counteract chemotherapy-induced nausea and
vomiting (CINV). Another key launch in the
region was that of Candipoz®GR 300.

Our commitment to advancing treatment
paradigms is evident in the introduction of
Palbinas™ 125, in India. It is an oral CDK4/6
inhibitor that has shown promise in hormone
receptor-positive breast cancer.

We are strategically focusing on oncology as a core therapy for substantial growth, aiming to triple our
oncology contribution to the overall business within the next five years through the launch of new complex
generics. The strategy also includes in-licensing complex generics, with ongoing discussions for launches in
the U.S., EU, and RoW regions. With our focus on growth, we have two dedicated manufacturing facilities

for oncology products.

Injectables Facility: Pilar,
Argentina

Capacity: 1 million vials for both
liquid and lyophilized formulations

Key highlights: While legacy
injectable products such as
Pemetrexed, Paclitaxel, and
Irinotecan are being manufactured
for RoOW markets, the focus

on growth is shifting towards
differentiated offerings, including
‘ready-to-use’ forms. The pipeline
includes two key products that are
currently under filing and at least
two more are under development.

Regulatory approvals: SUKL,
ANMAT, ANVISA, INVIMA, and
COFEPRIS

38




Annual Report 2023

Financial Capital

Oral Solids Facility -
Aurangabad, India

Capacity: 22 million units

Key highlights: Currently, we
have more than five oral solid
products under development
which will be filed in the U.S., EU
and RoW markets.

Regulatory approvals: U.S.
FDA, SUKL, WHO-GMP, ANMAT,
ANVISA, and INVIMA
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Diabetes

Glenmark has a strong legacy of bringing
in new, effective and affordable treatment
options for diabetic patients, especially
the ones with uncontrolled Type 2
diabetes. In 2015, Glenmark was the first
to launch the DPP4 inhibitor, Teneligliptin
(ZITA" PLUS and Ziten"), followed by a
FDC of Teneligliptin + Metformin (ZITA"-
MET PLUS and Ziten-M®). Glenmark later
launched Remogliflozin (Remo® and
Remozen™), a novel SGLT-2 inhibitor in
2019 and subsequently, its combinations
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with Metformin and Vildagliptin
(Remo-V*, Remozen™-V,
Remo MV® and Remozen™ MV).

FY 2023 marked the launch of five first-
to-market products designed to aid in

the treatment of type 2 diabetes.

A recent Indian Council of Medical
Research (ICMR) study found that
around 101 million people living with
diabetes and another 136 million
people in pre-diabetes stages in
the country. In response to the
escalating diabetes prevalence,

we introduced the innovative
Fixed-Dose Combination (FDC) of
Teneligliptin + Pioglitazone under

the brand name ZITA” PLUS-PIO.

It helps in improving the glycemic
control among adult patients

with insulin resistance, those
whose diabetes is uncontrolled by
metformin; and also those who
require addition of Teneliglitptin
and Pioglitazone as separate drugs.
We also launched eight different
combinations of sitagliptin based
drugs under the brand name
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SITAZIT® and its variants. These
drugs have low risk of hypoglycemia,
provide beta cell protection,

offer cardio-renal benefits and

are safe for patients with kidney

or liver conditions and senior
citizens with the aim to improve
glycemic levels in uncontrolled
diabetics and create a new
pathway to treat insulin resistance
in India, we introduced LOBG®
Thiazolidinedione Lobeglitazone
(Lobeglitazone). For the patients

in the country with uncontrolled
type-2 diabetes, especially the ones
with comorbidities, we launched
ZITA" D ( FDC of Teneligliptin +
Dapagliflozin).

Later during the financial year, we
launched yet another triple FDC

v
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€ Z2ITA°-D

of teneligliptin + pioglitazone

+ metformin under the brand
name ZITA®-PioMet. The

novel triple FDC helps improve
glycemic control among adults
with High HbAIlci and high insulin
resistance, those whose diabetes is
uncontrolled by metformin alone;
and those who require the addition
of Teneligliptin and Pioglitazone

as separate drugs; thus improving
adherence with single pill.

Sitagliptin and the combination
of sitagliptin + metformin were
introduced in the Europe markets
whereas teneligliptin and the
combination of teneligliptin +
metformin were launched in Kenya,
a key market in the RoW region.

[ 1 Sitagliptin
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Making Diabetes Management Affordable

Diabetes medication has been financially burdensome
for a large number of people in India, leading to
poorly managed diabetes and an increased risk of
cardiovascular, metabolic, and renal complications in
up to 95.7% of patients, as reported by the American
College of Cardiology in 2017. To manage this issue,
sodium-glucose co-transporter-2 inhibitors (SGLT2i)
were introduced in 2015.

We took a pioneering step in 2019 by becoming the
first Company to launch the innovator molecule,
remogliflozin. Marketed as Remo® and Remo®-Zen, this
medication was available at more than 50% discounted
rates in comparison to SGLT2 inhibitors available in

the Indian Pharmaceutical Market during the time. This
move significantly increased access to quality diabetes
medication, enabling us to fulfill our commitment to

provide affordable medication for the diabetic patients.

Earlier, in 2015, we launched a breakthrough DPP4
inhibitor, teneligliptin (ZITA® PLUS and Ziten®), at a
price 55% lower than its competing brands.

Our Healthcare Experts Opine

Continuing our dedication to improving accessibility
to SGLT2 and DPP4 inhibitors, we went a step further
in 2020 and launched a fixed-dose combination of
remogliflozin etabonate + vildagliptin (Remo® V and
Remozen® V). This combination therapy merges the
benefits of SGLT2i and SPP4i inhibitors, which have
proven benefits in the effective management of
diabetes. Marketed as Remo®-M and Remo®-Zen M.

To make these innovative molecules available

to patients, we initiated ‘The Forever Study’ to
examine the efficacy and safety of the combination
of remogliflozin + vildagliptin. The introduction of
this combination as Remo®-V and Remo®-Zen V

has enabled diabetes management easier for many
patients with severe blood sugar levels, empowering
them to lead healthier and happier lives.

Dr. Sambit Das

Endocrinologist and Diabetologist
MBBS, MD, DM (Endocrinology)
Bhubaneshwar

Good PPG reduction is observed with dual
dosing of Remo compared to other OADs
available in the market, also it fits right with
the Indian T2DM (Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus)
meal pattern. -
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Dr. Jayagopal Pathiyil
MBBS, MD, DM (Cardiology)
Kerala

Remogliflozin has significant improvement in
glycaemic parameter and NT-proBNP. It has
also shown improved quality of life with no
severe side effects. '
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Cardiac

We have made noteworthy strides in cardiac
segment with a range of products, along with
our existing flagship brand TELMA®.

TELMA", our brand of Telmisartan, an Angiotensin
Receptor Blocker (ARB), effectively manages
essential hypertension as a first-line treatment.
Launched in 2003, TELMA® gained momentum
after the ONTARGET trial in 2007, showcasing its
24-hour blood pressure control and cardiovascular
risk protection benefits. It has achieved impressive
milestones: becoming a 100 Cr brand in 2013,
reaching 200 Cr in 2019, and hitting the 300

Cr mark in 2021, currently valued at 3388 Cr*.
TELMA?®s leadership in the anti-hypertensive

and cardiac markets is evidenced by it is rank of
20th among over 53,000 brands in the Indian
Pharmaceutical market.
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We have also introduced advanced therapies to
enhance hypertension treatment options, including
double combinations (TELMA®-H, TELMA® AM,
TELMA®-CT, TELMA® Beta) and triple combinations
(TELMA® AMH, TELMA® ACT), catering to patients
who have uncontrolled hypertension and are on
multiple drugs. The recent addition, TELMA® BS,
an ARB + Beta blocker, addresses hypertensive
young patients with coronary artery disease and
sympathetic overdrive.

% our Range of TELMA® Products

 Telmisartan and
Arelnidipine Tablets
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Eptus® is another potent brand
that has strong presence in

the Indian pharma market.
Introduced in 2005. Eptus® has
brought a transformative impact
on medical care, benefiting
patients across the country.
Supported by landmark trials,
EPHESUS and EMPHASIS-HF,
Eptus®, an Eplerenone-based
treatment, has significantly
reduced morbidity and mortality
in heart failure cases resulting
from acute myocardial infarction
and left ventricular dysfunction.
Despite heart failure guidelines
advocating for mineralocorticoid
receptor antagonists (MRAS) like
Eplerenone, only 25% of Indian
patients receive proper therapy,
highlighting the underutilization.
Eptus®, a frontrunner brand,

is instrumental in managing

*(July 23 IQVIA™)
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heart failure and resistant
hypertension, aligning with global
recommendations. Its substantial
market share of 49.74%* and 1.58
times growth underscores its
leadership and role in fostering
high-performance culture within
the India formulations business.

SACU V°® addresses the growing
prevalence of heart failure in
India, affecting approximately
8-10 million individuals. As a
pioneering solution, SACU V®
offers an advanced and cost-
effective treatment avenue.
Demonstrating its efficacy, it
has been proven to significantly
lower the risk of cardiovascular-
related fatalities and heart
failure-related hospitalizations,
while also enhancing symptoms
associated with heart failure
characterized by reduced

€ SACU V®

€ DEVENAL

ejection fraction (HFrEF). It has
garnered approval for patients
experiencing chronic heart failure
(NYHA class II-1V) with reduced
ejection fraction, receiving
endorsement from leading heart
failure treatment guidelines in
both Europe and the U.S.

Among our offerings is
Olmesartan Medoxomil

Tablets, which provide effective
management of hypertension,
contributing to improved
cardiovascular health. Another
notable product is DEVENAL,

a solution designed to address
specific cardiac concerns with
its advanced formulation.
Additionally, we provide
APIXABAN TAB, a crucial
medication that aids in preventing
blood clots and reducing the risk
of stroke in patients with certain
cardiac conditions.

€ Olmesartan Medoxomil
Tablets USP

€ APIXABAN TAB
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Women’s Health
(in the U.S.)

We have a strong focus in the category of Women’s Health in
the U.S,, offering a range of products that cater to women’s
diverse health requirements from contraception to hormone
therapy replacement. These offerings include contraceptive
options such as ALYACEN® 1/35 and 7/7/7, BRIELLYN®,
CHARLOTTE® 24 Fe, a full line of HAILEY® products, MARLISSA®
and VIORELE?®, as well as generic equivalents in several other
markets. Additionally, our commitment to addressing specific
health concerns is evident with more recent introductions

of products like Estradiol Vaginal Inserts USP, 10 mcg, and
Norethindrone Acetate and Ethinyl Estradiol Tablets USP, 0.5
mg/2.5 mcg and 1 mg/5 mcg, each different types of hormone
therapies. This diversified approach emphasizes our mission to
empower women with a comprehensive array of choices for
their well-being.

Further expanding our reach in this category, we have re-
introduced Levonorgestrel Tablet, 1.5 mg on Amazon and
Walmart marketplace in FY 2023, a product that was previously
approved in 2016, to round out our growing Over-the-Counter
(OTC) portfolio and further underscore our commitment to
comprehensive women'’s healthcare, in both the prescription
and OTC spaces. Notably, our collaboration with Rite Aid to
launch Levonorgestrel Tablet, 1.5 mg, under the tradename
SheWise® in the OTC segment demonstrates our dedication to
enhancing accessibility and convenience for women seeking
reliable healthcare options.

€ VIORELE® Tablets € ASHLYNA® Tablets € | evonorgestrel Tablet,
1.5 mg and SheWise®

€ Norethindrone Acetate € Estradiol Vaginal Inserts € HAILEY® 24 Fe Tablets
and Ethinyl Estradiol USP, 10 mcg
Tablets USP, 1 mg/5 mcg
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Glenmark Life Sciences

Glenmark Lifesciences, established in 2019, maintains an intrinsic focus on
manufacturing high-quality and affordable APIs. Our commitment to excellence
has allowed us to forge strong partnerships with leading generic pharmaceutical
companies that mainly operate in the regulated markets of U.S., Canada, Japan,
Europe and Latin America. We have also built capacities and enhanced our
manufacturing efficiency to meet the diverse demands of a global clientele.

We maintain close ties with the top
20 generic companies worldwide
who are our customers and have
an extensive portfolio of 139

APIs. Combining innovation with
operational efficiency, we continue
to serve customers within a
complicated regulatory framework.
It has helped to earn customer
confidence and established the
credibility of our services. Besides,

6 Global Markets 2

]

North America, Europe,
Japan, Latin America,
India and Rest of

the World

|

Facilities ISO
14001:2015 and ISO
45001:2018 certified

our ability to merge science,
technology and economics across
the product development lifecycle
has created a differentiated
position for the Company that has
now positioned us to successfully
move up the value chain.

At the core of our success lies our
state-of-the-art manufacturing
and research capabilities, which

We work with
|

largest generic
pharmaceutical

companies globally.

empower us to meet the dynamic
demands of the industry. It also
enables us to consistently deliver
superior quality APIs to over

700 pharmaceutical companies,
operating in multiple countries.

468

DMFs and CEPs
across major markets;
77 Patents
(owned/co-owned)

32

4 Plants
]

Ankleshwar and
Dahej (Gujarat)
Mohol and Kurkumbh
(Maharashtra)

~300

R&D Personnel

7_50+ MT

Annual Production
Capacity

]
Plants USFDA
inspected

139

High-quality
API Products

|
Facilities with
Zero Liquid

Discharge
capabilities

]

New products under
development pipeline
including 3 iron complexes
and 9 oncology products

]
Locations with
R&D centres
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Glenmark Life Sciences Limited Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Six Global Markets

|
Largest generic
pharmaceutical
companies globally
are our customers

468

DMFs and CEPs across
major markets

Map is for representational purpose only.
Depiction of boundaries is not authoritative.
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Glenmark Life Sciences Limited

Highlights of FY 2023

21,612 million

Revenue from Operations

1.8%
YoY increase

2.8

Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio

Key therapeutic areas

£,71 2 million

EBITDA

6.4%
YoY increase

29.1%

ROCE

We continually develop APIs in chronic
therapeutic areas as listed below

O
&

Cardiovascular

Q@
&

Diabetes Anti-acne

o
@

Diuretic Anti-

Central Nervous
(CVS) System (CNS)

e

Pain Management
(Anti-migrane,
Analgesic)

Urinary
anti-spasmodic

O

Anti-arhythmic

hyperlipidemic

O

Anti-coagulant

ﬁ',670 million

PAT

1.5%
YoY increase

£,134 million

Cash from Operations

We also work on specific
opportunities in other
therapeutic areas

®

Anti-fungal

©

Anti-emetic

©

Respiratory

Anti-viral

OO © ©

Anti-histaminic

Anti-ulcerative

Ophthalmologic
agent agent
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Glenmark Life Sciences Limited

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Strategic growth drivers

Expansion of the existing business

$
$

$

To launch new products.

Expand into new geographical locations and reduce
dependence on specific markets.

Prioritise regulated markets that offer higher value
by providing support to customers throughout their
development and commercialisation process.

Seek opportunities for second sourcing with
leading generic players in areas where Glenmark
Life Sciences has a cost advantage.

Expand the CDMO (Contract Development and
Manufacturing Organisation) business by utilising
a significant portion of the existing portfolio for
505(b)(2) and lifecycle management projects.

Ventured into complex API platforms such as Iron
compounds and oncology molecules.

Operational efficiencies

Implemented processes to recover and recycle
solvents, reduce waste and minimise
environmental impact.

Optimised batch sizes to maximise production
efficiency and minimise resource utilisation.

Incorporated advanced filtration and drying
techniques by utilising new downstream
equipment, resulting in improved product
quality and process efficiency.

Focused on enhancing manufacturing processes
to achieve higher yields, to increase productivity
and reduce waste.

Explored and implemented latest technologies
to improve overall operational efficiency.

Prioritised green chemistry practises to reduce
the generation of hazardous waste and minimise
the environmental impact of our processes.

Reduced effluent generation through
sustainable practises.

Backward integration of operations to ensure
reliability and efficiency of supply chains for
intermediates and key starting raw materials.

50

Cross-selling opportunities

§ Glenmark Life Sciences has implemented a
strategic approach of cross-selling its diverse
range of products to existing customers in different
geographies, to effectively boost the wallet share.
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Glenmark Life Sciences Limited

R&D expertise

§ Continuously optimising existing processes to
enhance productivity.

% Reducing process cycle time to improve
efficiency.

Implementing cost-effective processes for
regulated markets.

()

w

Enhancing recovery and recycling methods.

% Implementing backward integration of higher
value Key Starting Materials (KSMs).

Effective sourcing policies

% Engaged in continuous negotiations with vendors
to ensure competitive pricing and favorable
terms. It helped to optimize costs and maintain
strong partnerships with suppliers. Expansion of
vendor base to enhance flexibility and mitigate
risks associated with supply chain disruptions.
Developing indigenous suppliers to mitigate
dependency on other geographies. These ensure a
reliable and diversified supply network for our raw
materials and components.

CDMO

As a leading producer of high-quality APls and our
expertise in research and development, process
chemistry and innovative intellectual property, we
provide CDMO services to a number of multinational
and speciality pharmaceutical companies. We

offer customized solutions to our clients in the

form of support for regulatory filings, research,
technological assistance, and manufacturing of
specialty APIs. It also enables our partners to easily
gain market access.
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Ichnos, under the leadership of President and CEO, Cyril Konto, MD, is
a clinical-stage biotechnology Company that is driving innovation in
the field of immuno-oncology. With a team of experienced executives
who have a collective industry experience of nearly 150 years, Ichnos
is at the forefront of developing new solutions for cancer treatment.
The Company’s primary strength lies in its proprietary BEAT® protein
engineering platform, which enables the creation of highly flexible and
manufacturable full-length multi-specific antibodies. By leveraging this
platform, Ichnos aims to discover compounds that can target multiple
factors simultaneously, thus expanding their pipeline and generating
long-term value.

As a wholly owned subsidiary of Glenmark Pharmaceuticals, Ichnos

operates with more than 150 skilled employees across three locations

in the United States and Switzerland. It functions as a fully integrated

biotech business, encompassing key capabilities in biologics discovery,

antibody engineering, chemistry, manufacturing, and control (CMC), as

well as clinical development. To ensure scientific excellence and strategic 1 3 3
guidance, Ichnos has established a scientific advisory Board comprising

nine accomplished academics and executives who possess expertise Team members
in drug development, immuno-oncology, and protein engineering. This —

advisory Board was formed in the latter half of fiscal year 2023 and In research and
continues to provide valuable insights to guide Ichnos’ endeavors. development

Our strategy starts with a validated target in multiple myeloma and then expands:

. - Myeloid and T-Cell . .
T-Cell Bispecific Multispecific Multispecific

Engager Engagers
gag > . gag
Hematologic

. X Solid Tumors
Malignancies

Multiple Myeloma

ISB 1342, a CD38 ISB 1442, a first-in-class CD38 x ISB 2001, BEAT®
x CD3 BEAT® CD47 2+1 biparatopic multispecific antibody
bispecific antibody BEAT® bispecific antibody

ISB 2001, BCMA x CD38 x CD3
TREAT™trispecific antibody
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Ichnos Sciences

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Keeping hope alive by harnessing our core capacities

Oncology

With different programmes in oncology engaging different immune cell targets, we have a strong
pipeline targeting hematologic malignancies and solid tumors. The advanced products are in different

stages of clinical trial.

Asset Description Preclinical Phase 1 Phase 2 [Phase 3 Status
Compounds
Phase 1
1SB 1342 W, % CD38xCD3BEAT 10  |VHIIVIRISNS Oroban
QU bispecific antibody T-ALL under consideration* D
o rug
ISB 1442 | « ,,/&’ CD38 x CD47 BEAT" 2.0 Multiple Myeloma; Phase 1 Acute (p)r;gizrl
%\HH’” bispecific antibody Myeloid Leukemia [AML] Planned Drug
, BCMA x CD38 x CD3 Phase 1
ISB 2001 \\%\ ,/& TREAT™ trispecific Multiple Myeloma Orphan
HB antibody Drug
Candidates
ISB 2301 l;lg;:oerlrlnengaglng Multispecific Discovery

*Will be advanced with partner

BEAT®: Bispecific Engagement by Antibodies based on the TCR

TREAT™ : Trispecific Engagement by Antibodies based on the TCR

Pipeline

Our Company's lead assets, namely ISB 1342, ISB
1442, and ISB 2001, make up our pipeline of multi-
specific antibodies designed to target various
hematologic malignancies and solid tumors, by
engaging a wide range of immune cells. We are
currently conducting Phase 1 clinical trials for ISB
1342, a potentially first-in-class bispecific antibody
that targets CD38 and CD3 for the treatment of
relapsed/refractory multiple myeloma. ISB 1442, a
biparatopic bispecific antibody targeting CD38 and
CD47, is undergoing a Phase 1/2 dose escalation/
expansion study for the same indication. We

have also received approvals from the Human
Research Ethics Commission (HREC) in Australia
and the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA)
to initiate the first-in-human clinical study of ISB
2001, our trispecific antibody targeting BCMA,
CD38, and CD3, intended for the treatment of
relapsed/refractory multiple myeloma. We expect to
commence human trials for ISB 2001 later this year.
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Streamlining through innovation

We have continually innovated and expanded our
product portfolio to meet evolving needs. Initially
centred around T-cell bispecific engagers

(ISB 1342), we now have included myeloid and
multispecific engagers (ISB 1442 and ISB 2001).
Now, with the introduction of ISB 2301, we have
shifted our focus towards harnessing the potential
of NK cell, engaging multi-specific platform,
demonstrating our commitment to innovation and
staying at the forefront of scientific advancements.

Increasing awareness

In order to enhance awareness in the field of
oncology and expand our reach to more patients,
we disseminate our latest scientific advancements
through publications in peer-reviewed journals

and presentations at medical congresses. Through
these channels, we aim to highlight our research on
potentially transformative biologic treatments in
immuno-oncology.
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Ichnos Sciences

Autoimmune disease

Products Target Preclinical

Phase 1

Phase 2 [Phase 3 | Status

Licensing Discussion Ongoing

ISB 830 OX40 antagonist
(telazorlimab) | Monoclonal antibody

Atopic Dermatitis

Successfully
Completed Phase 2B in
Atopic Dermatitis*

Licensed to Almirall EUR 20.8 million upfront payment, development and commercial milestone payments,

tiered royalties on global sales

ISB 880 /
ALM27134

IL - TRAP antagonist
monoclonal antibody

Autoimmune Disease

Phase 1

Utility patents

We are developing an extensive collection of utility
patents that provide legal protection for prominent
assets such as ISB 1342, ISB 1442, and ISB 2001.
Additionally, we are also expanding our patent

Clinical stage oncology platform

Ichnos is actively enrolling patients with relapsed
multiple myeloma to conduct Phase 1 dose
escalation/expansion studies for ISB 1342, ISB
1442 and ISB 2001. Despite the incurable nature of

multiple myeloma, these drugs have the potential
to overcome the resistance offered by existing
therapies.

portfolio to encompass the multi-specific platform
which engages natural killer (NK) cells. Additionally,
we have a range of utility patents to specifically
safeguard ISB 880 and ISB 830, our assets focused
on autoimmune conditions.

About the BEAT® Platform

The BEAT® platform uses a novel method for engineering bispecific antibodies that may treat cancers—both
today and in the future. A next-generation approach to immuno-oncology, BEAT® is designed to enable
more efficient production of bispecific and multispecific antibodies that can engage multiple targets
simultaneously, enhancing the power of the immune system to fight disease.

Enables design and BEAT® , TRISPECIFIC /
development of bi/ & (TREAT™)

multispecific antibpdies \
e N 47 S o7
optimizing: [:]U UU
e i i

macrophage engagers) by

Affinity Epitope | Architecture | Fc function Improved
. o ) druggability
low-medium- target/ avidity, T cell: silent; and
high ' ' test immune ' Nonj T Cell: developability
combinations | several synapse size | active -
epitopes enhanced rapid
engineering

TCR constant alpha % Common constant light
® TCR constant beta chain domain

Common variable light
chain domain

BEAT® and further developments
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Stakeholder Engagement Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

STAKEHOLDER

Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is a critical aspect of any business transition, but

it becomes particularly relevant for us as we move up the value chain. Since
we are developing therapeutics to meet specific market needs, it is essential
for Glenmark to actively involve and communicate with stakeholders across
the Board, including patients, health care professionals, value chain partners,
investors, and our own employees and management. Effective stakeholder
engagement helps better identify market needs, gather insights, build trust,
foster collaboration, pave the way for an effective transition up the value chain.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Methodology

Monitor and efficiently e
manage stakeholder

relationships

ﬁﬁ

°®
Construct a matrix to
identify stakeholder

influence and importance

Stakeholder
Identification

[

The first step in stakeholder
engagement is identifying
relevant factors such as
impact, interest, legitimacy,
influence, and criticality.
Each stakeholder Group
has unique concerns, needs,
expectations and priorities.

Channels of
Communication

Most appropriate
communication tools are
selected based on the
stakeholder groups, our level
of access to individuals, and
number of stakeholders in
each Group. This ranges from
one-to-one meetings, virtual
and physical sessions, site
visits, feedback, surveys, and
focus Group discussions,
among others.

o |dentify and map

stakeholders

Assess the nature of
® cach stakeholder’s

influence and

importance

Review
Process

internal and external

The stakeholder identification
process is reviewed and
updated periodically
considering their feedback
and significant operational or
strategic changes.

Frequency of
Engagement

We design the frequency

of interaction with each
stakeholder Group based on
their specific needs while
ensuring regular and relevant
communication touchpoints.

Freqguency of interaction
with the specific stakeholder
Group depends on their
needs that we identify
through review processes.

Approach

§ Establishing clear

accountability by assigning
responsibilities and
adequate resources.

Proactively engaging with
and responding to those
that are disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized.

Designing appropriate
engagement methods and
plans that are tailored to
meet stakeholders’ needs
and have well-defined
transparent objectives and
outcomes.

Creating awareness among
all levels of employees on
the importance of listening
to stakeholders and
appropriately addressing
their concerns through
training and communication
programs.

Following a robust process
to record and track any
stakeholder engagement,
including meetings,
guestions, actions and
agreements or any other
relevant information.
Also ensuring that such
information is maintained
and followed-up, when
necessary, in a timely
manner.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Stakeholder Employees Senior Healthcare Government and Communities
Groups Management Professionals Regulators
Purpose and ¢ We value our 7 Our senior 7 Healthcare 7 We maintain 7 We engage with
scope of employees as a key management professionals an open line of communities to
engagement stakeholder Group. helps steer the share the communication conduct need
Company and we patients’ reviews with regulatory assessments,
© We actively seek their ensure that they and feedback, authorities. execute
feedback and ensure are empowered including adverse community
their concerns are to make critical event reporting, if & we foliow all development
addressed. decisions. any compliances, and projects,
% we — . . et the contribute to the understand and

Frequency of
Engagement

Engagement
Channels

Capital
Linkage
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them of strategic
organizational
developments.

7 For their professional
development, we track
their key performance @&
indicators, conduct
action planning,
recognize merit and
provide the best
opportunities.

? Need basis 1

7 Town hall meetings 1

7 Senior management
interactions 1

? HR communication
Employee connects

1 Employee
engagement survey

1 Employee
engagement
activities

7 Reward and
recognition

1 Employee
focused intranet

1 Learning portal for
employees

¢ Human Capital 1

Internal External

We ensure regular
discussions

on day-to-day
operations

and long-term
strategies.

We equip them
with performance
data that
facilitates their
decision-making.

Regularly / daily

In-person
meetings

Email
communication

Employee
engagement
survey

Human Capital

Company’s
product

¢ Partnering in
various scientific
& social initiatives

7 Need basis

1 In-person
meetings

7 Conferences

7 Electronic
and print
media

7 Social &
Relationship
Capital

development
of healthcare
regulations and
policies.

7 Need basis

g In-person
meetings

7 Conferences

N

Facility visits

Official
communication

N

N

Statutory
publication

N

Through industry
associations

7 social &
Relationship
Capital

resolve their
concerns on
critical incidents,
and address
community
grievances.

[ 1 Frequent /
need basis

7 Interaction
with NGO
partners for CSR
initiatives

¢ CSRimpact
assessment

1 Employee
volunteering

¢ CSRinitiatives

7 site visits

7 Social media and
website

7 Ssocial &
Relationship
Capital

¢ Natural Capital
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Stakeholder Engagement

Investors and Patients Customers Channel Partners Suppliers
Shareholders
Z We maintain regular 7 We proactively 7 We ensure regular ¢ Channel partners 7 We engage

and transparent
communication
with our investors.

7 we update them
on Company

engage with
patients, healthcare
professionals, and
patient advocacy
groups to better
understand their

[ 1

communication with
our customers to
ensure operational
concerns are
addressed.

We take feedback

are important to
increase product
accessibility
across different
geographies.

closely with our
suppliers for
regular supply of
materials.

7 We communicate
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strategy, any 1 They help us operational
. needs. on old and new . .
material corporate o with product decisions,
development, share 7 Wwe develop products. distribution understand and
quarterly financial innovative strategies address their
results, understand healthcare solutions and monitor concerns.
their expectations that improve operations on a Py
and grievances, and patients’ therapy regular basis. We also work A
seek feedback. outcomes. with our suppliers
to promote
7 Wwe present the 7 Wealso engage responsible
same to the Board with them to sourcing
and management. understand their practices, uphold
experience of ethical standards
our products and drive
and monitor any sustainability in
adverse events. supply chain.
1 Frequent / 7 Need basis 1 Frequent / 1 Frequent / 1 Frequent /
need basis need basis need basis need basis
7 Annual general 7 Website ¢ One-on-one 1 In-person ? Vendor meetings
meetings interaction meetings . .
9 ¢ Awareness 9 1 Supplier audit
7 Annual report campaigns 7 Customer events 7 Field visits
ual repor paig Y rev I VISt 1 Facility visits
7 Financial reports 1 Various 1 Camps and 1 Digital
e N— pharmacovigilance exhibitions communication
meetings / touch points 7 Feedback surveys
conferences ) )
1 Quality audits
7 Earnings calls
e ¢ E-mail
1 Issuing specific
event-specific
press releases
7 Grievance
mechanism
7 Financial Capital S Human Capital S Financial Capital S Financial Capital S Financial Capital
S Social & g Social & Relationship ] Manufactured ] Social and
Relationship Capital Capital Capital Relationship Capital
S Manufactured S Intellectual Capital S Natural Capital
Capital
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Materiality Assessment

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

MATERIALITY

Assessment

We recognize the importance of identifying and prioritizing our focus
areas based on their significance to our business and stakeholders.
Materiality assessment is a vital process that helps us determine the
key sustainability issues that require our attention and resources.
Through this approach, we ensure that our sustainability efforts are
aligned with the most pressing environmental, social, and governance

(ESG) concerns.

Approach to Materiality Assessment

Glenmark’s materiality assessment involved the following steps:

‘l—\

k Information Collation: After completing
the stakeholder identification process, we
conducted a thorough desk research focused
on collating relevant information from various
sources to understand the ESG issues pertinent
to the pharmaceutical industry and which were
material in the geographies and locations in
where we operate. This research evaluated
industry reports, sustainability standards,
regulatory requirements, media analysis,
competitor analysis, and internal data.

~
e Internal Assessment: We, then, surveyed
internal stakeholders such as senior
management, and department heads to
identify and evaluate potential sustainability
issues. This involved engagement from all

levels across the organization.

~
é Engagement with External Stakeholders: In
parallel to the internal assessment, we also
requested inputs from external stakeholders
to gain their perspectives and insights, this
included investors, value chain partners, CSR

partners and customers.
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~

k Analysis and Prioritization: The next stage
involved an analysis of the information gathered
through surveys and identification of the key
sustainability issues mapped by stakeholder
prioritization and business impact. In assigning
weights during data analysis, due consideration
was given to the significance of each issue in
terms of its potential impact on stakeholders, their
relevance, and urgency.

~

\ Validation of Findings: Subsequently, Glenmark
validated the findings of the materiality
assessment through internal and external
reviews. The post assessment feedback was
a critical step to ensure that the assessment
captured the perspectives of diverse
stakeholders. This is the starting point for
discussion when developing a strategic action
plan based on the prioritization of issues.

~

E Compared to the previous reporting period,
innovation and research, talent attraction
and retention, corporate governance, policy
advocacy and cyber security and data privacy
have been added as material topics while
digital transformation and intellectual property
rights have been covered under innovation and
research.
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Our prioritized material topics:

Our material topics guide our strategic planning process and operational management.

6 Social @ Governance
* 0 ¢
0 C

-l
Climate Circular Human Occupational Risk Corporate
Change Economy Rights Health and Management Governance
Safety
E % . Business Policy
Talent Human Capital :
Eth Ad
Attraction and Development s Uiy
Retention

o
©

Cyber
Promoting Supply Chain Security and
Diversity Management Data Privacy
=
Innovation Product Quality
and Research and Safety

©
O

Community Enhancing
Development Accessibility of
Medicines

SDG

e I Pl B g oomn [l 4 aun § e
M it ) e Avitine i e S
) e o
Fo Neloll K& v Ul -®:
N e
e e e
oo Wnes e fr
74 =) JH4 B QO
‘I' C nEéE

1 ey B 13 e
oTH ANOWRISTRITTRE cosPTIn ACTON
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Materiality Assessment

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Impact on Material Topics
Business

ESG
Classification

Mapping with the
Integrated Report

Importance to SDG
Stakeholders

Business Ethics Governance Report on Very high
- Corporate Governance
o
I Corporate Governance Governance Very high
§ Governance Framework
>
Cybersecurity and Governance Social and Relationship Capital; Very high
Data Privacy Intellectual Capital
Product Quality and  Social Manufactured Capital High
Safety
Human Capital Social Human Capital High
Development
Enhancing Social Social and Relationship Capital High
Accessibility of
Medicines
Climate Change Environment Natural Capital High '3(}
16 e
i
Talent Attraction Social Human Capital High
and Retention
)
T Human Rights Social Human Capital High
Occupational Social Human Capital High
Health and Safety
Supply Chain Social Social and Relationship Capital High
Management
Circular Economy Environment Natural Capital High
Risk Management Governance Risk Management High
Community Social Social and Relationship Capital High
Development
Innovation and Social Intellectual Capital Medium
£ Research
3
g Promoting Diversity  Social Human Capital Medium
=
Policy Advocacy Governance Social and Relationship Capital Medium
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Mapping
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ESG at Glenmark

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

ESG AT

Glenmark

Glenmark has recognized the need for purposeful action on ESG issues to
achieve our strategic ambitions as well as drive long-term value creation. The
materiality assessment was a key step in defining our ESG agenda. Our ESG
strategy, prioritises issues identified in the materiality assessment to ensure
targeted, impactful, and positive outcomes across all aspects of our business.

Our Sustainability Ambitions and Targets

We have arrived at our
sustainability targets through a
rigorous and deliberate series

of steps. The stakeholder
identification and assessments that
we undertook played an important
role in establishing our materiality
matrix. The materiality assessments
have helped us determine our
overarching strategic priorities,
which were then translated into
targets that apply across the
organization.

Become carbon neutral
enterprise by 2030 (covers
Scope 1and 2 emissions only)

Achieve water neutral operations
by the year 2025

Zero waste to landfill at all our
plant locations by the year 2027

Approved SBTi target to reduce
absolute Scope 1and 2 GHG
emissions by 35% till FY 2035
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Our employees, senior
management, Board members
and investors participated in and
contributed to our materiality
surveys, which significantly
helped create ownership towards
these goals across departments.
These goals will be rigorously
monitored and updated based on
the Company’s performance in
achieving them.

Social

Successfully launched 16
global safety programs by
2023

Aspire to impact 3 million
lives by 2025

Continued focus on gender
equality and diversification

For our environmental initiatives,
we are committed to set emission
reduction targets based on climate
science through the Science Based
Targets initiative (SBTi). These have
been approved by SBTi.

Governance

Maintain an ethical business
culture to drive robust
governance practises beyond
compliance

Maintain product quality and
ensure transparency
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ESG at Glenmark

Environmental
Consciousness

Socially
Inclusive

G

Ethlcal
Governance

LCIimate Action
LWater Management

LWaste Management

Strategic focus areas

1Jmployee wellbeing
and development

2_Product safety, quality,
and accessibility

3_Community

development

4_Promoting

innovation

Strategic focus areas

LResponsibIe Supply
Chain Management

2_Risk Management
3_Business ethics

4_Digita| transformation

» Monitor usage and conserve energy

» Decarbonize operations and reduce
Green House Gas (GHG) emissions

» Implement the 3R Principle
» Ensure water management

Promote co-processing of
hazardous waste

(S

» Integrate circular economy
principles into our operations

Strategic actions

Create learning and development
opportunities for employees

w

(]

Promote employee health and safety

(]

Promote workforce diversity and
commitment to Human Rights

Ensure availability of quality
products

w

(]

Expand market penetration and
access of affordable medicines

Enable access to healthcare and
community support programs

()

w

Enhance R&D capabilities and
undertake development of new
products, inventions, and patents

Strategic actions

& Implement Supplier sustainability
protocol and optimize supply chain

L]

Maintain robust Enterprise Risk
Management framework

& Capacity building on business ethics

()

Undertake digital transformation
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Forward Looking Strategy Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

FORWARD LOOKING

Strategy

We have established several key strategic priorities that are critical for
our success, and we are dedicated to achieving them as we continue
to innovate and grow our business.
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Forward Looking Strategy

Focus on
creating a global

RYALTRIS®

Global innovative
branded specialty
nasal spray

As of Q4 FY 2023, marketing
applications for RYALTRIS® have
been submitted in more than 70
countries; the product has been
commercialized in 27 markets.

commercialized in multiple
markets including the UK, the
Czech Republic, Poland, Italy,
Ireland, Denmark, Finland,
Sweden, Germany, Norway,
Austria, Belgium, France, and
Spain. Plan to launch in several
markets in FY 2024 and FY 2025.

RoW - The product is
commercialized in Australia,
Russia, South Africa, Ukraine,
Uzbekistan, Philippines, Peru,
Ecuador, Namibia, Botswana,

§ North America - Hikma, South Korea, Malaysia, and
Respiratory player Glenmark’s commercial Saudi Arabia, among others.
partner in the U.S., launched
Glenmark has a the product in the U.S. market % Grand Pharmaceutical (China)
strong presence in the in FY 2023. Bausch Health, _Co. Lt_d-, Glenm_ark’s.partner
) Glenmark’s partner in Canada, in Mainland China, aims
Respiratory segment launched RYALTRIS® in April to complete the ongoing
globally and the launch 2023. Phase 3 study in the country,
® and submit the marketing
of RYALTRIS® has fL{I’thGI’ § Europe - Marketing approval authorization application in the
cemented our position received in all EU markets second half of EY 2024.
in the market. and the UK. The product is
India Europe USA
& Glenmark is ranked No. 2 in & We plan to leverage our existing & Clinical trial ongoing for Flovent
the respiratory segment as per branded portfolio of Soprobec® pMDI; expect to file ANDA in
IQVIA MAT March 2023. (Beclamethasone MDI), Salmex FY 2024.
(Salmeterol/Fluticasone DPI),
& We have improved our ranking Tiogiva®/Tavulus® (Tiotropium & One more respiratory pMDI
in the respiratory segment from DPI) and RYALTRIS® under development in FY 2024.
6th in 2017 to 2nd in 2023 as (o|opatadine/ mometasone .
per IQVIA MAT March 2023. nasal spray) to further expand § Additionally, we plan to
) our presence in respiratory continue the momentum and
& Glenmark has 4 respiratory segment. file more respiratory products
brands in Top 300 brands in IPM beyond FY 2024.
as per IQVIA MAT March 2023. 6§ We filed 4 respiratory products
in Europe in FY 2023. We also
expanded our operations to ltaly
during the year.
RoW
& Leverage the launch of RYALTRIS® § The Respiratory portfolio remains the covered market of the chronic
in multiple markets in Asia, MEA the key contributor for Glenmark respiratory segment in Brazil as per
and LATAM to improve Glenmark’s in the LATAM markets. IQVIA MAT March 2023.
position in the respiratory segment.
& Glenmark Brazil achieved the § Glenmark has 2 brands amongst
§ Currently, Glenmark is ranked 2nd highest growth rate among the the top 10 products in Mexico’s
in the expectorant market in Russia Top 20 Companies in the covered allergic rhinitis market.
as per IQVIA MAT March 2023. market. ) )
& Glenmark is ranked 2nd in the
§ The Company maintained its rank covered market of the respiratory

amongst the top companies in

segment in Mexico.

67

| Corporate Overview

| Financial Statements | Statutory Reports



Forward Looking Strategy

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Continue to move

up the value chainin
complex generics and
innovative products

& Glenmark has been regularly
investing in complex generics
and innovative products, and
the global launch of RYALTRIS®
showcases the ability of the
Company to innovate and
launch complex products.

& The Company has a rich
pipeline of innovative products
in oncology, and would be
looking to monetize these
assets through licensing
deals with partners. Company
is planning to file multiple
complex respiratory products
in key markets such as the U.S.
and Europe.

Glenmark has already initiated
a clinical trial of pFlovent and
expects to file it in CY24.

()

Glenmark continues to target
Loss of Exclusivity (LOE)
opportunities in the U.S. in
complex products such as
inhalation, injectables and
other non-solid oral dosage
categories.

()

& The Company will further focus
on advancing the pipeline
of innovative products as
it considers Specialty and
Innovative segments to be the
primary growth drivers, going
forward.

& Glenmark’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Ichnos Sciences’
current pipeline has 4 clinical
stage assets with one out-
licensed asset.
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Continue to gain
market share in India
business

& Glenmark plans to continue
to outperform India’s
Pharmaceutical Market, while
maintaining a leadership
position across focused therapy
categories.

Glenmark aims to be in the top
10 players by revenue in the IPM
in a few years while maintaining
focus on key therapeutic

areas such as Dermatology,
Respiratory, Cardio-Vascular,
Oncology and Diabetes.

()

We continue to focus on
innovative product launches in
India and launched LOBG-M®,
Zita®-PioMet, ZITA® Pio, ZITA®-D,
Sitazit®, LOBG® and Sacu V™ in
Indian market during FY 2023.

()

& Glenmark is focusing on
enhancing a 360-degree
stakeholder management
approach with improved
doctor engagement, direct-to-
consumer outreach through
microsites and chatbots.

& Geographical expansion within
India, which will provide a
broader base to continue the
momentum.

Expand presence
in Europe and RoW
markets

¢ Glenmark has a large
pipeline of products across
therapeutic areas, which can be
commercialised in fast growing
markets.

()

Glenmark has been
continuously broadening its
base in RoOW markets such
as Asia, the Middle East, and
Africa.

& Glenmark would be leveraging
its existing portfolio and new
product launches to enter new
markets in key regions such as
Europe and Asia.
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Forward Looking Strategy

Monetise the innovation
portfolio through
licensing deals

& Glenmark has a strong track
record of partnerships, having
completed 8 out-licensing deals
till now with global pharma
companies such as Eli Lilly,
Merck, Sanofi, Almirall, among
others.

& The Company has a rich
pipeline of innovative products
in oncology, and would be
looking to monetize these
assets through licensing deals
with partners.

Expand API business
and leverage new
business opportunities

¢ Glenmark Life Sciences (GLS),
the APl arm of Glenmark, aims
to strengthen its presence in the
market through new product
launches, geographic expansion,
CDMO business, and specialty
business. The Company plans
to tap new markets and pursue
second source opportunities
with top generic players.

& GLS is also focusing on
expanding into complex API
platforms and developing
products in the iron compounds
and oncology space.

& Focus continues to remain
on enhancing operational
efficiencies through
debottlenecking, second
/ third generation process
adoption, backward integration,
adoption of flow chemistry in
manufacturing and pursing
alternate vendor development
(AVD) opportunities.

A
Sharper focus on free
cash generation

¢ We continue to focus on
increasing free cash generation
through growth in revenue and
profitability by keeping a tight
lens on capex (both tangible
and intangible) and R&D
expenses in the coming years.
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Forward Looking Strategy

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Continuous focus on
operational excellence
and efficiency

& We plan to improve operational
efficiency across our value
chain, from raw material and
packing material procurement,
manufacturing to supply of
finished formulations globally.

Our improved processes will
help to mitigate the increasing
input cost pressure and sustain
competitive margins across
markets.

()

& We plan to maintain best-in-
class manufacturing practises
across our facilities and ensure
industry-leading quality for all
our products.
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Focusing on
Sustainability

a. Committed to
Sustainability across all
our operations globally:

Environment

We are committed to drive
Environment, Health and Safety
initiatives across all our operations
globally:

& The EHS policy puts significant
emphasis on meeting and
exceeding EHS standards and
ensures adherence to statutory
requirements.

% We have launched several
initiatives for resource
efficiency, conservation of non-
renewable energy sources, and
reduction of green-house gases
from our operations.

w

We also guide and encourage
our contractors and suppliers to
follow EHS practises.

We are committed to reduce
35% of absolute scope 1and

2 GHG emissions by FY 2035.
We also aim to minimise scope
3 GHG emission intensity

(per ton of product) by 28%
from purchased goods and
services, fuel and energy
related activities, downstream
transportation and distribution,
and investments.

«w

Environmental Commitment
Roadmap:

Become

carbon
neutral

by 2030

Achieve

zero
waste

to landfill by 2027

Ensure

water
neutral

operations by 2025
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Forward Looking Strategy

b.

Employee Upliftment

Learning and development

$

Glenmark Learning Academy

- our online learning academy
provides access to a range of
career development, behavioral,
micro learning modules, specific
to an employee’s role.

Aspire Learning Management
System - our cloud-based
learning management system
provides a one-stop solution
for training our employees with
various blended solutions.

Virtual Development Centre

for India Formulation - by
introducing a development plan
for our internal talent, we have
reduced hiring cost by filling
69% of our positions internally.

Our commitment to human rights

$

()

We have identified five strategic
pillars towards integrating

the ethos of human rights
protection across our business
operations.

We undertook a human rights
assessment conducted by

a third-party independent
organization with expertise in
assessment and management of
human rights impact.

. Corporate Social Responsibility

Our vision is to enrich lives to create
a healthier, happier world. We

strive to implement practises and
strategies that generate long-lasting
positive impact on society and
create enduring economic and social
value for all our stakeholders. Our
commitment to creating sustainable
value reflects our dedication to
building a resilient and prosperous
future for everyone involved.

Glenmark also strategically designs
and monitors CSR activities to create
tangible benefits with initiatives

in education, employability and
community development to ensure
inclusive growth..
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Our Value Creation Model Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

OUR VALUE CREATION MODEL

Inputs PY Value Creation Approach

- Financial Capital ,@‘
Glenmark deploys financial resources to build capacity —
and capitalize on opportunities for long-term value

creation Vision Commitment
® Capital Expenditure (cash basis): ¥ 6,078 million
® R&D Expenditure: 12,500 million

@ Sustainability Linked Loans: 18,540 million leading, integrated, operations in a manner

® Equity Share Capital: ¥282.17 million research-led global that is ethical, transparent,
pharmaceutical proactive, environmentally
Company. conscious, and sensitive to

all its stakeholders.

To emerge as a Our philosophy is to conduct

@e Manufactured Capital

We have built state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities
designed to meet the needs of an evolving market

® 14 Manufacturing Facilities across 4 continents with v
the latest equipment Our Business

® Integration of digitalization interventions to \

enhance operational efficiency ( w
Q Intellectual Capital @

Innovation is a core strength for Glenmark; we

prioritize innovation to enhance our contributions Formulations Specialty and APl and CDMO

towards healthcare solutions Innovative products

® Robust R&D Pipeline

® 4 R&D facilities globally

® Investment in R&D at 9.6% of gross revenue

® 15,556 employees including 1200+ employees
engaged in R&D

o
o
wn
.
e Key Therapy
#3% Human Capital ) Areas
o2

QOur human resources drive shared organizational
objectives of innovation and commitment to safety
and quality

Total number of Employees: 15,556 Dermato\og\J

R&D team strength: 1200+

Robust performance management and rewards

0
cology

L+

learning and development to grow talent internally
and be a future-ready organization
Employee-centric policies and well-being initiatives
to boost employee engagement

Hours of training provided: 5,27,421

processes to build a meritorious culture
Focussed approach on talent management and

SOCia//y e

%Y social & Relationship Capital K¢,
L.
[
We prioritize building long-standing and mutually
beneficial relationships with all our stakeholders to
achieve our organizational objectives é)) Our Values
® CSR spend: 452 million O\?
® 96,900+ volunteer hours on CSR activities by 3 Achievement
7,200+ employees g
® Community and patient outreach initiatives =3
Q
Z

Q
(@)
=
e
Respect ;'7
o
NV Knowledge Q)

- Natural Capital

S
We are committed towards efficient utilization of @ ?I\O- é\t/ﬁ Co\)
natural resources and reduction of environmental ’O(/ Cal and AC
$

footprint
® Energy Consumption: 13,80,417 GJ

® Total water withdrawal: 7,93,465 KL

72
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Our Value Creation Model

SDG
Outputs PY Outcomes and Capital Impacted Alignment
® Revenue : ¥129,901 million ® Entered new geographies through product P9
® EBITDA: %22,784 million launches; among the leading companies in key = § doae
® Return on capital employed: 14% markets such as India, U.S. and Europe
® Return on equity: 11.9% (excluding a one-time ® Expanded state-of-the-art manufacturing

exceptional item)
® ~55% contribution to revenue coming from
branded markets®

capabilities and invested in new technologies

® Reinvested profits into research and
development to develop our innovative pipeline
of products

® Greater investment into workforce development i
® Investment into environmental sustainability
and accessing cheaper sources of financing -‘s”,’-
through sustainability linked loan
® Quality products across 25+ dosage forms ® Improved market coverage due to increased -
and multiple therapeutic categories capacity and stronger operational efficiencies Ao vt [ 9 SR
® Supply of products to several countries ® Improved workplace safety oo &

® Reduced EHS incidents due to effective
employee safety policies

® T151.7 million saved due to improved energy
efficiency

® 11 sites are ISO 14001 and I1SO 45001 certified
globally

® Expansion of market reach through strategic
partnerships with other companies

® Improved operational efficiency and reduced
energy consumption

® Developed capabilities to convert patents
and other intellectual assets into tangible,
marketable assets

@
&

® 1300+ patents and 1400+ inventions till date
8 ANDA applications approved by U.S. FDA in
FY 2023

New product launches across geographies

7 molecules in the innovation pipeline

8 out-licencing deals till date

Multiple “first in the world” and “first in
market” launches across regions such as
remogliflozin and RYALTRIS®

13% women represented across the workforce
33% women represented in the Board of
Directors

Glenmark (India) certified as ‘Great Place To
Work’

® Expanded the frontiers of healthcare research
by identifying and catering to unaddressed
gaps in the availability of treatment options

® Longer exclusivity and patent protection,
and limited competition in the specialty and
innvovative niche

® Enhanced manufacturing processes due to
through efficiencies and technology upgrades

® Increased institutional knowledge through in-
house R&D and research collaborations

Enhanced employee capabilities through
training and development programs across
divisions

Continued thrust on employee engagement by

N =
v ;

Rich pool of capable and diverse talent within prioritizing holistic employee care si”i;w“*'n" 10 =
the organization Continuous employee feedback through LS | @
Highly engaged and productive workforce various forums including employee
helping the organization to grow globally engagement survey

® 2.9 million lives positively impacted through ® Improved ability to identify critical market 10 Seviies - [ RGNS

CSR programs

® Several affordable medicines launched, making
healthcare more accessible

® Collaborations with other companies,
enhancing access of our products

® 6.2% of total energy consumption is from renewable

energy sources
® 11,92,996 KL of water saved till FY 2023®
® 7,840 MT of hazardous waste co-processed
in FY 2023
® Significant reduction in Scope 1; Glenmarks
targets validated by SBTi.
® 275,536 KL of treated wastewater recycled in
FY 2023
® 2,671 MT of plastic waste collected and channelized
® 6 of our facilities are having Zero Liquid Discharge
facilities

gaps through engagement with external
stakeholders

® Improved employee engagement through
volunteering and community outreach
initiatives

® Increased market penetration through industry
collaborations

® Improved supplier diversification leading to
derisking of the supply chain

® Improved sustainability outcomes through
stronger engagement with local communities

<

@
B

Al

1

Improved efficiencies in processes

Cost reduction due to improved efficiencies
Excellence in environmental stewardship
Improved employee engagement through
volunteering and community outreach initiatives
® Enhanced institutional knowledge on
environmental sustainability

R

.:..

11 seiscns Wl ) eosac

@ Includes revenue from India, Rest of the World (RoW) and a part of Europe, as of FY 2023

@ Against a base year of FY 2013
@ Data pertaining to Natural Capital is for India locations
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Governance Framework

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

GOVERNANCE

Framework

We recognize that building a strong institution requires a robust
governance framework. However, for us this takes on an added
significance as we prepare for our strategic realignment of moving
up the value chain from generics to branded generics towards having
specialty medicine from a larger share of our product mix.

Independent directors
comprise 67% of the Board,
which has a strong mix of
executive and non-executive
representation. The Board
embraces the importance
of diversity for long-term
success and ensures we
have an optimal mix of skills,
gender, industry experience,
geographic backgrounds
and age, which guarantees
that a range of perspectives
are incorporated into our
decision-making. These
considerations help ensure
effective oversight, ethical
decision-making, and long-
term sustainability in an
evolving landscape.

We have 7 Board level
committees monitoring

key focus areas. These
committees provide
guidance on strategic
decision making, evaluate
its effectiveness, review
corporate performance,
provide guidance on our risk
management strategy, and
oversee the implementation
of other policies.
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Governance Overview and Board Committees:

Shareholders

Board of Directors

(] [ ] [ J [}
Audit Nomination and Corporate Social Operations
Committee Remuneration Responsibility Committee
Committee Committee
[ J
Stakeholders ESG
Relationship Committee
Committee
[ J

Risk Management
Committee
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Governance Framework

Key Metrics

Board Diversity

® Male @ Female

Executive vs. Non Executive Directors

® Non Executive

® Executive

Independent vs. Non Independent Directors

33% 67%
()

® Independent ® Non independent

Board Effectiveness

In alignment with global best practises for ensuring
strong internal controls and governance standards,
our Board of Directors are also subject to evaluation.

The criteria used to assess their performance are
described below:

@ Composition and structure

@ Effectiveness of Board meetings, processes,
information flow and coordination with executive
management

@ Individually, Directors are evaluated as per their:
1. Contribution to the Board and Board Committee
meetings

2. Preparation on the issues to be discussed

3. Number of meetings attended as well as the
nature of their contributions.

Shareholding Pattern (as of 31st March 2023)

Our shareholding structure is relatively dispersed with
over 53% of public shareholding, allowing increased
market depth and enhanced liquidity that enables
share price discovery in a fair manner.

Shareholding Pattern (% of Equity)
(as of 31st March 2023)

7.44%

18.02%

5.43%

22.46%

® Promoters @ Foreign Portfolio Investors

® Mutual Funds @ Resident Individuals

Others
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Risk Management Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

RISK

Management

At Glenmark, a strong risk management framework helps to identify potential
risks, calculate their probability of occurrence, and gauge the impact on our
business. It also enables us to formulate action plans that can effectively
mitigate the most severe consequences and enable greater agility and
efficiency of our businesses and manufacturing operations.

The identification of potential risks, assessing their potential impact, and formulating mitigation strategies

is particularly important as we move up the value chain. This transition involves a shift from producing and
marketing widely available, low-cost drugs to developing and distributing high-value, niche medications. As we
move up the value chain, the change in product focus comes with new challenges and uncertainties that require
effective management to ensure the Company’s success.
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Outlined below are some of the key risks

Risk associated with R&D not always being able to deliver
Commercially Successful Products

Risk

Development of a new product has a long gestation period and has an uncertain outcome. There can
be potential failures at any stage of the research process such as manufacturing difficulties, efficacy
and safety concerns, erosion of patent coverage or its infringement, lack of regulatory approval and/or
limited commercial success. Difficulty in gaining regulatory approval, a failure to develop commercially
successful products or to develop additional uses for existing products for any of these reasons could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s revenues.

@® 'mpact

Since R&D requires significant financial investments, it can lead to losses impacting profitability and
shareholder value. Significant product innovations, technological advancements or the intensification
of price competition by competitors may materially and adversely affect the Company’s revenues.

Mitigation

Instead of following the traditional hierarchical R&D business model, the Company’s R&D business model
is based on smaller units in an attempt to encourage greater entrepreneurialism and accountability for
its scientists. Moreover, we plan to continue collaborating with other pharmaceutical companies, which
enable sharing of risks, availability of technical expertise and decrease in the time taken for developing
new products. We also implement a thorough screening and conduct rigorous research to select target
products, keeping in mind its scientific relevance,, future demand, and financial risks associated with it.

@ Risk of Disruptions in the Supply Chain

Risk

Pharmaceutical products require a high degree of compliance with manufacturing practise
regulations and our entire supply chain is subject to review and approval from various regulatory
agencies. The supply chain is made of multiple links spanning the Company’s in-house manufacturing
facilities and external suppliers - each link is a potential point of vulnerability in the supply chain.

©® impact

Compliance failures could lead to product recalls and seizures, interruption of production,
delays in the approval of new products, and revoking of license to operate pending resolution of
manufacturing issues.

Mitigation

Although the Company undertakes business continuity planning, single sourcing creates a larger exposure,
which is why diversification of the supply chain is the potential mitigation strategy in the event of potential
disruptions. The Company closely monitors the delivery of its products. Safety stocks and backup supply
arrangements for high revenue and critical products are in place to help mitigate this risk. The standing of
manufacturing external suppliers are also routinely monitored in order to identify and manage supply base
risks. The Company has set up new manufacturing facilities / upgraded the existing facilities, which can
continue the manufacturing operations in case of interruption of operations of a certain facility. The Company
while filing for product approvals with various regulatory authorities registers multiple manufacturing sites.
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Risk Management Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Risk of Revenue Concentration

@ -risk

Geographic or product-wise revenue concentrations may eventually lead to a decline in the revenue
on account of a declining phase in the product life cycle and increasing competition. Failure to have
adequate market penetration or early movers’ advantage may affect long-term growth and market share.

@® 'mpact

Heavy revenue concentration from a limited number of products can make a Company highly
vulnerable to the loss of patent protection, competition from generic versions, or regulatory issues.
Additionally, factors such as changes in healthcare policies, pricing pressures, or shifts in patient
preferences can impact the sale of specific drugs, affecting the Company’s overall revenue stream.

Mitigation
Since the need for products of a particular therapeutic segment/category varies across geographies,
we have a product development strategy which enables us to deliver the desired product in a timely

manner so as to replace the products at the end of the life cycle or enable the Company to penetrate
new markets.

External Risks - Natural Disasters, Political Events and
Economic Fluctuations

@ risk

We operate in a complex environment, which can pose significant business risks. Developed economies
are facing a decline in asset prices, liquidity problems and limited availability of credit, while certain
geographies in the emerging markets have seen currency devaluations. Some countries have imposed
restrictions on imports as well as the remittances outside the country. There is also an increased
susceptibility to natural disasters across operating locations, which impacts our value chain.

. Impact

These risks could have a significant business impact, including disruptions in the delivery of products,
challenges in meeting financial commitments and exposure to currency risks that could erode profits.

Mitigation

The diversity of our portfolio and geographic footprint assists in mitigating the impact of our
exposure to specific localized risks. External uncertainties are carefully considered when developing
our long-term strategy. The Company leverages market tools to manage its currency risk exposure.
We have also conducted Climate Risk Assessment to analyze physical and transition risk across our
manufacturing facilities and have taken appropriate mitigation measures by diversifying our supplier
base.
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Risks associated with Inadequate Cyber Security and Data Privacy
Measures

Risk

Disruption to IT systems, due to malicious attacks, non-compliance with data privacy laws is a potential
area of vulnerability across the global value chain.

Impact

Depending on the nature of the attack, this compromise of patient or individual privacy, violates
intellectual property rights, leads to financial loss, business disruption, or damage to our reputation.

Mitigation

We are focused on building a strong cyber security infrastructure, fostering a risk-aware culture
that can anticipate and prevent attacks, and effectively respond to security breaches. We undertake
compliance with data privacy laws through gap analysis to identify existing weaknesses, policy and
procedure roll-outs and create awareness amongst employees on applicable privacy requirements.
Other measures include securing suitable insurance cover.

Risk associated with Inferior Product Quality

Risk

As a leading name in the pharmaceutical industry, it is our responsibility to ensure the safety of our
people who use our products. The Company has to make sure that all stakeholders - contractors and
suppliers - comply with quality standards to retain the trust of our customers. With the emergence
of new products and foray into different markets, the Company has to set up checks across the
manufacturing, labeling and supply of products.

Impact

Failure to ensure product quality could have far reaching implications in terms of the health of our
patients and customers, reputation, regulatory, legal, and financial consequences for the Company.
Beyond this there could be reputation damage, as well as regulatory, legal and financial implications.

Mitigation

The Company has adopted a central Quality Management System (having the relevant ISO
accreditation) to define the quality standards across all business units from research and manufacturing
to supply and distribution. This end-to-end applicability of quality management throughout the
lifecycle of the product helps ensure quality performance and operational compliance. The Head of
Quality Assurance maintains oversight of the activities through Quality Council meetings, which serve
as a forum to escalate emerging risks. The Company has implemented strict audit mechanisms for
third-party suppliers that provide materials for our products.
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Risk Management Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Risk of Sub-Optimal Product Pricing

@ -risk

The Company may fail to secure adequate pricing for its products and/or existing pricing laws and
regulations may become more unfavorable. Due to changes in the market regime. To maintain a
sustainably profitable demand-supply equilibrium, the Company has to keep up with latest pricing laws
and regulations. Since pharmaceutical products are directly subject to differing price control pressures
and government restrictions, it is important to establish a Company-specific model that serves to
maintain harmony across geographic locations.

‘ Impact

Pricing mechanisms differ across locations. As the market for products expand, current and
upcoming price control measures and restrictions impact the product differently in various
geographies. Hence, the Company has to assess the impact to keep the product pipeline profitable.

Mitigation
The Company has to optimize product costs to ensure the optimum margins and explore growth
opportunities in new markets. Strategy-led capacity development is expected to maximize the value

of our portfolio. The Company makes conscious efforts to launch new value added products and
improvises products which can fetch better pricing.

Risk of Product Liability Litigation

Risk
Notwithstanding the efforts we take to determine the safety of our products through regulated clinical

trials, unanticipated side effects may become evident only when drugs are widely introduced into the
marketplace.

©® impact

Product liability litigation can result in reputational damage, eroding consumer trust, and confidence in the
brand. It can significantly impact the balance sheet considering the legal expenses, settlements, and recalls.
Furthermore, the Company can face regulatory scrutiny and increased compliance requirements, leading to
additional costs and potential penalties.

Mitigation

Besides rigorous testing and quality control, clear and comprehensive warnings, instructions, and labels
with the product can help reduce the likelihood of accidents and misuse.
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= Risk associated with Non-Compliance in Financial Reporting and
o) Disclosure, and Changes to Accounting Standards

@ -risk

The financial performance of the Company is consolidated and disclosed publicly, based on the accounting
standards and rules laid down by official bodies like the Indian Accounting Standards and IFRS.

' Impact

The Company has to abide by the accounting standards and disclosure standards to avoid non-
compliance with regulatory requirements. Changes brought in the accounting system could result
in changes to the recognition of income and expense that may materially and adversely affect the
Company'’s financial results.

Mitigation

The Company abides by latest financial reporting requirements and collaborates with the
external auditors and advisors to ensure adherence to relevant reporting requirements.

Risk of Non-Compliance with International Laws and Regulations

Risk

The Company is liable to comply with laws and regulations in different countries owing to its global
operations. Regulatory controls across different stages of product development affect the pricing,
growth and success of the product and in turn, the Company. The Company must keep up with the trans-
boundary legal and regulatory requirements to ensure the sustainability of its business operations.

. Impact

The conduct and reputation of the Company rests on its ability to maneuver complex and differing
interpretations of government mandates in different geographic locations. Stringent requirements,
like those of the U.S. and EU standards, pose a heightened risk to product approvals by regulators
and can lead to changes in product portfolios and increase the incidence of product recalls and
liability lawsuits. Hence, the impact on revenue generation is high and needs to be contained.
Marketing practises also have to be kept in check due to increasing regulatory scrutiny associated
with product advertising and promotion.

Mitigation

The Company’s internal control framework has implemented several mechanisms to monitor and
support compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Company’s Head of Regulatory
Affairs ensures adherence to internal standards to avoid any regulatory infringements. The senior
management is responsible for ensuring adherence to best practises, policies, and principles of
medical science. Additionally, the Company abides by changing regulatory requirements across
various geographies.
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Risk Management Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Risk of Anti-Bribery and Corruption Legislation

Risk

Glenmark operates in markets perceived as high risk, according to the Global Corruption Barometer, a survey
conducted by Transparency International. The enforcement of anti-corruption laws and regulations remains a
priority in many countries. The inability of Glenmark or our Business Partners to comply with applicable Anti-
Bribery & Anti-Corruption (ABAC) laws, and any consequent regulatory actions, fines or significant litigation,
could impact our business.

‘ Impact

Failure to prevent bribery and corruption may compromise Glenmark’s ability to supply its products under
certain government contracts. It may also cause reputation damage for the Company and its senior leaders
and might erode investor confidence.

Mitigation

In 2022, we launched our new Code of Conduct and ABAC policy to reiterate our commitment to zero
tolerance of bribery and corruption. We expect our employees and Business Partners to meet ABAC
standards and to comply with the ABAC policy. We have also improved mandatory ABAC training for all
employees, and provide role and risk-tailored ABAC training on an ongoing basis to those in high-risk roles or
geographic regions.

Risk of Potential Litigation

Risk

Government investigations and litigations may have an adverse impact on the Company’s business
activities. The Company must comply with all applicable region-specific laws and rules within the
jurisdictional boundaries of its business. The Company has to conduct business in a manner that does
not raise any questions about current and past business developments.

‘ Impact

A gap in regulatory adherence due to different geographic jurisdictions or even plain oversight may harm the
product’s quality and safety. The Company has to account for unanticipated risks even after clinical trials to
ensure the safety of the product and avoid the risk of litigation after the product is sold in the market.

Mitigation
The Company strives to minimise disputes and reduce the number of incidents that may proceed to
litigation.

The Company has formalized processes for proactive risk/dispute management. It aims to drive a more
standardized practise for the early resolution of disputes and the legal team also routinely trains the
Company’s employees on strategies to attempt to minimize the Company’s litigation exposure.
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% Risk of Non-Compliance with Tax Laws

Risk

The Company’s business model must stay viable amidst the changing tax laws and practises. The

tax rates of the Company are influenced and determined by tax rates in other jurisdictions as well.
Deductions and concessions vary across geographies and the Company’s transfer pricing mechanism
becomes an inherent tax risk.

Impact

While conducting international business, the Company must pay special attention to tax laws governing
mechanisms like transfer pricing, foreign dividends, controlled companies, R&D tax credits, taxation of
intellectual property or a restriction in tax relief allowed on the interest on intra-company debt to keep
their tax rate in check and avoid any adverse impact on the business. The Company has to maneuver
tax liability arising at the time of financial disclosure and can only be resolved when audited by tax
authorities. Hence, the Company has to meet the uncertainty of tax liabilities by adhering to statutory
timelines and requirements. Resolving disputes through formal appeals and other legal proceedings, as
is done in the worst-case scenario, is a burden on the Company.

Mitigation

The Company has a policy to submit the tax returns within a stipulated time frame and engage with
tax authorities to resolve issues quickly. The Company has advisors and legal counsel to review tax
legislation and applicability to avoid legal action. The Company continuously monitors changes in tax
policies in the key jurisdictions to deal proactively with any potential changes in tax law.

Risk of Non-Compliance with EHS and Sustainability Laws

Risk

The applicable environmental laws have to be adhered to minimize the resultant risk of paying
remediation costs.

Impact

The impact of violating environmental laws extends far beyond the business onto the people and the
natural environment. Such an infringement is a violation of stakeholder expectation and regulatory
requirements.

Mitigation

The Company has embedded its EHS risk management framework across its operations and
employment practises to create a work culture suitable and equal for all people. The Company
operates rigorous procedures to eliminate hazards where practicable and protect employees’ health
and well-being. The Company actively manages its environmental remediation obligations to ensure
practises are environmentally sustainable and compliant.
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Financial
Capital

We believe that financial capital forms the

foundation of our operations, enabling us to invest
in research and development, manufacturing
capabilities, and the commercialization of innovative

healthcare solutions.

This section provides an overview of how

our organization's financial capital interacts

and intertwines with other forms of capital to
drive sustainable value creation. It covers our
financial performance, highlighting key financial
indicators, revenue growth, profitability, and our
commitment to delivering long-term value for
our shareholders. We strive to invest in business
lines that generate healthy returns and create
long-term economic value, in accordance with
various stakeholder expectations, including

a proportionate allocation of funds to other
capitals for ensuring effective and efficient use
of both financial and non-financial resources.

Contribution to SDGs

DEGENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, NOVATION
ECONOMIC GROWTH ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

o
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Focus Areas Material Topics

€ Stakeholder value creation % Innovation and research

& Economic performance € Risk management

€ Sustainable profitability € Enhancing accessibility of medicines
% Enhanced free cash flow generation

Interlinkages with other capitals

(2

Social & Relationship Capital Human Capital

Invested ¥ 452 million for CSR Investment in employee trainings

activities and skill upgradation
|
Nz
& s
N\ [
Natural Capital ‘ Manufactured Capital
Investment in environmentally ¥ 6,078 million of capital
sustainable solutions expenditure (cash basis)

Intellectual Capital

$12,500 million invested in R&D

Highlights for FY 2023

21,29,901 million 222,784 million

Revenue from operations up EBITDA
5.6% YoY

Mapping with NGRBC Principles:

& Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is
ethical, transparent, and accountable.

€ Principle 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development.
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Financial Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

We firmly believe that creating
economic value for our
stakeholders goes beyond simply
generating wealth. It involves
transparent distribution of the
wealth to serve the larger interest
of socio-economic growth

and development, not only for
Glenmark but collectively for all
our stakeholders including our
employees, customers, vendors
and suppliers, and society at
large. We are committed to
conducting our business ethically
and in accordance with regulatory
requirements.

The distribution of wealth takes
various forms and involves
different stakeholder groups.
We fulfill our obligations by
paying taxes to governments,
which contribute to the overall
development of society and the
countries in which we operate.
Financial returns are also provided
to our investors, acknowledging
their trust and support for our
business.
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We also recognize the importance
of investing in employee well-

being initiatives and development
programs that empower and
support our workforce. Furthermore,
we actively engage with our
suppliers and ensure fair payments
for their goods and services,

recognizing their contribution to our
business operations.

We aim to create economic value
that is transparently distributed
to benefit a wide range of
stakeholders and contribute

to the overall growth and
development of society.

Economic Value Creation (In ¥ million)

Particulars FY 2023 FY 2022
Direct economic Value generated (a) 133,069 124,716
Revenues 129,901 123,049
Other Income 3,168 1,667
Economic Value distributed (b) 116,891 108,229
Operating costs @ 78,856 74,948
Employee benefits 27,810 24,474
Payment to providers of capital @ 4,863 3,907
Payment to Government ©® 4,91 4,476
Community Investments ¢ 452 423
Economic Value retained (a-b) 16,178 16,487

1. Excluding one-time exceptional item, depreciation, CSR expenses

2. Finance cost and dividend
3. Current tax and deferred tax
4. CSR spend
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Financial Capital

Revenue from operations
and Other income

We are a globally diversified
and organically built business
with a commercial presence in
80+ countries. We are pleased
to report that as of March

2023, we are the 14th largest’
pharmaceutical Company and
the fastest growing in the Indian
Pharmaceutical Market. We are
the 15th largest? generic Company
by prescriptions filed in the U.S.
Our strong performance during
the reporting period is a direct
conseqguence of our end-to-end
capabilities across R&D and
manufacturing.

Glenmark’s consolidated revenue
from operations for the year ended
31st March 2023 was 129,901
million compared to ¥ 123,049
million for the previous reporting
year, indicating an overall YoY
growth of 5.6%. Approximately
55% contribution® to revenue was
recorded from branded markets.

Our revenues have experienced
steady growth, driven by successful
product launches, expanded
market presence, and strategic
partnerships. The growth during
the year was driven by Europe and
RoW markets. In FY 2023, we also
experienced a strong recovery in
our North American business.

Going ahead, we remain focused
on optimizing our cost structure
and improving operational
efficiency to ensure sustainable
profitability.

'As per IQVIA MAT March 2023

RYALTRIS®, our first global
specialty brand, has continued

to be a revenue driver over the
course of the reporting period.
With its launch in 27 new markets,
the drug has contributed to our
overall margin profile. While
RYALTRIS® marks our foray

into specialty markets, it has
strengthened our conviction for
increasing the share of branded
products in our overall product
mix in order to further improve our
profitability and financial position.
Accordingly, we are directing

our efforts towards developing
and launching new drugs and
formulations as candidates for
global brands in line with our
evolving strategic focus.

Revenue from operations
(in ¥ million)

1,23,049 129,901

109,439 |

2021 2022 2023

Earnings Before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortization
(EBITDA)

The Company reported Earnings
Before Interest Tax Depreciation
and Amortization (EBITDA) of

% 22,784 million. Rising costs
across the value chain were

the leading reason for a lower
EBITDA in the reporting year.
To counteract the effects of
escalating costs in the coming
years, the Company continues
to focus on cost reduction
initiatives, boost the topline
through new launches, and
improve efficiency. We are
proactively working towards
building robust growth in sales
across various markets and
increasing global specialty
revenues. The Company has
committed to deepening its
global presence and delivering
quality affordable products in
new markets.

Profit After Tax (PAT)

Profit after tax (PAT) for the year
was % 3,774 million (FY 2022:
%9,936 million). This decline can
be attributed primarily to an
exceptional item during the year,
details of which are elaborated

in the notes to the financial
statements for the year. Despite
the lower profits, we maintained
our commitment to financial
stability, strategic investments,
and delivering long-term value

to our shareholders. We have
implemented cost management
measures and taken steps to
mitigate future risks. Our focus
remains on optimizing operational
efficiency, exploring growth
opportunities, and driving
sustainable profitability. Through
disciplined financial management
and a proactive approach to

risk mitigation, we strive to
restore and enhance profitability,
delivering sustainable returns for
our shareholders.

2As per IQVIA MAT March 2023; includes generics and branded generics, Rx only (excludes OTC)

3Includes revenue from India, Rest of the World (RoW) and a part of Europe, as of FY 2023
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Financial Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Debt Utilization and Servicing

We carefully consider and
selectively utilize debt to support
our growth and operational
requirements. We recognize that
prudent debt management plays
a significant role in maintaining

a healthy capital structure and
facilitating investments in research
and development, manufacturing
capabilities, and market expansion.
We maintain strong relationships
with reputable financial institutions
and diligently manage our debt
portfolio to optimize interest

rates and repayment terms. In

the reporting year, our net debt
amounted to 329,047 million.

One of our key objectives for

the upcoming year is to enhance
free cash generation for debt
reduction.

By effectively managing our
debt, we aim to strike a balance
between leveraging financial
resources for strategic initiatives
and maintaining financial stability,
ultimately supporting our ability
to deliver innovative healthcare
solutions and create sustainable
value for our stakeholders.

Credit ratings of Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals Limited

€ S&P Global has affirmed long-
term Rating as ‘BB’, Outlook
‘Stable’.

)

Fitch Ratings has affirmed
long-term Issuer Default Rating
(IDR) as ‘BB’, Outlook ‘Stable’

€ CRISIL has affirmed long-term
Rating as ‘AA-‘ and revised
Outlook to ‘Stable’ from
‘Positive’. short-term Rating
reaffirmed as Al+.

)

India Ratings and Research
(Ind-Ra) has affirmed long-
term Rating as ‘AA-‘ and
revised Outlook to ‘Stable’ from
‘Positive’. short-term Rating
affirmed at Al+.

Sustainable Finance

We recognize that integrating
ESG objectives into our business
practises not only aligns with
our values but also generates
long-term cost benefits. We
have made strategic investments

88

in sustainable initiatives that
contribute to our ESG goals
while driving operational
efficiency and cost savings.

For instance, by implementing
energy-efficient technologies and
optimizing our manufacturing
processes, we reduce our
environmental footprint while
lowering energy consumption
and associated costs. Similarly,
our commitment to responsible
waste management and recycling
initiatives not only promotes
environmental stewardship but
also reduces waste disposal
expenses. Furthermore,
investments in employee well-
being and development programs
foster a motivated workforce,
leading to increased productivity
and reduced employee turnover.
These ESG investments not only
contribute to a more sustainable
and responsible business model
but also generate tangible cost
benefits, enhancing our financial
performance and ensuring
long-term value creation for our
shareholders.

In the past year, we successfully
secured a sustainability linked
loan (SLL) totaling US$ 228
million, a first for an Indian
pharmaceutical Company. This
serves as a testament to our
unwavering dedication towards
promoting sustainable business
practises and aligning with our
overarching objective.
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Financial Capital

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure plays a
vital role in our commitment

to innovation, operational
excellence, and sustainable
growth. We strategically
allocate financial resources to
invest in our manufacturing
infrastructure, research and
development capabilities, and
technological advancements.
These capital investments

are aimed at enhancing our
production capacity, improving
efficiency, and ensuring the
highest standards of safety,
health, and quality across our
operations. Through continuous
maintenance and upgrading of our

facilities, we position ourselves

to meet the evolving needs of
the pharmaceutical industry and
the demands of our customers.
Our capital expenditure initiatives
are guided by a comprehensive
assessment of market trends,
regulatory requirements, and the
long-term strategic objectives of
the Company.

Capex (Cash basis)
(in ¥ million)

7748 7,901

In FY 2023, our capital expenditure
(cash basis) amounted to

6,078 million. These investments
play a vital role in reinforcing our
strategic objectives of, expanding
into untapped markets, leveraging
growth opportunities in emerging
markets, ensuring uninterrupted
business operations, and fostering

6,078

the development of pioneering
and innovative products.

2021 2022

17
ﬂ‘t

I
{
)

2023
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Financial Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

R&D Investments

We recognize that continued
investment in R&D is crucial for
innovation and the development
of new therapies. We have
allocated a significant portion of
our financial resources to R&D
activities, supporting our pipeline
of promising drug candidates

and breakthrough technologies.
These investments underscore our
commitment to advancing medical
science and addressing unmet
medical needs while also furthering
our ambitions of growing in
branded markets.

In FY 2023, our total R&D
expenditure stood at 12,500
million of which, we invested
36,833 million in our innovation
driven Company, Ichnos.

This spending is directed at
developing complex products,
specialty products, generic
products, and APIs. Over the last
few years, we have been focusing
on right-sizing and optimizing
our spending on R&D for both
innovation and core business
operations. Furthermore, we
prioritize enhancing the efficiency
and productivity of our R&D
operations to ensure the swift
introduction of new products,

to position us ahead of our
competitors.

R&D Investments

13,000
12,787

T Ts0o
12,458

12,800
12,600
12,400
12,200
12,000
11,800

11,600

16.0%

14.0%
13.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%

2021 2022 2023

™ R&D Investments (in ¥ million)

- R&D Investments as % of
turnover
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Financial Capital

Dividends

We are pleased to inform our
shareholders that our Board of
Directors has recommended a
dividend for the reporting period,
reflecting our commitment

to delivering value to our
shareholders. In line with our
Dividend Distribution Policy,

the Board has recommended

a Dividend of 250% (X 2.5 per
equity share of €1 each) to be
appropriated from the profits of
the year 2022-23 subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM). The dividend, if approved,
will result in an outflow of ¥705.42
million. Despite the challenges
faced, we have diligently managed
our financial resources and
maintained a strong financial
position. The proposed dividend
is a testament to our confidence
in the Company's long-term
prospects and the resilience of
our business model. We recognize
the importance of providing
returns to our shareholders

and appreciate their continued
support. By striking a balance
between reinvesting in growth

initiatives and returning capital to
shareholders, we aim to ensure
sustainable value creation and
reward our shareholders for their
trust and investment in

our Company.

Tax Strategy

The Company recognizes the
importance of tax in society and
national development and sees
tax responsibility as an important
part of its contribution to national
resources and its long-term
sustainability.

Our tax approach has been
conservative and cautious with
our tax policy designed to ensure
that we comply with tax laws
and regulations applicable to

our business. The Company aims
to engage with tax authorities

in to resolve tax disputes, if any.
Applicable details on income tax,
deferred tax, custom, excise tax,
Goods and Services Tax, etc. are
provided in the financial statements
and the notes thereon.

Our Tax policy, uploaded on

the Company website, further
explains our approach to tax, tax
governance and relationship with
tax authorities.

Financial Outlook

Looking ahead, we are optimistic
about our financial prospects

and continue to pursue growth
opportunities, both organically and
through strategic partnerships.
We are committed to maintaining
financial discipline, optimizing
operational efficiency, and
delivering sustainable value to our
shareholders while addressing the
evolving needs of patients and the
healthcare industry.

Our strong financial performance,
investments in R&D and
manufacturing capabilities,
effective risk management, and
commitment to shareholder value
position Glenmark for continued
growth and success in a dynamic
pharmaceutical landscape.
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Manufactured
Capital

We are committed to manufacturing high-
quality pharmaceutical products, including
APIs and formulations, that meet global
regulatory standards and contribute to
improving patient health outcomes. Our
state-of-the-art facilities spread across 4
continents enable us to maintain a reliable
supply of safe and effective medicines for
patients in over 80 countries.

As we continue to move up the value chain

and increase the proportion of specialty,

complex, branded medicines in our product s ——
. . . AND WELL-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH

mix, we are enhancing our manufacturing M

capabilities. These include the development we ﬂ'

of infrastructure, for strengthening

Contribution to SDGs

processes, quality control, regulatory T | () B
/ANDPRODUCTION
compliance, supply chain management, & m

packaging, and expertise.
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Manufactured Capital

Focus Areas

Customer centricity

4
# Digitization of operations
4

Material Topics

# Product quality and safety

# Supply chain management

Ensure customers get high quality products on time

Interlinkages with other capitals

Social & Relationship Capital

Delivery of high quality products
ensuring patient satisfaction

Ny |

J

>/
_QQ_
Natural Capital

Improved operational efficiency,
leading to reduced emissions and
energy consumption

Highlights for FY 2023

79%

of sites certified with ISO 14001 - Environmental

G20

Human Capital

Improved safety performance and
reduced EHS incidents due to
effective employee safety policies

o

Intellectual Capital

Digitalization of Quality
Management Systems and
implementation of eBMR and eBPR

N\ 4
Financial Capital

Increased revenues and market
coverage from increased
operational efficiencies across
25+ dosage forms and multiple
therapeutic categories

6,078 million

cash capex

Management System and ISO 45001 - Occupational

Health and Safety Management System

Mapping with NGRBC Principles

¢p
Zp

rinciple 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe.

rinciple 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner.
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Manufactured Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

94

State-of-the-art
manufacturing facilities

14

[ |
manufacturing facilities

4

continents

|
U.S. FDA approved facilities

Our manufacturing capabilities
serve as the cornerstone of

our operations at Glenmark.

With state-of-the-art facilities,
advanced technologies, a strong
focus on quality and efficiency,
and an integrated value chain, we
are able to consistently deliver
high-quality pharmaceutical
products to meet the evolving
needs of patients worldwide. This
section provides an overview of
our manufacturing capabilities,
highlighting our commitment

to excellence in production
processes, our dedication to
technological advancements, and
our unwavering focus on adhering
to stringent regulatory standards.
Through our manufacturing
prowess, we strive to ensure the
availability and accessibility of
safe and effective medications
that contribute to the well-being
and quality of life of patients
across the globe.
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Manufactured Capital

Expansion of capacities

We have invested in expanding
our manufacturing capacity to
meet the growing demand for our
products as well as to enter new
and emerging markets.

Through ongoing capacity
enhancements and process
optimizations, and targeted
investments, we endeavor to
improve our manufacturing
capacity, launch new products in
the domestic and international
markets, and ensure an
uninterrupted supply of medicines.

API Plant, Ankleshwar, India

In the reporting year, we undertook some key projects in our
formulations business, including the following:

Expansion of the OSD line at our
Indore plant to accommodate
new products. The SSD area
expansion has enabled us

to deliver the critical market
requirements.

Commissioning of a new nasal
spray line to increase capacity
at our Baddi plant.

Installation of a new MDI line
and OSD capsule area at our
Aurangabad plant. Additionally,
we completed the qualification
of a new propellant ISO tank.

Implementation of several
initiatives to support the
production capacity increase at
our Pilar plant.

Our API business in GLS has also undertaken several strategic
initiatives towards capacity expansion.

GLS plans to begin work on

a new manufacturing facility
in Solapur, India with a
capacity of 1,000 KL for the
manufacture of generic APlIs
from FY 2024. The new facility
will also provide a platform
for the growth of the CDMO
business and add capacity for
the generic API business.

API manufacturing capabilities
were enhanced at GLS by
adding new blocks at the
existing facilities at Ankleshwar
and Dahej during FY 2023

by an aggregate annual total
installed capacity of 640 KL. This
additional production capacity
will help further expand the
generic API production and
grow the oncology product
pipeline.

©

Operational Efficiency

We continuously strive to optimize
our processes, enhance resource
utilization, and drive productivity
improvements across our
operations by improving overall
efficiency.

By implementing lean
manufacturing principles, advanced

process controls, and continuous
improvement initiatives, we aim

to maximize efficiency while
maintaining the highest quality
standards. Our focus on operational
efficiency enables us to streamline
workflows, minimize waste, and
reduce lead times, resulting

in cost savings and enhanced
responsiveness to market demands.
This involves directing our focus
towards implementing capacity
improvement initiatives, increasing
batch sizes wherever necessary.

Through the adoption of innovative
technologies, automation, and
data-driven decision-making, we
continually seek opportunities

to drive operational excellence
and exceed the expectations of
our stakeholders. By prioritizing
operational efficiency, we

are committed to delivering
pharmaceutical products in a
timely and cost-effective manner,
ultimately benefiting patients,
health care providers, and the
health care system as a whole.
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Manufactured Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Initiatives undertaken to enhance operational
efficiency in the reporting year

? Focus on enhancing productivity KPIs such as
productivity per person, cost per unit, energy
index.

? Upgrading manufacturing equipment as per 21 CFR
part 11 requirements.

# Utility and machine performance evaluation
system at the Nashik plant involving online data
generation and evaluation of statistics to enhance
machine uptimes.

? Implementation of a program with focus on
identification of high-impact projects, cross-
functional team formation and Green Belt Training
and certification for project champions. The plants
also continued to focus on enhancing batch sizes
and yield and implementing technological and
machinery upgrades.

Operational efficiency initiatives undertaken

by GLS include
Optimization of

Solvent recovery and
recycling batch size

Current technology for
better exercise

Green chemistry and
effluent reduction

Utilization of new
downstream equipment
for filtration or drying
techniques

Backward integration
into Intermediates and
Key Starting Materials

Yield improvement
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Training for Operational Efficiency

In order to ensure a continuous improvement of our
operational efficiency we provide comprehensive and
targeted training programs that enhance the skills,
knowledge, and capabilities of our workforce. Through
ongoing training initiatives, we foster a culture of
continuous improvement, innovation, and professional
development, positioning our employees and our
organization for long-term success.

? Training conducted on Lean and Six Sigma
Principles, Green Belt Certification, Kaizen, GEMBA,
and Continuous Improvements approaches.

? Training conducted about general pharmaceutical
awareness, production process, and utilities
involved in production.

? Digital learning system implementation for internal
training launched at our Pilar site.

? Employee development training for managing time
and change.
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Inventory management

Efficient inventory management
is a crucial aspect of our
manufactured capital at
Glenmark. We understand the
importance of maintaining
optimal inventory levels to
meet customer demand while
minimizing holding costs and
the risk of stockouts. Our
comprehensive inventory
management practises enable
us to strike the right balance
between ensuring product
availability and controlling
inventory carrying costs. Through
the use of advanced forecasting
techniques, demand planning,
and supply chain analytics, we
strive to accurately anticipate
market needs and align our
inventory levels accordingly.

We also employ state-of-the-art
inventory tracking systems that
provide visibility into stock levels,
expiration dates, and product
rotation, ensuring the integrity
and quality of our pharmaceutical
inventory. By continuously
optimizing our inventory
management processes, we can
enhance operational efficiency,
reduce waste, and ultimately
deliver timely and reliable
pharmaceutical products to our
customers and patients in need.

s
H =l
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Sustainability adopted in our manufacturing processes

We recognize the importance of environmental sustainability in our
manufacturing operations. Our facilities adhere to environmentally
responsible practises, such as energy-efficient operations, waste
reduction, and recycling initiatives. We continuously monitor and
optimize our resource consumption to minimize our ecological
footprint and contribute to a sustainable future.

The following Indian and international sites of Glenmark are certified
with ISO 14001- Environmental Management System and ISO 45001-
Occupational Health and Safety Management System.

GPL India sites GPL international GLS sites
with certifications sites with individual
certification
# Nashik #  Vysoké Myto ? Dahej
# Nalagarh Z  Pilar # Ankleshwar
¢ Baddi
€ Sikkim
? Goa
The Natural Capital section covers
¢ Indore further details on initiatives undertaken
at manufacturing plants to fulfill
# Aurangabad sustainability objectives.

Digitization and Automation

We recognize the transformative
power of automation and
digitization in revolutionizing

the manufacturing landscape.
This section highlights our
efforts to leverage cutting-edge
technologies and digital solutions
to optimize our manufacturing

processes, enhance operational
efficiency, and deliver high-
quality pharmaceutical products
to patients worldwide. By
embracing automation and
digitization, we aim to streamline
workflows, reduce human error,
and improve the speed and
accuracy of our operations.
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Manufactured Capital

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Through our investments in data
analytics, software solutions
and training programs, we have
been able to achieve greater
precision, scalability, and agility
in meeting the evolving demands
of the healthcare industry. By
harnessing the potential of
automation and digitization, we
are paving the way for a future
where innovation and efficiency
intersect, ultimately benefitting
patients and improving global
healthcare outcomes.

©

Product Quality and Safety

Our commitment to product
quality and safety lies at the
heart of everything we do.

We understand the profound
impact that our pharmaceutical
products have on patients’ lives,
and are attentive in ensuring
that each product consistently
meets the highest standards of
quality, efficacy, and safety. We
employ a multi-faceted approach
that combines cutting-edge
technology, stringent regulatory
compliance, and a culture of
continuous improvement to
safeguard the well-being of
patients and uphold the trust
placed in our products. By
prioritizing product quality and
safety, we endeavor to make

a meaningful difference in the
lives of patients and healthcare
providers worldwide.
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Key Digitalization projects initiated at Glenmark

? Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS), TrackWise:
Electronic system for maintaining Quality Management System
(QMS) modules namely, change control, deviation, incidents, Out
Of Specification (O0S), Out Of Trend (OOT), Corrective Action and
Preventive Action (CAPA), market complaints, audit management,
supplier management and risk assessment.

? Electronic Batch Record System (eBMR) and Warehouse Automation:
Electronic Log books for Instrument usage, Column Usage and
Chemical / Reagent in Quality Control Lab.

? Quality Dashboard in Tableau: A digital platform to enable an effective
and focused view about all the quality events of the organization

? eBMR for Batch Manufacturing Record (BMR) and Batch Packaging
Record (BPR), Logbooks, and Checklist.

? Upgrading of Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) / Supervisory
Control And Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems.
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Quality Management Systems

Our robust Quality Management
System (QMS) serves as the
cornerstone of our commitment
to excellence, ensuring that
every single product meets the
strictest regulatory requirements
and exceeds the expectations

of patients and health care
professionals. Through our QMS,
we foster a culture of continuous
improvement, proactive risk
management, and adherence

to industry best practises,
underscoring our unwavering
dedication to patient safety, and
the delivery of exceptional health
care solutions.

Our quality management support
operations for pre-clinical,
clinical, and pharmacovigilance
are governed as per regulations
and quality standards for

Good Clinical Practises, Good
Laboratory Practises and Good
Pharmacovigilance Practises.

The quality systems at our

sites are based on local drug
regulations and regulatory
requirements, and employ
systems and processes like
change management systems,
documentation and investigation
of deviations, incidences, OOS,
OOT, implementing corrective and
preventive actions, investigating
market complaints, analysis

of trends of results of testing,
create and implement standard
operating procedures, perform
validations and qualifications,
continued process verification,
release of materials (raw material,
packaging material, finished
products), conduct internal audits
to ensure all time readiness for
external audits, risk assessment
and risk management.

In the reporting year, we
implemented our Compliance
Sustainability Plan which
focuses on

$

b)) -

-

=

-

N »

Enhancing Leadership
Capability

Global Harmonization and
Simplification of Procedures

Strengthening of Internal Audit
Program

Strengthening of Quality
Management Review and
Escalation Process

Implementation of Global
Investigation Framework

Comprehensive Product
Review

Digitalization

Enhancing of Data Integrity
and Reliability Procedures

We believe that quality is
everyone’s responsibility. Quality
is ingrained in our systems,
services, employees, and products
through the implementation

of a comprehensive quality
management system.

The Company’s quality
organization structure and
functions are designed to ensure
that the crucial elements of
patient centricity, management
oversight, innovation and
continuous improvement, and
adherence to regulation are
upheld throughout the Company.
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Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Audit Readiness

We recognize the importance of
maintaining strong audit readiness
within our manufacturing
operations. Our efforts are
consistently aligned with ensuring
transparency, accountability, and
regulatory compliance throughout
our processes. By proactively
establishing robust internal
controls, rigorous documentation
practises, and comprehensive
quality assurance measures, to
meet regulatory requirements and
demonstrate our commitment to
earning the trust of regulatory
authorities, stakeholders, and the
patients who rely on our products.

During the reporting year, a

total of 21 internal audits and

43 regulatory Inspections by
various regulatory bodies across
geographies were conducted

in the facilities of GPL. Five
regulatory audits were completed
in GLS.

100

Pharmacovigilance (PV)

Patient safety is at the core

of Glenmark’s mission, and

our robust pharmacovigilance
practises play a pivotal role in
ensuring the ongoing evaluation
and management of the safety
profile of our pharmaceutical
products. Through proactive
surveillance, timely reporting,

and collaboration with health
care professionals and regulatory
authorities, we uphold the highest
standards in drug safety. Our
pharmacovigilance efforts provide
reliable information to health care
providers and empower patients
to make informed treatment
decisions. We are dedicated

to ensuring the well-being and
upholding the trust of patients
who rely on our medications.

In FY 2023, Glenmark was
inspected by 2 Drug regulatory
authorities namely MHRA and
INVIMA. The inspection concluded
with no critical findings. The
Company completed 2 PV surveys
for the Dutch authority and
ANMAT Argentina. Glenmark
operates in multiple geographies
and abides by local PV regulations
and global PV regulations like
EMEA, MHRA, USFDA, Health
Canada, TGA, etc.
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Initiatives to strengthen PV
undertaken in FY 2023

# A mandatory annual PV
refresher training was rolled
out in 9 local languages
(including new additions
of Slovakia and Ukraine) in
addition to English with a
training completion rate of over
92% globally.

D)

For adverse events reported
during the year, the Company
has ensured that they are
processed and reported in a
timely manner to respective
regulatory authorities. The
consolidated data is used to
evaluate the risk and benefit
profile of products through
various PV activities such as
signal detection, aggregate
report, and risk management
plans (RMPs) with relevant
risk minimization measures as
appropriate.

-

To ensure compliance

with regulatory authority
requirements and Glenmark's
compliance with PV policy

and internal standards, the PV
department undergoes various
types of internal audits such

as global system, local affiliate,
partner, and vendor audits. In
FY 2023, there were a total of
25 PV audits covering various
geographical regions, partners,
services providers, internal

PV functions, and Glenmark
departments. Glenmark PV
systems were also audited by
2 business partners to evaluate
PV performance as committed
in the Safety Data Exchange
agreement. All the audits had
a successful outcome and
relevant CAPAs implemented
with a timely CAPA closure rate
of 100%.

Glenmark has PV SOPs in place
to monitor adverse effects and
follows global and country-
specific PV regulations to
report the adverse effect as
per defined timelines to drug
regulatory authorities. Audits:
Country offices and global PV
departments are periodically
audited based on risk
assessment by the independent
auditing department at
Glenmark. PV department also
undergoes audits from partners
collaborating with Glenmark in
reference to the PV agreement
or safety data exchange
agreements.

Glenmark has a common
mailbox as well as country-
specific phone numbers /
mailboxes for local consumers
and patients that can be used
as a communication mechanism
for reporting product concerns.
There is a dedicated team that
monitors the call center number
and common mailboxes.

The well-defined process for
receiving safety information,
databasing, analyzing, and
communicating ensures the
timely resolution of all relevant
safety concerns around the
world.

Additionally, Glenmark’s

PV Corporate Governance
System provides consistent,
transparent, and timely,
decision-making and escalation
platforms for operational,
product safety, product quality,
and compliance issues.

By leveraging our strong
manufactured capital,
Glenmark aims to meet the
health care needs of patients
worldwide, while ensuring the
highest standards of quality,
sustainability, and compliance
throughout our manufacturing
operations.

Our Awards

L4

" IHW Award =
\I for Most \’
Innovative Pharma
‘ Manufacturer of the

Year

‘ - -
- . -
- Grefen Triangle “
Safety Award
y ~/
by Inspectorate of
\’ Factories & Boilers,

-

" OHS Awards =
\I Gold Category by \’

Grow Care India
(Indore site)

L 4

@ Gold Category by
Grow Care India
(Nalagarh site)
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Social &
Relationship
Capital

At Glenmark, we believe our success is measured
not only by our financial performance but also

by our impact on society and our relationships
with key stakeholders. This section highlights our
commitment to social and relationship capital,
focusing on the ways in which we contribute to the
well-being of patients, collaborate with healthcare
professionals and industry partners, and engage
with communities.

As part of our strategic effort to move up the

value chain we are cognizant of the importance of Contribution to SDGs
nurturing deep and synergistic relationships with

the healthcare industry and our communities. Over 150 . s
the years, we believe we have developed crucial Sy

partnerships and support mechanisms for the L - _Mf'
manufacturing and delivery of specialty medicines o _— —
and will continue to strengthen these relationships Ll SHTATON EIOME RONTH

in the coming years. Ml E ﬁ/‘
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Focus Areas

Material Topics

Enhancing Accessibility of Medicines

V
1\ 4

Financial Capital

Increased market penetration
through industry collaborations

@

Intellectual Capital

Identification of critical market

[ 1 Empowering communities through CSR initiatives 1
[ 1 Responsible supply chain % Innovation and Research
¢ Community Development
g Supply Chain Management
[ Policy Advocacy
Interlinkages with other capitals
...
'-‘ . .///
. 0 & So
Human Capital é{\\ c,
96,900+ volunteering hours by § /0
7,200+ employees - @. )
R U =
° 3
< <
T ] [ ) ()
- °
Manufactured Capital ‘
Procurement from domestic !,
suppli -&-
ppliers Q’

Natural Capital

Key suppliers evaluated through
self-assessment against Glenmark’s
ESG Supplier protocol

Highlights for FY 2023

Improved accessibility of medicines
through the launch of affordable
drugs such as Sacu V™

SITAZIT® and its variants

2.9 million

lives impacted through CSR
initiatives

Mapping with NGRBC Principles

gaps through engagement
with patients and health care
professionals

International collaborations to
launch RYALTRIS® in new markets

& Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe.

& Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all their stakeholders.

% Principle 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development.

& Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner.
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Stakeholder Dialogue and Engagement

We value the perspectives and inputs of our stakeholders and maintain an ongoing dialogue through various
channels, including regular communication, surveys, and stakeholder consultations. By actively seeking and
integrating stakeholder feedback, we ensure that our decisions and strategies align with their expectations and
contribute to long-term sustainable development. This is particularly relevant for our Company, in light of our
strategic priorities going forward.

Our relationships with stakeholders, including investors, employees, and suppliers are characterized by open
dialogue, collaboration, and shared values. By fostering these strong relationships, we create an environment of
trust, accountability, and shared responsibility.

Our key stakeholders

% Ppatients % Governments and regulators
¢ Customers 1 Suppliers and vendors

% Healthcare professionals % Communities

% Shareholders and investors ¢ Employees

¢ Channel partners ¢ Senior management

Read more about our Stakeholder Engagement practises in the Stakeholder Engagement
section of this report. Details on the Grievance Mechanism for stakeholder complaints are
covered in entry 23 of the Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report (BRSR).

104



Annual Report 2023

Social & Relationship Capital

Relationship with Customers

Patient Engagement

We recognize that patients are

at the heart of everything we do.

Our patient-centric approach is
demonstrated through our initiatives
to improve patient outcomes,
enhance access to healthcare, and
empower individuals to take control
of their health. By engaging with
patients through disease awareness
campaigns, educational programs,
and support initiatives, we aim to
create a positive impact on their lives
and ensure that our products address
their specific needs.

Our customer feedback mechanisms
enable us to listen to their needs and
continually improve our products
and services. By prioritizing patient
centricity, we make every effort to
empower individuals to take charge
of their health and make informed
decisions regarding their treatment.

Accessibility and availability of medicines

Ensuring the accessibility and availability of medicines is of utmost importance to Glenmark. We work diligently
to minimize barriers that hinder access, including affordability and geographical constraints. By undertaking
pricing strategies that consider affordability, support generic competition, and encourage investments in
research and development for unmet needs, we aim to improve the availability and accessibility of life-saving

medications, to ensure better health outcomes for all.

[ 4 Launched India’s first Indacaterol +

Mometasone Fixed-Dose Combination (FDC)

Drug for Asthma

Respiratory is a key focus area for Glenmark
and the Company is an industry leader in

providing access to the latest treatment options
to patients. The novel fixed-dose combination
Indamet®, is the first-of-its-kind in India and
offers a world-class, affordable treatment option
to both adults and adolescents over the age of
12 years, suffering from uncontrolled asthma.

Launch of India’s first triple Fixed-Dose
Combination of Teneligliptin + Pioglitazone
+ Metformin for adults with Type 2 diabetes
and high insulin resistance

Glenmark has a strong legacy of bringing in new,
effective, and affordable treatment options for
diabetic patients, particularly for patients with
uncontrolled Type 2 diabetes. The launch of

this FDC in India is significant considering the
prevalence of high insulin resistance in India,
which is 38% compared to the global incidence
of 15%. Zita® PioMet is novel triple FDC that will
help improve glycemic control among adults
with High HbAlci and high insulin resistance.
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[4 Launched Sitagliptin and its Fixed-Dose
Combinations at an affordable price for
adults with Type 2 diabetes in India

The launch of Glenmark’s SITAZIT® and its
variants will play an instrumental role in
improving the accessibility of sitagliptin to type-
2 diabetic patients. The Company has launched
8 different combinations of sitagliptin based
drugs under the brand name SITAZIT® and its
variants at an affordable price. The molecule is
considered the gold standard in DPP4 inhibitor
therapy. These medicines have a low risk of
hypoglycemia, provide beta cell protection, offer
cardio-renal benefits, and are safe for patients
with kidney or liver conditions as well as senior
citizens.

Furthermore, since Type 2 diabetes is chronic in
nature, and patients in India are often required
to bear the cost of therapy on their own, the
affordable price of the drug is a major factor
that impacts treatment adherence. Glenmark’s
sitagliptin and its FDCs are priced at around
one-third of cost of its innovator brand in India.

[1 Launch of Sacu V™, a Fixed-Dose
Combination of Sacubitril + Valsartan,
making heart failure treatment more
affordable in India

Heart failure is growing in India at an alarming
rate with its prevalence at around 1% and
affecting around 8-10 million individuals.
With the launch of Sacu V™, Glenmark is
proud to offer an advanced and affordable
treatment option that has reduced the

risk of cardiovascular-related deaths and
hospitalizations for patients with chronic
heart failure. It has also improved symptoms
associated with heart failure with reduced
ejection fraction (HFrEF).
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Patient Outreach Campaigns

As a responsible pharmaceutical Company, we
recognize the importance of outreach campaigns in
ensuring the widespread awareness of our products.
Our knowledge-sharing initiatives are designed to
reach healthcare professionals, patients, and the
broader public; enabling them to make informed
decisions about their healthcare needs. Through
targeted strategies, educational campaigns, and
partnerships with healthcare organizations, we aim
to promote the benefits and appropriate use of our
medications. Our outreach efforts extend to digital
platforms, conferences, and community events,
allowing us to engage with stakeholders and provide
valuable resources and information. By leveraging
innovative marketing techniques and fostering
meaningful relationships, we strive to enhance access
to our products, empower patients, and contribute to
better health outcomes for all.

o
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Coughology- A dedicated website and an
awareness drive on the art and science of
navigating through the cough quagmire was

launched for patients and healthcare professionals.

The initiative won Ascoril°LS the Pharmarack
Awacs Marketing excellence Award and Pronto
Consult Silver Impact Award Based on Market
Insights.

L)

Hypertension Awareness Month in India-
Conducted in partnership with more than 8,000
hospitals and clinics in 50 cities across the
country, the drive facilitated 110 hypertension
public awareness rallies and 8,000+
hypertension screening camps. We were able
to reach out to over 1.2 million adults through
multiple channels including our digital platform:
www.bpincontrol.in.

L)

Take Charge at 18- The initiative aimed to
increase awareness on Blood Pressure ailments
and was able to reach over 120 million Indians
and screened over 3.5 million Indians. The
initiative won the Best innovation in Marketing
Economic Times award and the Best Patient
Support Integrated Health Council award.

-

Public Hypertension Awareness Campaigns-
As part of the World Heart Month, we conducted
campaigns aimed at increasing patient
awareness about heart disease. Around 300
rallies and over 8,000 screening camps for
hypertension were conducted. We partnered
with more than 8,000 doctors and 10,000
healthcare professionals from 42 cities across
the country; with the target of reaching more
than 10 crore Indians.

Product labeling

Labeling is one of the most visible components
of a healthcare product It allows users to

check relevant information and also aids
treatment decisions. Glenmark thus ensures

the highest level of compliance with labeling
regulations, which are quintessential for the safe
use of pharmaceutical products. All labeling
regulations are diligently followed and comply
with the applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements.

There were no cases of non-compliance
concerning the health and safety impact of the
products or product information and labeling.

Client Relationship Management

Glenmark is a global Company, with clients
across diverse geographies and cultures.

To keep pace with our global client base,

we are implementing CRM systems in our
business operations. This enables employees
to leverage digital solutions for better
integration of customer engagement,
technology tools, and business models,
among others.

Relationship with Health Care Professionals

Our relationship with health care professionals are
built on trust, transparency, and mutual respect.

We value the expertise of medical professionals

and work with them to develop safe and effective
healthcare solutions. Through scientific partnerships,
continuous medical education programs, and

in adherence to compliance guidelines,

we promote the highest standards of

ethical conduct and responsible

health care practises.
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Social & Relationship Capital Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Industry Collaborations

At Glenmark, we believe in the power of collaboration to drive innovation and create a positive impact on the
industry. We consistently seek opportunities to collaborate with industry partners, research institutions, and
industry associations to advance scientific knowledge, develop breakthrough therapies, and improve patient
care. These collaborations enable us to leverage diverse expertise, share best practises, and collectively
tackle complex healthcare challenges. By fostering an ecosystem of collaboration, we strive to contribute

to the advancement of healthcare, the enhancement of patient outcomes, and to shaping the future of the
pharmaceutical industry. Through these collaborative efforts, we aim to drive meaningful change and create
value for all stakeholders involved.

Partnerships during the year

RYALTRIS® signaled a new era for Glenmark Pharmaceuticals, bringing the first innovative specialty
pharmaceutical to the global marketplace. We are developing our robust relationships with key partners
such as Bausch, Hikma, and Menarini, to name a few, while supporting their commercialization efforts and
success with RYALTRIS®.

Launch of Launch of RYALTRIS® Exclusive Distribution Agreement
RYALTRIS® in the in Canada in with Cediprof in the United

U.S. in partnership partnership with States for U.S. FDA Approved
with Hikma Bausch Health Dextroamphetamine Saccharate,

Amphetamine Aspartate,
Dextroamphetamine Sulfate, and
Amphetamine Sulfate Tablets

In August 2022, Hikma With the approval In March 2023, Glenmark entered
Pharmaceuticals PLC, received from Health into an exclusive supply and

the multinational Canada, Bausch Health distribution agreement with Cediprof,
pharmaceutical Companies Inc. and Inc. (a part of the Neolpharma
Company and Glenmark Specialty S.A,, Pharmaceutical Group family of
Glenmark Specialty a subsidiary of Glenmark companies) for Cediprof’s FDA-

S.A., a subsidiary Pharmaceuticals Ltd. have approved Dextroamphetamine

of Glenmark made RYALTRIS® available Saccharate, Amphetamine Aspartate,
Pharmaceuticals Ltd. to Canadians, providing Dextroamphetamine Sulfate and
announced the launch an innovative therapy Amphetamine Sulfate Tablets (Mixed
of Glenmark’s novel option for seasonal Salts of a Single Entity Amphetamine
drug RYALTRIS® in the allergic rhinitis (SAR). Product), 5 mg, 10 mg, 15 mg, 20 mg,
United States, making RYALTRIS® is a fixed-dose and 30 mg, the generic version of

it our first globally combination therapy that Adderall®1 Tablets, 5 mg, 10 mg, 15 mg,
branded specialty provides relief from the 20 mg, and 30 mg, of Teva Women’s
product marketed in symptoms of SAR, both Health, Inc.

the U.S.. nasal and ocular, in one

The tablets are prescribed in large
numbers in the United States and the
partnership with Cediprof and Neol will
help alleviate its shortage in the U.S..

easy-to-use nasal spray.
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Industry Associations

As an active member of industry
associations, Glenmark plays a vital
role in advocating for public interest
and promoting the advancement
of the pharmaceutical sector. We
regularly engage in collaborative
efforts with these associations,
participating in discussions, sharing
expertise, and contributing to

the development of policies and
initiatives that benefit the industry
and society as a whole.

Engagement with Regulators

Within the social and relationship
capital framework, Glenmark
places significant emphasis

on maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with regulatory
authorities to ensure compliance,
prioritize patient safety, and
uphold the highest standards
of quality in our products.

We proactively communicate
with regulatory bodies, such

as the U.S FDA, European
Medicines Agency (EMA),

and local health authorities,

to stay updated on evolving
regulations, seek guidance,

and participate in regulatory
discussions. This collaborative
approach allows us to align

our operations with regulatory
requirements, streamline approval
processes, and contribute to
the development of robust
regulatory frameworks. By
fostering transparent and
constructive relationships with
regulators, we demonstrate our
commitment to patient safety,
regulatory compliance, and the
responsible development and
commercialization of innovative
healthcare solutions.

and Industry (FICCI)

Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce

Indian Pharmaceutical Alliance (IPA)

Indian Drug Manufacturers’ Association (IDMA)

Pharmaceuticals Export Promotion Council (PHARMEXCIL)

Federation of Pharma Entrepreneurs (FOPE)

Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry (BCCI)

Supply Chain Excellence

Our strong supply chain
management ensures the timely
delivery of products to patients
worldwide. We have established
reliable relationships with
suppliers, contract manufacturers,
and logistics partners to maintain
a seamless flow of materials and
finished products. We prioritize
supply chain resilience, risk
mitigation, and ethical sourcing
practises to guarantee the
integrity of our supply chain.
Given the scale and geographical

@ National Regional

spread of our operations, our
supply chain network traverses
over 50 countries. A dedicated
governance structure, including
the supply chain and demand
planning teams, ensure the
smooth functioning of related
activities.

Additionally, we have made
concerted efforts at streamlining
our procurement processes and
diversifying our supply chain to
mitigate risks of disruption and
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ensure business continuity. We are
actively working towards ensuring
alternate vendor development

to reduce supply chain
concentration and promote local
sourcing channels. In FY 2023,
Glenmark (standalone) procured
approximately 75-80% of its raw
material from local/domestic
suppliers.

We follow a comprehensive
supplier assessment while
selecting and monitoring our
suppliers. The criteria used

in these assessments include
the environmental impact of
supplier operations, health

and safety practises, human
rights requirements, and
ethical responsibilities. Our
supplier sustainability protocol
adheres to the principles of the
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain
Initiative (PSCI) and helps us
capture crucial information
pertaining to the performance
and operations of our suppliers.

Furthermore, our Supplier Code of
Conduct sets out our expectations
from vendors and suppliers

with regard to regulatory and

ESG requirements. These are
frequently communicated through
awareness programs conducted
onsite for specific topics or
updates such as the plastic waste
management rule, conditions of
contractor EHS agreements, etc.

As part of our ongoing
engagement with suppliers, we
also request all our GPL India
suppliers i.e. 100% suppliers to
participate in a self-assessment
and ensure that our critical
suppliers are further evaluated
through third-party appraisals
conducted virtually or onsite.

As of the reporting period, we
have completed the third party

1no

ESG assessment of fourteen
suppliers and are targeting to
undertake a third-party ESG
assessment of our top 50
suppliers by FY 2026. Based
on their results, suppliers are
categorized as follows-

€ Steward

Suppliers that showcase best
practises by going beyond
systems and compliance

¢ Implementer
Suppliers have adequate
systems in place

¢ Beginner

Suppliers require
establishment of robust
systems to enable effective
ESG management

In FY 2023, 23 new raw material
suppliers and 27 new packaging
material suppliers were assessed.
There were zero observed cases

of significant actual and potential
negative environmental and social
impacts with our suppliers during FY
2023

Data Protection and Privacy

We place great emphasis on the
protection of stakeholder data
and privacy. Our commitment to
data privacy is unwavering, as
we understand the importance
of maintaining the trust placed
in us by patients and other
stakeholders. In the reporting
year, we undertook targeted
efforts to strengthen our

data governance structure by
appointing a Chief Data Privacy
Officer, Deputy Data Privacy
Officer and formed a dedicated
Data Privacy Advisory Committee.
Meetings of the Committee are

held quarterly. We have a Data
Privacy Policy and Data Privacy
Charter in place to ensure data
security. Additionally, as part of
our Information Security Incident
Management systems, our 24x7 IT
Security team monitors, analyzes,
investigates, and remediates any
IT security events as per SOP
recommendations.

At Glenmark, we constantly strive
to safeguard our business assets,
including our employee data. Our
Code of Conduct and Information
Security Policy clearly spells out
employee responsibilities and
any violation thereof would lead
to disciplinary action. Employees
are also provided with periodic

IT Security Awareness training
programs. During the year, there
were no reported cases of breach
of customer privacy or loss of
customer data.

We comply with applicable

data protection regulations,

viz. General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR) and the
California Consumer Protection
Act (CCPA) to ensure robust data
protection measures are in place.
In order to comply with GDPR
for cross border data transfer,
we have Standard Contractual
Clauses (SCC) between Data
Controller, Data Processor and
Data Sub-Processor.

Technological solutions to
improve our security posture and
support data privacy norms are
being implemented on a continual
basis. We are also in the process
of working towards ISO 27001
certification in the upcoming year.
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Community Engagement

Strengthening Community Resilience: Building a Foundation for Sustainable Growth

At Glenmark, our vision is to
create a healthier, happier

world. We strive to implement
practises and strategies that
create a lasting impact on
society and create enduring
economic and social value

for all our stakeholders. Our
commitment to create sustainable
value reflects our dedication

to building a resilient and
prosperous future for everyone
involved. To achieve this, we

rely on strong partnerships with
stakeholders and implementation

agencies, including the ‘Glenmark
Foundation,” ‘Glenmark Aquatic
Foundation,” various NGOs,
government bodies, academia,
and multi-lateral organizations.
Our community-focused initiatives
are driven by a robust CSR
governance system. This system
is guided by our well-defined CSR
philosophy, policy, vision, mission,
and key focus areas. We evaluate
and document the progress of
our initiatives through a digital
dashboard, which enhances

the value-driven outcomes we

Board level CSR committee

deliver to communities. To ensure
accountability and transparency,
we submit progress reports to the
CSR Committee of the Board on

a quarterly basis. This dedicated
committee undertakes stringent
reviews and ensures the effective
implementation of all our CSR
programs, thus amplifying the
positive impact we strive to make.
In FY 2023, we did not identify
any actual or potential negative
impact on local communities.

Positive developmental outcomes

CSR strategy
and goals in line
with the SDGs
and national
developmental
priorities

areas

Child and
maternal health

Disaster relief and

Need assessment
Q in the identified

O

@

Strategy to enable sustainability of intervention,
community handover and exit

Interventional Monitoring, Impact
design and evaluation and O assessment
rollout reporting studies

@

©

Education and
community development

= Our focus ivi
({ )= Glenmark Joy of Giving
access to healthcare areas @
Sustainable livelihood Aquatic sports
and skill development a P
“54) Our Vision 6 Our Mission

Enriching lives to create a
healthier and happier world.

L L B I )

L L B )

To focus on child health and reduce infant and child mortality

To empower the marginalized by generating sustainable livelihood

To promote aquatic sports and place India on the global map

To provide access to healthcare through medicine donation and other
health initiatives/projects for the less privileged

To support the advancement of education

To encourage employee volunteering across all our locations

To provide disaster relief to affected areas

m
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Fostering Social Transformation: Glenmark’s Commitment to Sustainable Community Development

At Glenmark, we are driven by
our commitment to generate

a positive impact on the
communities we serve. We
firmly believe in conducting
our operations ethically and
sustainably, while ensuring the
well-being of all stakeholders
and prioritizing the upliftment
of the underprivileged segments
of society. To bring about

this positive change, we have
implemented a range of CSR
initiatives in alignment with our

22,00,000+

lives impacted
through child health
interventions over the

2,49,000+

key focus areas. These focus
areas encompass crucial aspects
such as health and sanitation,
livelihood and skill building,
education, promotion of sports,
disaster relief, and access to
healthcare and water. These
initiatives are guided by our
comprehensive CSR Policy, which
provides a strategic framework
for our activities. Through our
commitment to ethical practises,
sustainable operations, and
targeted CSR initiatives, we are

determined to make a positive
and lasting difference in the lives
of individuals and communities,
to foster a more inclusive society
for all.

2.9 million

lives impacted through our CSR
initiatives

55+

Glenmark locations
across 33 countries
participated

7,200+

employee volunteers

years

Outreach to
3,330,000+

children through nutrition,
immunization, and sanitation
interventions

Provided sustenance to

42,000+

malnourished children

78,000+

individuals assisted
through disaster
relief interventions

n2

pregnant & lactating
women served
through various
interventions

96,900+

hours of voluntary service offered
by our employees over the years

7,000+

youth trained
to improve their
employment
prospects

Our
Sphere of
Impact

25,600+

differently abled
individuals provided
rehabilitation
support

4,200+

swimmers trained and 326+
medals accrued through
Glenmark Aguatic Foundation
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Child and Maternal Health

Glenmark Foundation, the CSR arm of Glenmark Pharmaceuticals and Glenmark
Life Sciences, is committed to improving child health and reducing infant and
child mortality. With our overarching theme of 'Healthier Children, Healthier
World’, we have developed a comprehensive 360° child health strategy.
Through our flagship initiative, Project Kavach, we are making tangible progress
towards realizing our vision. Project Kavach focuses on maternal and child
health interventions in several states of India, including Himachal Pradesh,
Sikkim, Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, and Maharashtra. Our initiatives focus on
promoting positive health-seeking behaviors among pregnant and lactating
women, raising awareness about proper nutrition and hygiene practises, and
ensuring access to essential healthcare services.

In Himachal Pradesh, our project
is designed to enhance access

to primary healthcare and
promote the uptake of curative
and preventive health services.
Through our Mobile Medical Units
(MMUs), we extend immunization,
general OPD services, antenatal
and postnatal care. We also
engage in institutionalized
awareness-building activities

to strengthen the community’s
positive health-seeking behavior.
The Reproductive and Child
Health (RCH) center at Baddi

in partnership with the Health
Department of Solan district and
our NGO partner, further bolsters
the healthcare infrastructure to
better serve the community. Our
interventions have resulted in 92%
of mothers confirming antenatal
care (ANC) registration at
government hospitals/sub-centers,
with the remaining 8% registering
at RCH centers. Additionally, we
distributed over 1000 hygiene kits
to children in 10 schools through
this intervention.
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In Sikkim, we have been providing
healthcare facilities in the East
Sikkim district through 'Health

on Wheels' (HoW), a mobile
healthcare unit. HOW conducts
regular health checkups, camps,
and awareness programs for
children to ensure their well-being.
Furthermore, we distribute free
medicines and collaborate with
government officials to enhance
on-ground coverage of our
initiatives. We provide complete
immunization for children under
six years of age and transport
facilities for serious pediatric
patients and emergency cases

to nearby hospitals. This year we
have also renovated and upgraded
3 Anganwadi centers making
them child friendly. Our initiatives
are currently active in 12 remote
villages of East Sikkim.

In Madhya Pradesh, we have
implemented ambulatory care
services in remote forest-based
villages that have limited access
to healthcare facilities. These
services are specifically designed
to cater to children suffering from
Severe Acute Malnutrition (SAM).
We also focus on facilitating

the recovery of malnourished
children in non-facility-based care,
encouraging the direct intake

of essential micronutrients. To
further support nutrition efforts,
we promote the establishment of
backyard nutrition gardens, which
serve as an additional source of
income for the community. This
year, we distributed eight different
types of vegetable seeds to all
1682 Anganwadi centers in the
Khandwa district, empowering
them to locally grow nutritious
vegetables. Through these
initiatives, we aim to address

the challenges of malnutrition,
improve healthcare accessibility,

n4

and promote sustainable nutrition
practises in the remote areas of
Madhya Pradesh.

In Gujarat, we focus on cultivating
positive health-seeking behavior
and delivering primary healthcare
services through our Reproductive
Child Health center. We have
expanded our reach to an
additional 12 villages through

the RCH initiative, leveraging
strengthened infrastructural
capabilities.

In Maharashtra, we collaborate
with our NGO partner to run

the mMitra project, a unique
initiative that harnesses modern
technology to provide accurate
medical information and relevant
preventive messages on antenatal
and neonatal care. Pregnant
women and new mothers receive
these messages via mobile-based
voice calls, free of charge. Each
enrolled woman receives these
informative messages in their
preferred language. This year,

we have enrolled over 26,000
women in Mumbai, Nashik,

and Aurangabad through this
intervention.

Through these efforts, we strive
to empower communities with
the knowledge and resources
necessary to make informed
healthcare decisions. By
investing in child and maternal
health, we not only contribute

to the immediate well-being of
individuals but also pave the way
for a healthier and more resilient
future for generations to come. We
remain committed to advancing
these goals, partnering with

local communities, governments,
and organizations to implement
effective strategies and drive
sustainable change. Together, we
can create a world where every
child and mother receives the care
and support they need to thrive
and reach their full potential.
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Combating Household Air Pollution

The utilization of traditional
cooking techniques expose
people to various health hazards,
especially for women and children.
The fumes produced from cooking
with wood or coal could lead

to ischemic heart disease, child
pneumonia, chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD),

or even lung cancer. Globally,
about 50% of child mortality

from pneumonia is attributed to
exposure to particulate matter
(soot) present in indoor air
pollution.

Other Pioneering Collaborations

Recognizing the urgent need

for innovative and affordable
solutions, Glenmark partnered with
the CSIR-National Environmental
Engineering Research Institute
(NEERI), to promote cost-effective
and energy-efficient cook stoves.
Through this collaboration

with NEERI, we are upgrading
traditional mud stoves to enhance
thermal efficiency and limit
emissions. Currently, we are
piloting this project in villages of
Maharashtra and Madhya Pradesh.

In addition to our core initiatives, we actively engage in pioneering collaborations to promote child and maternal
health and raise awareness on crucial issues. These collaborations involve multiple stakeholders and aim to

develop innovative solutions that make a tangible impact in our communities.

The Meri Poushtik Rasoi Contest

Glenmark Foundation, in
collaboration with Idobro Impact
Solutions, conducted the fifth
season of the ‘Meri Poushtik Rasoi’
cooking contest. This nationwide
contest aims at creating a
repository of indigenous recipes
from Indian kitchens. It addresses
the issue of malnutrition by
promoting nutrition-rich native
recipes that will help the meal
planning of people in urban as well
as rural areas.

The contest received around 900
applications from 25 states and
union territories, representing
over 250 towns and cities. After
a rigorous selection process, 25
finalists were shortlisted and they
competed in a grand cook-off

organized at the Ramnath Institute

of Hospitality Sciences in Mumbai.
Winning recipes highlighted the
significance of preserving and
promoting indigenous, nutrition-
rich dishes to combat the ill-
effects of malnutrition.

Glenmark Nutrition Awards

In collaboration with the United
Nations Global Compact Network
India (UNGCNI) and Idobro Impact
Solutions, Glenmark Foundation
organized the Glenmark Nutrition
Awards 2023. These awards
recognize and support NGOs

and other institutions that make
exceptional efforts to address the
issue of malnutrition. Over 500 NGOs
and institutions from across the
country participated in the awards,
which were divided into three
categories: Urban, Rural, and Open.

The Cuddles Foundation won in
the Urban category, the Healing
Fields Foundation topped the
Rural category, while the Nutrition
Rehabilitation Research and
Training Centre prevailed in the
Open category. Each winner
received a grant from Glenmark
Foundation to support their
projects. Additionally, the event
featured the unveiling of the ‘Meri
Poushtik Rasoi’ recipe booklet,
featuring 54 nutritious and
indigenous recipes from various
regions of the country.

Water Conservation and
Management

In line with our commitment to
achieving our ESG goals and
becoming water neutral by 2025,
we have initiated the ‘Jal Kavach’
project in partnership with Yuva
Mitra in Maharashtra, India. The
project is being implemented in
more than 19 villages in the Nashik
and Aurangabad districts of
Maharashtra. Its primary objective
is to create additional water
storage capacity by rejuvenating
water bodies in the region. Access
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to clean and sufficient water is
essential for the well-being and
empowerment of communities.

This initiative aligns with the United
Nations Sustainable Development
Goals, which emphasize the
importance of sustainable water
resource management for the
well-being of communities and

the environment. It also reflects
our ESG strategy, which prioritizes
responsible and sustainable
practises. By actively working on
the ‘Jal Kavach’ project, we are
taking a significant step towards
achieving a more sustainable future
through water conservation.

Sustainable Livelihood and Skill
Development

At Glenmark, we are committed
to empowering the younger
generation and improving the
employment rate in India through
skill development programs. In

FY 2023, we successfully trained
over 600 individuals through

our skill development program.
Moreover, we believe in promoting
sustainable livelihoods and have
contributed to the rehabilitation
of over 1,100 differently abled
individuals through the Jaipur
Foot Program. Our support has
facilitated the distribution of
artificial limbs, fitments, and
calipers, empowering individuals to
lead more independent lives.
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Promoting Education and Community Relief

Recognizing the vital role of education in fostering inclusive and
sustainable development, Glenmark supports rural communities in
addressing challenges in overcoming barriers to access quality education.
We collaborate with educational institutes to enhance their infrastructure
and provide necessary resources that elevate the learning experience for
students. By focusing on education, we aim to uplift communities and
create a brighter future for the next generation. Additionally, we extend
our support to community relief efforts, standing alongside communities
in times of need.

Promoting sports - Swimming

The Glenmark Aquatic Foundation (GAF) encourages swimmers from
different parts of India to participate in international events. In FY 2023,
as a joint effort with Kalinga Institute of Social Sciences (KISS), GAF
introduced swimming at KISS. It intended to find talented swimmers from
30,000 tribal kids and hone their talent. GAF runs two high performance
swimming centers at Delhi and Thiruvananthapuram, in partnership with
Sports Authority of India (SAI). GAF had also introduced swim.clinic, a
multilingual online coach education program. With this, GAF aims to help
coaches across India learn about the best practises associated with this
sport. The site currently has over 1100 registered members. Swimmers
from GAF won 18 Gold, 22 Silver and 25 Bronze medals from National and
International meets during the year.
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Glenmark Joy of Giving and Impact@45

We encourage our employees

to make a positive difference

to communities around our
operations. Over the years, our
employees have volunteered for
various causes. Joy of Giving’,
our annual CSR initiative that is
carried out over a period of 4
months every year, empowers
Glenmark employees to contribute
meaningfully, through financial
support as well as volunteering
time. As part of our 45-year
celebrations, we launched
Impact@45 as part of our
Glenmark Joy of Giving initiative.
The 450-day-long project aims
to collaborate with 45 NGOs
worldwide, plant 4,500 trees,
and dedicate 45,000 employee
volunteer hours. With Impact@45,
we seek to make a lasting impact
on society.

Our Impact so far*

glenmank
IMPACT

45 45+

|
Days

450 219

|
Trees Planted

4,500 2,615

|
Volunteering Hours Contributed

45,000 34,700+

Target
Achieved

*Data as on 31st March 2023
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Employee volunteering

Our employees from various
countries have shown immense
dedication and compassion by
actively engaging in meaningful
activities to support different
communities. Colleagues in Germany,
Poland, Russia, Slovakia, Tanzania,
Ukraine, and Uganda have actively
supported orphaned and abandoned
children, sharing knowledge,
providing motivation, ensuring basic
necessities, and extending financial
aid for critical medical needs.
Meanwhile, our team in the UK raised
awareness about homelessness by
spending a night in the cold and
participating in a charitable coast-to-
coast ride to support the homeless. In
the U.S., our team collected canned
soup for the local Center for Food
Action during the Super Bowl event.
In Brazil, employees donated food

to a Home for Mothers; and in Spain,
they spread the Joy of amongst

to the elderly. Our South African

and Myanmar teams supported
residential homes providing care for
individuals with disabilities. In the
Czech Republic, workshops were
conducted and Christmas trees

were decorated while financially
supporting an organization working
with senior citizens and people with
disabilities.

In Sikkim, our plant team visited an
orphanage and an old age home,
engaging with the beneficiaries. In
Nashik, a school beautification drive
was undertaken, and as part of our
disaster relief campaign, employees
in India donated over 1100 kgs of
clothes to help the flood-affected
people of Assam in India. As part

of our Joy of Giving program,
colleagues at the Head Office and
from the India Formulations team
also contributed to building two wells
and water harvesting structures in
Maharashtra, India. These projects
address acute water shortages in
the area and aim to alleviate water
scarcity and empower the villagers.

ns

Maintaining bio-diversity

Our employees have also
contributed significantly to
improving the environment by
augmenting our effort to plant
4500 trees. We have planted over
2,500 trees across 13 locations in
Himachal Pradesh, Maharashtra,
Goa, Gujarat, Delhi, and Sikkim in
India and in 45 locations across the
Philippines. One notable initiative
is our partnership with Grow-Trees.
com, where we planted 1,500 trees
in Ramtek, Maharashtra (India).
This project not only creates jobs
for the Gond tribal population but
also protects the habitat of tigers
and other wildlife around the Pench
Tiger Reserve. The involvement of
the tribal community in planting
diverse trees will provide them
with valuable forest assets like
fruits, fuelwood, leaves, and
fodder; thereby improving their
livelihoods. Moreover, these trees
serve as carbon sinks, help raise
the groundwater table, provide
shade, enhance microclimates, and
maintain the ecological balance in
the region.

Our employees at the Head Office
and India Formulations celebrated
‘Swachh Bharat Diwas’ (Clean India
Day) by participating in a beach
cleanup drive, while our team in
Goa marked International Coastal
Cleanup Day by cleaning up a
stretch of Morjim Beach.

In addition, as part of our
Impact@45 initiative, we launched
an eco-bag campaign in India to
reduce plastic usage and promote
the reuse of paper and encourage
recycling. Glenmark employees in 23
cities across 11 Indian states actively
participated in this campaign,
resulting in the creation of a
remarkable number of 100,000+
eco-bags. This campaign not only
contributed to reducing plastic
waste but also raised awareness
among employees about the
importance of sustainable living.

These initiatives highlight our
commitment to environmental
conservation and sustainable
practises, making a positive impact
on the world around us. These
efforts showcase the generosity
and commitment of our employees
to make a positive impact and
support communities in need.

We are committed to making a
positive difference in the lives of
communities and are proud to
contribute towards the betterment
through our Joy of Giving program.
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CSR initiatives by Glenmark Life Sciences

Glenmark Life Sciences also strives to contribute to the
community and environment in which we operate. Our aim is to
ensure sustained growth and well-being of the communities.

CSR focus areas of GLS

> ©

Access to Access to
Healthcare Education
N B
)
Water Community
Stewardship Development

O

Employee Volunteering
Programmes

Z 9.74 million

CSR investment

Project Sampurna

We have launched a comprehensive healthcare initiative targeting the
well-being of women and children. This program caters to their healthcare
needs throughout various stages of growth and development.

12,090+

Children benefited

Water Stewardship Projects
GLS has taken steps to conserve water in drought-prone regions around

our facilities in Gujarat and Maharashtra. Our efforts include identifying
vulnerable areas and adopting nearby lakes to replenish water sources.

2,500

Community members
benefited

7,84,870+ m?

Water harvested
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Holistic Community Development Project

The project’s goal is to uplift economically disadvantaged areas by addressing critical needs such as education,
women empowerment, skill development, disability support, and infrastructure improvement. It also focuses on
promoting tree plantation for carbon neutrality and provides support to senior citizens and differently-abled
individuals near its manufacturing facilities.

18,084+

Community members

benefited
Project ViGyasa Employee Volunteering Programs
Our aim is to nurture young scientific minds in During FY 2023, our employees collaborated with
government and municipal schools. To achieve this, community members for a tree plantation drive,
we supply scientific kits and set up integrated and aiming to expand the green cover around our

mini science labs to facilitate hands-on learning operations.
experiences. Additionally, the project provides
specialized training and workshops for both students
and teachers, enhancing their understanding and
proficiency in various scientific disciplines.

10,800

Trees planted

6,000+ 16,200 tonnes

Children benefited CO2 absorption
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Our Awards

\-

\’ Best Supporting

Silver Award -

CSR Health Impact
\ ’ Awards \ l

CSR Ti A d
\’ imes Awar

Year Award -

7th Edition Corporate

Social Responsibility
Summit & Awards

\‘ ‘(Glenmark Foundation) ‘

Pharma Company
\’ South East Asia Award \l

Gold Award -
CSR Health Impact
Awards

Bronze
for Community

India Pharma CSR

of the Year Award,
\’ Runner-up \l

Best Innovative
CSR Project award
N .t the 5th Edition of the N

CSR Summit by UBS

- IHW A d
warda -
\’ Silver Award for Health "

\’ Awareness Campaign of \l

the Year
(Diabetes Cluster)
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Capital

In an industry characterized by rapid
advancements and evolving patient
needs, intellectual capital plays a
pivotal role in our growth strategy.

As we expand our specialty and
complex products portfolio, our
ability to create, manage, and
leverage intellectual capital becomes
increasingly critical.

Intellectual

o. o* hod
o og
.“

Contribution to SDGs

GOOD HEALTH DECENT WORK AND

AND WELL-BEING [ECONOMIC GROWTH
“we 4
HONRSTROTRE

&
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Focus Areas

Product safety, quality, and accessibility

w »

needs

Interlinkages with other capitals

0.0
g S
Human Capital

Increase in institutional
knowledge through in-house R&D
and research collaborations

S8

Manufactured Capital

Innovation in production processes
for improved efficiencies

Highlights for FY 2023

12,500 million

invested in R&D

RYALTRIS® launched in

12 new markets

|
during the year

Mapping with NGRBC Principles

Material Topics

Innovation & Research

Promoting innovation to cater to unmet medical

4
Developing and launching affordable medicines (4 Enhancing Accessibility of Medicines

o
N\ >

Financial Capital

5.6% growth in revenues during
the year aided by new product
launches

1,300+

patents granted till date

8

ANDASs filled during FY 2023

Social & Relationship

Expanded health care accessibility
through strategic partnerships and
out-licensing deals

1,400+

inventions till date

468

DMFs and CEPs across major
markets (GLS)

€ Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe.
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Approach to Research & Development

Glenmark has developed a depth of expertise in key focus areas covering

¢
Respiratory

2

Dermatology Oncology

Our research and development (R&D) approach is focused on innovation
within these primary focus areas. As a result, we are able to build on our
existing knowledge, while creating inventive treatment.

Our commitment to excellence in our entire value chain from R&D to
manufacturing is unwavering, as we adhere to the highest standards
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of process innovation and
quality. This dedication yields a
specialized pipeline of products
that caters to medical needs
across various market segments,
while remaining affordable. In
the fiscal year, our investments
in R&D amounted to 312,500
million. During the year we
invested % 6,833 million in our
U.S.-based innovation subsidiary,
Ichnos Sciences.

As we sharpen our focus on
responsible business practises,
enhance our current product
lineup, and expand our reach
into new regions, we persistently
propel advancements throughout
the value chain in complex
generics and innovative
medications. We leverage the
varied capabilities within our
subsidiaries to foster innovation
across our range of products.
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G

glenmark

A'new way for a new world

Key Therapy Areas Strategic actions

Delivery of therapeutics across 0 Expand our core therapies
Focus Areas and specialty products

) ) € Respiratory
Generics, Branded generics,

. . [ 4 .
Specialty, OTC, Innovative € Dermatology Expand our presence in
NCE Molecules € Oncology branded products portfolio

across the world

G glenmank 3
ey .ichnos...
Business Segments Focus Areas Business segments Focus Areas
Active Pharmaceutical Non-commoditized Innovation in biologics Immuno-oncology
Ingredients & CDMO APIls with high-end

chemistry
Strategic actions Strategic actions
Expand our key offerings and continue to Continue to develop our product pipeline and
integrate new technological interventions selective partnering to accelerate the drug
across our operations development
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Innovative Assets

For us at Glenmark, intellectual capital encompasses the range of tangible and
intangible resources that we’ve acquired over time, across process efficiencies,
digital infrastructure, and best-in-class innovations in manufacturing. But the
bedrock of our intellectual capital is our R&D and our innovative assets, which
are two of our key levers for moving up the value chain. Our innovative assets
are developed across GPL and Ichnos; innovation across both these entities
have their own unique strategic focus.

Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Limited

Moving Up the Value Chain: Towards more complex products and specialty medication

. Innovative Medicines Group

With long-term focus on
moving up the value chain, in
2022 Glenmark Pharmaceuticals
created a distinct sub-Group
called the ‘Innovative Medicines
Group’. From its inception, this
Division prioritized the in-house

RYALTRIS® is Glenmark’s first
global branded specialty
product. In 2018, the U.S. FDA
approved RYALTRIS®, for review
as a therapy for seasonal
allergic rhinitis and in 2022,

U.S. FDA approved RYALTRIS®
for treatment for adults and
pediatric patients who are 12
years old and older.

Generics play a pivotal role

in making health care more
accessible by providing cost-
effective alternatives to patients
across the developed and
developing world. As part of our
commitment to make healthcare
more affordable, launching the
generic version of innovative
molecules continues to be a

key component of our business
strategy. Currently, Glenmark’s
generics and branded generics
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. Specialty products - RYALTRIS®

. Generics and Branded Generics

discovery and development of
novel molecules and innovative
therapies to address critical gaps
in the spectrum of therapeutics
available to patients. The objective
was to focus on immuno-oncology
and respiratory segments to

This approval was a significant
step in achieving our strategic
objectives of reorienting our
product mix from generics

to specialty medications. Our
learnings from the product journey
of RYALTRIS®: from a respiratory
pipeline candidate (GSP 301) to
our flagship specialty therapeutic

offerings cater to the requirements
of over 80 countries.

Our current focus area is

generic product development
covering diabetes, dermatology,
respiratory, oncology, cardiology,
critical care, and other therapy
categories, strengthening the
Over-The-Counter (OTC) portfolio
of oral solid, dermatology and
respiratory products for the U.S.
market.

develop innovative clinical assets.
The Innovative Medicines Group
focuses on both in-house research
as well as in-licensing late-stage
innovative assets for global/
regional development.

product, have greatly informed our
strategic decisioning in moving up
the value chain.

RYALTRIS® has been
commercialized in 27 markets
by the Company or through its
partners.

Focus has increased towards
value-driven complex products,
where less competition is
expected due to entry barriers.

We are developing multiple double
and triple combination products
for anti-diabetic, respiratory and
cardiac portfolio, value-driven

and next-gen products in the
dermatology segment and new
oncology products in the oral and
injectables categories.
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Updates on GPL’s Innovative Assets Pipeline.

The current innovative pipeline consists of two molecules in clinical development. Each of these molecules
has the potential to improve patient outcomes by proving to be safer and more effective than currently

available therapies.

Molecule Therapy (hTe[T<1d(e1s M Pre-Clinical Phase 1 W Phase 3 Approval Remarks
Solid Phase 1 ongoing in
GRC 54276 Oncology > | India, received U.S. IND
Tumors
approval
Chronic
Obstructive
Phase 1 Clinical
GRC 39815 Respiratory | Pulmonary — > A
. Development in the U.S.
Disorder
(COPD)

G GRC 54276

GRC 54276 is a novel, orally

active Hematopoietic progenitor
kinase 1 (HPK1) inhibitor that is
being developed as an orally
administered treatment for
patients with solid tumors. Despite
recent advances especially in

the advent of immunotherapies,
cancer is still the second-most
common cause of death globally.

HPK1 Inhibitor GRC 54276 is a
negative regulator of T and B cell
receptor signalling. In pre-clinical
studies, it has demonstrated tumor
inhibition in multiple immunogenic
syngeneic tumor models as a
monotherapy or in combination
with checkpoint inhibitors. Thus,
GRC 54276 by inhibiting HPKI1,
presents an attractive therapeutic
strategy for immuno-oncology-
based treatment in a variety of
cancers.

GRC 54276 is currently being
evaluated in the First in Human
(FIH) Phase 1 clinical study (GRC
54276-101). Part Ta monotherapy
phase of the study is ongoing

in India since June 2022 and

no dose limiting toxicities have
been observed till date. An IND
submission to DCGI and U.S. FDA
was successfully made in Q4 FY
2023. Respective approvals have
been received, basis which the
phase 1 partlb combination study
of GRC 54276 with pembrolizumab
or atezolizumab has been initiated
in India and initiation in the U.S. is
planned in Q1 FY 2024.

e GRC 39815

GRC 39815 is a potent and
selective retinoid-related orphan
receptor gamma t (RORyt)
inverse agonist that suppresses

T helper type 17 (Th17) cell
differentiation and interleukin 17
(IL-17) production. GRC 39815 is
being developed as an inhaled
treatment for patients with
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary
Disease (COPD). COPD is the third
leading cause of death worldwide.
Increased IL-17 expression has
been observed in multiple cell
types in animal models of COPD
and in COPD patients. An IL-17

gene signature has been reported
in approximately 30% of patients
with COPD and associated

with a distinct biologically,
radiographically, and clinically
distinct COPD subgroup that

may benefit from personalized,
targeted therapy with a drug such
as GRC 39815.

GRC 39815 is currently in Phase

1 clinical development program

in the U.S. The Part 1 of a Phase 1
single ascending dose (SAD) study
was completed in Q3 FY 2022 and
Part 2 (GRC 39815 estimation in
BAL fluid) is currently ongoing. A
Phase 1 multiple ascending dose
(MAD) study is currently being
planned as well.
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Product Launches

The R&D phase of product development is long and sometimes uncertain.

It involves extensive laboratory research, preclinical studies, and rigorous
clinical trials to evaluate the safety, efficacy, and optimal dosage regimens.
However, for a pharmaceutical Company, there is nothing more rewarding that
the culmination of successful R&D efforts, which leads to the launch of new
products in the market, addressing unmet medical needs, and providing novel
therapeutic options.

Our ongoing commitment to innovation and investments in R&D over the years have resulted
in the launch of the following key products across different geographies during FY 2023:
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N »

D)

N NN NSNS

D)

India

-0 35

New Launches

»

Indamet® (Indacaterol + Mometasone)
Lobeglitazone + Metformin (LOBG-M®)

Zita®-PioMet (Teneligliptin +
Pioglitazone + Metformin)

Zita®Pio (Teneligliptin+Pioglitazone)
Zita®-D (Teneligliptin+ Dapagliflozin)
Sitazit® (Teneligliptin+ Sitagliptin)
LOBG® (Lobeglitazone)

Sacu V™ (Sacubitril + Valsartan)

AKYNZEO® IV (fosnetupitant and
palonosetron)

La Shield® Probiotic Moisturizer

O I I B B B I )

O L I B I )

~ 035

New Launches

RYALTRIS®

Deferasirox tablets

Fingilimod capsules
Tranylcypromine tablets
Nitrofurantoin tablets
Abiraterone tablets
Lacosamide tablets
Nitrofurantoin tablets
Sitagliptin tablets

Sitagliptin + Metformin tablets
Colesevelam tablets

Apixaban tablets
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Asia, MEA, LATAM and RCIS
Region (RoW)

~021

) New Launches
‘4(",‘4

4 }‘

-

Fenismart™ (dimetindene) gel

-

Phelisans™ (phenasone + lidocaine) ear
drops

RYALTRIS®

Tacroz Ointment

Beclometasone 50cg and 200mcg MDI
Aerogold 100mcg 200 MDI

$
$
$
$
$

Ziten-M

D)

D)

North America

08

New Launches

/I

Ezetimibe Tablets USP

Abiraterone Acetate Tablets USP,
500 mg

Fingolimod Capsules, 0.5 mg
Sodium Phenylbutyrate Tablets USP

Olmesartan Medoxomil Tablets USP,
5mg-90’s

Nicardipine Hydrochloride Capsules

Bumetanide Injection, 1 mg-4 mL
and 2.5 mg-10 mL

Teriflunomide Tablets

Clindamycin Hydrochloride
Capsules USP
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In the reporting year, we received the approval of 10 Abbreviated New Drug Applications (ANDA), comprising
six final approvals, two prior approvals, supplement approvals (for a new strength or formulation) and two
tentative approvals. As of 31 March 2023, we have 45 applications pending in various stages of the approval
process with the U.S. FDA, of which 21 are Paragraph IV applications.

Some Key Launches

Lobeglitazone tablets

Lead Indication: Diabetes

$

Glenmark is the first
Company in India to
launch Thiazolidinedione
Lobeglitazone (0.5 mg).

This anti-diabetic medication
is marketed under the brand
name LOBG”

With this launch, the Company
aims to improve glycemic levels
in uncontrolled diabetics and
create a new pathway to treat
insulin resistance in India.

Glenmark’s LOBG® is priced at
approximately 10 per tablet,
per day.
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AKYNZEO" I.V.

Lead Indication: Oncology

$

AKYNZEQO® |V, a fixed dose
combination of fosnetupitant
(235mg) and palonosetron
(0.25mg), is available as a
single-dose, ready-to-dilute I.V.
injection.

It offers prevention from both
acute and delayed phases of
chemotherapy-induced nausea
and vomiting.

AKYNZEQO® V. has been
developed by Helsinn and
under an exclusive licensing
agreement with Helsinn,
Glenmark has exclusive
marketing rights for this
product in India.

Sacubitril + Valsartan tablets

Lead Indication: Cardiology

€ The launch of Sacubitril +
Valsartan - under the brand
name, ‘Sacu V™ - brings down
the cost of treatment for heart
failure.

This drug helps reduce the
risk of cardiovascular related
deaths and hospitalizations.

-



Annual Report 2023

Intellectual Capital

R&D Infrastructure

The development of R&D infrastructure is a critical component of our strategy in moving up the value chain.
Our R&D units are critical to building our intellectual assets. The R&D units work across the spectrum from
research to developing cost-effective manufacturing techniques so we can deliver high-quality therapeutics at

an affordable cost.

Taloja (Navi Mumbai)

Our Taloja R&D center is well-
equipped for research on a
variety of dosage forms such as
oral solid dosages, semi-solids,
foams, parenteral (complex
injectable), drug device and
aerosols formulations for various
indications. We also have a small
scale GMP area for oral solids,
which is approved by the Drugs

Controller General of India (DCGI).

Capacity at this center was
enhanced to handle high potent
oncology molecules. In-Vitro
release testing (IVRT) / In-Vitro
Permeation Test (IVPT) Labs as
well as Nitrosamine testing labs

with Liquid chromatography-
mass spectrometry (LC-MS) and
Atomic absorption spectrometry
(AAS) instruments have also been
established.

The Analytical Division is equipped
with advanced instruments
like High Performance Liquid
Chromatography (HPLC),
LC-MS, and Next-Generation
Impactor (NGI), among
others to support formulation
development activities. It

also has state-of-art clinical
research & pharmacokinetics
facility with 60 clinical beds, 2

bedded ICUs and an advanced
bioanalytical laboratory to support
bio-availability (BA) and bio-
equivalence (BE) studies.

We also have a clinical research
unit, which conducts BE studies
on healthy human subjects for
formulations, which are developed
for all markets. These are based
at Taloja and Mahape and are
approved by all major regulatory
agencies like DCGI, U.S. FDA,
MHRA, EMA, Anvisa. This center
has been audited by the agencies
on multiple occasions.
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(Navi Mumbai) (Nashik)

Activities related to In-Vitro This site is focused on

Release Test (IVRT) studies formulations development and

for topical formulation are analytical research of specialty and

conducted by the analytical team, branded formulations for global

and pharmacokinetic studies markets across dosage forms for

for various dosage forms are therapeutic areas like respiratory,

undertaken by clinical team. dermatology, oncology,
cardiovascular and anti-diabetics
and so on.
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Process Innovation

For us at Glenmark, innovation
is central to all aspects of our
processes. It is a salient feature
of all our operations from
research and development to
the manufacturing and delivery
process.

The innovation in the delivery of
generics is in the execution stage.
This includes the development
and utilization of technologies
such as fluid bed processing, hot
melt extrusion, hot melt spray,
solid dispersion, osmotic drug
delivery, Multiple Unit Pellet
Systems (MUPS), nasal sprays,
dry powder inhalers, and metered
dose inhalers.

In the long term, the focus is

on specialty products, complex
technologies, involving respiratory
devices, rectal devices, iron
complexes, and microsphere
technology, to name a few. As
part of development, many

of these products require the
execution of clinical trials to
establish equivalence.

g&

Clinical Trials

Developing the ability to drive
efficient clinical trials is a critical
part of our long-term strategy of
moving up the value chain.

In the year, we had a total of five
clinical trials during the year. All
trials were done in collaboration
with hospitals across India, with
initiation activities in the he U.S.
Clinical sites across India and
the U.S. provided geographical
distribution and a diverse

patient population. We adhere

to following all applicable local
and global regulations and
guidelines across jurisdictions, to
ensure compliance with ethical
requirements for conducting
clinical trials. During the year,

we successfully completed the
clinical trial and launch of LOBG®
(Lobeglitazone) in India for the
treatment of type 2 diabetes in
adults. In April 2022, Glenmark
Specialty S.A. (GSSA), our
subsidiary, received approval from
DCGlI, the Indian drug regulator, to
conduct a Phase 1 clinical trial of
GRC 54276. In March 2023, GSSA
also received acceptance from U.S.
FDA on its Investigational New
Drug (IND) application for GRC
54276 to proceed with a Phase
1/2, first-in-human, clinical study
of GRC 54276 for the treatment
of patients with advanced solid
tumors and lymphomas.

©

Digital Innovation

Central to our innovation

process is the identification and
mainstreaming of digital tools and
technologies to accelerate the
pace of formulation development.

Our R&D operations are digitized
and managed by multiple
technology platforms in areas such
as personnel management, training
and analytical data processing.

€ Minitab is used for data
interpretation, shelf life
prediction, capability analysis
and control charts.

€ Six sigma tools and Design
Expert help with the design
and interpretation of multi-
factor experiments. It has also
been used to optimize the
product or process

€ Gastroplus is used for few
products to establish in vivo
and in vitro correlation.
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Ichnos Sciences

At Ichnos Sciences, we aim to
shift the way the world thinks
about innovation in medicine

by developing potentially
transformative biologic
treatments in immuno-oncology.
Headquartered in New York

City, Ichnos has discovery and
manufacturing operations at two
sites in Switzerland - a biologics
and early discovery research
center in Lausanne, Switzerland
and a biologics manufacturing
and process sciences center in
La Chaux-de-Fonds, Switzerland.
Both the Swiss research centers
also house a full suite of in-house
capabilities necessary for the

discovery and development of
new investigational biologics,
from inception—including cell-
line development, bioassay
development, and antibody
engineering—through preclinical
and early clinical studies. As a
fully integrated biotechnology
Company with more than 152
employees, Ichnos has strong
capabilities in research, antibody
engineering, CMC and clinical
development of biotechnologies.

The proprietary BEAT® technology
platform is the basis for Ichnos’
clinical-stage oncology pipeline.
Using this technology, coupled with

For more information please refer to: www.ichnossciences.com

134

the proprietary common light chain
library, the Company is developing
novel multispecific immune cell
engagers and modulators, with

the goal of realizing its mission to
provide breakthrough, potentially
curative therapies that may extend
and improve lives, writing a new
chapter in health care.

For more information on the
Ichnos’ pipeline and the BEAT®
platform, refer to the Ichnos
Sciences section.
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Glenmark Life Sciences

Glenmark Life Sciences is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
(APIs) across all major markets globally.

Through GLS, we’ve built a
portfolio of high-value, non-
commoditized APIs in chronic
therapeutic areas, namely,
Cardiovascular (CVS) disease,
Central Nervous System (CNS)
disorders, pain management
and diabetes for our customers
worldwide.

The API product portfolio spans
multiple therapeutic areas such
as gastro-intestinal disorders,
anti-infectives and other
therapeutic areas. We continue
to add specialized and profitable
products into our portfolio,
including niche and technically
complex molecules, such as Iron
Sucrose, Sucralfate, Ferumoxytol,

Ferric Carboxymaltose, Elagolix,
Edoxaban, Solriamfetol and
Isavuconazonium Sulfate.

The total portfolio of 139 API
molecules are marketed in India
and exported to multiple countries
in Europe, North America, Latin
America, Japan and the rest of
the world (RoW). GLS has filed
468 Drug Master Files (DMFs)
and Certificates of suitability to
the monographs of the European
Pharmacopoeia (CEPs) across
various major markets (i.e. United
States, Europe, Japan, Russia,
Brazil, South Korea, Taiwan,
Canada, China and Australia). We
work with 16 of the 20 largest
generic companies globally.

GLS is also focusing on new
product launches, geographical
market expansion, pursuing
second source opportunities with
leading generic players, growing
CDMO business and expanding
into complex API platforms, such
as iron compounds and oncology
molecules.

CDMO

In the last five years, GLS has
developed business with innovator
and specialty pharmaceutical
companies in the CDMO space.
GLS has the ability to attract
innovator pharmaceutical
companies to partner for providing
unique solutions tailored to

their specifications owing to the
Company’s capabilities in process
chemistry research, manufacturing
and analytical research
capabilities. The Company’s
continuous focus on quality and
sustainability of operations makes
it a serious contender to grow this
business opportunity.
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Our Awards

‘Highly
A\ ’ \ P4 Commended’ A\ ’

Award at the Pharmacy
\’ \’ MVP Awards in the UK \l

(Maloff Protect)

India Pharma
Innovation
of the Year

‘Highly
Commended’
Award at the Pharmacy
\’ MVP Awards in the UK \l

ET best @& ET Ascent Best W
\ P4 healthcare A\ ’ \ P4 Innovation ’
brand in Marketing Award
\’ (Candid® Powder) \I \’ (TakeCharge@18 \’

initiative)

IHW Award
Gold Award
(Eptus®)

IHW Gold Award -
for Digital Technology
for Patient Support
(Hello Skin WhatsApp-
based Chatbot)

Silver Award
for use of Digital

A
\l \’ Platforms for \l

Public Awareness
(TakeCharge@18
‘ initiative)
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Silver Feather
Award

\’ for Emerging Brand
(La Shield®)

AWACS Award
for New Brand

\’ Introduction

(Syntran SB)

\ v Pronto Consultant
Silver Award

\’ based on Market

Insights (Ascoril®LS)

\»

AWACS Award
for Best New
Introduction (Fabiflu)

Pronto
Consultant Gold
Award
(Remo V)

Excellence -
Best Use of Social Media
\’ and Digital Marketing
in Healthcare (Diabetes
Under Control)

AWACS 2nd runner \’
up Award -
Brand of the Year

\ The iconic ’
4 Platinum Award A\

for Best Brand
‘ Renovation (Lulican)
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efficiency, innovation, and sustainable growth.

We nurture and harness the intrinsic potential
of our people to strengthen our competitive
advantage, move up the value chain and foster
a culture of excellence. Our numerous teams
comprising scientists and researchers, as well
as manufacturing, quality and safety teams, and
support personnel operate from 50+ countries
across the globe, collectively contributing to
our mission of making quality healthcare more
affordable and accessible in diverse markets.

Through this section, we aim to shed light on
these various aspects of our human capital
strategy, highlighting our efforts to provide a
conducive work environment that encompasses
both professional development, as well as the
personal well-being of our employees.

Contribution to SDGs

1

GOODHEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

s

REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

@

GENDER
EQUALITY

¢

16 PEACE, JUSTIGE
ANDSTRONG
INSTITUTIONS

Y,

Human Capital

We firmly believe that the expertise and dedication
of our teams are crucial for achieving operational

DECENT WORK AND
EGONOMICGROWTH

o
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Focus Areas

# Talent Development
# Inclusion and Diversity

Interlinkages with other capitals

!,

¥

Natural Capital

Robust EHS policy fostering a safe
work environment

Social & Relationship Capital

Employee participation across community-

development initiatives such as
‘Joy of Giving’

Material Topics

NN NN

Talent Attraction and Retention
Human Capital Development
Promoting Diversity
Occupational Health & Safety

.\. e

|
S8
[

Manufactured Capital

@

Intellectual Capital

Global workforce of 15,556 employees,
including 1,200+ personnel in R&D

e
N\

Financial Capital

Investments in skill upgradation
initiatives for employees

Improved workplace safety through continuous
training and development of employees

Highlights for FY 2023
15,556

|

Employees

Diversity Indicators

13%

|
Women employees

Mapping with NGRBC Principles:

1,200+

Employees in R&D

263

Women in science,
engineering & research roles.

33%

S50+

Countries

4

Continents

34

| |
Women on Average training
the Board hours per employee

? Principle 1: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their value chains.

? Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

# Principle 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development.
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A snapshot of our global workforce

Particulars Male Female <30 30-50 >50
Years Years Years

Core Management m n 0 58 64

& Senior

Management

Middle 394 76 0 366 104

Management

Junior 1,716 421 81 1,890 166

Management

Non-Management 1,368 1,459 4,464 8,120 243

Differently abled employees - 16 permanent employees

Inclusion and Diversity

At Glenmark, we believe

diversity enables us to broaden
our talent pool and leads to
improved problem solving, better
adaptability to customer needs
across segments, and enhanced
creativity and innovation. We are
committed to fostering a culture
of inclusion and have a three-year
road map outlining our vision and
action plan on driving inclusion
and diversity in the organization.
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We have 15,000+ employees
across 4 generations spread
across 50+ countries working
together at Glenmark.

Women currently represent 13%
and 22% of our global workforce
and R&D function, respectively.
Committed to empowering
women in the sciences, we

have implemented specialized

programs within the R&D unit to
support our women employees.
We have also launched an
engagement program where
students from the eastern part
of India are offered a platform to
build a career in APl R&D and API
manufacturing. Moreover, women
scientists in laboratories undergo
specialized training sessions to
support career development,
covering a range of topics.

In keeping with our commitment
to promoting diversity in the
workplace, we ensure that our
hiring practises are equitable
across all organizational levels.

One initiative in this direction
was the launch of an interactive,
self-paced, scenario-based
e-learning module on
Unconscious Bias. It focused on
raising awareness of different
types of biases, their impact on
the workplace along with the
steps on how to mitigate them.
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Mentorship can offer women
employees a secure ecosystem
by providing guidance

and assistance with their
professional development,
thereby improving productivity,
engagement and growth.
Consequently, we prioritize
mentorship as a key pillar of our
diversity strategy.

Towards this goal, we have
launched our women’s
mentorship program, Beacon
for HER; a platform for
institutionalizing the culture
of mentoring women globally.
The program aims to leverage
the rich expertise that lies
within Glenmark through the
knowledge and experience

of senior women leaders. As
part of this platform, several
women leaders at senior levels
across the organization have
volunteered to share their
experience to develop the
next generation of women
leadership.

Another area of focus for enhancing inclusion and diversity at Glenmark
are our parental leave policies. We believe that family-friendly policies play
a crucial role in the retention of employees. Our policies are designed to
support employees during important life events, enabling us to retain top
talent. We have a strong return-to-work ratio for permanent employees,
including female employees who have taken parental leaves.

Category Permanent Employees*
Male Female

Employees entitled for parental leave 9,620 1,067

Employees that took parental leave 452 62

Employees that returned to work in the reporting 452 61

period after parental leave ended

Employees that returned to work after parental 345 22

leave ended that were still employed 12 months

after their return to work

Rate of Return to work that took parental leave 100% 98%

Retention rates of employees that took parental 84% 69%

leave

*Data for India employees

Our remuneration ratios demonstrate our commitment to inclusion. We endeavor
to maintain equity in the compensation of men and women, across the Board,

vis-a-vis their levels and roles.

I,

Ratio of basic salary and
remuneration of women to men

. Employee Ratio of basic
___:_r_"r"l categories remuneration of
' women to men
i Core 0.95

Management

& Senior

Management
Middle 1

Management
Junior 1

Management
Non-Management 1.2

*Scope: India Employees
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Employee centricity

At Glenmark, we strive to create
an environment that empowers
our most critical resource to live
up to their potential, enabling
them to break ground on
innovation, rethink the frontiers
of what is possible, and reimagine
solutions for some of the most
pressing health care issues we
face globally. Employee centricity
is at the heart of our approach -
this goes beyond mere benefits
and perks; it involves fostering a
culture of open communication
with the leadership and providing
opportunities for growth.

Our commitment to employee
centricity is embodied in our

3Cs framework - Celebrate,
Connect, Care - that takes a
360-degree approach to employee
development, ensuring increased
productivity, stronger engagement

with the leadership and improved
retention rates; ultimately driving
overall organizational success
and creating a workplace where
employees thrive.

The 3Cs are a holistic approach

to workforce development,
integrating professional growth,
personal well-being, and employee
engagement. It covers training
volunteering opportunities,
rewards and recognition,
mentorship, and opportunities

for engagement with senior
leadership. It is this 360-degree
approach which gives us a
competitive edge; ensuring our
teams are well equipped, well-
adjusted, and well-informed, to
work in tandem to achieve their
individual and collective potential.
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Celebrate

We believe in celebrating wins -
big or small; but more importantly,
we believe in appreciating those
employees who make it happen
through their hard work and
dedication. Acknowledging the
exceptional contributions of

our workforce ensures that we
build a culture of meritocracy,
boost employee morale, and
encourage collaboration and
collective achievement across the
organization.

We have carefully curated our
recognition programs to ensure
that we acknowledge the wide
range of skill sets and diverse job
functions in our organization:

EA

EEASREAM SRR L TNET AT

? Chairman’s Excellence Awards
- This is Glenmark’s flagship
annual recognition program
which aims to commemorate
the outstanding contribution
of individuals and teams across
our organization. This platform
is established in line with
our values of knowledge and
achievement, to celebrate the
extraordinary work done by
each employee.

F |

? Glenmark Thanks Platform -
This is an online platform that
enables Glenmarkians across
the globe to share gratitude,
encourage efforts and reward
results through recognition.
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ACE Individual Award - This
award aims to appreciate and
recognize employees for a
specific project or event that
has been delivered beyond the

employee’s expected duties and

responsibilities.

ﬁ PRESIDENT'S CLUB

(4

(4

President’s Club - The
President’s Club is one of

our most successful talent
identification and recognition
tools for our front-line
employees in the Operations
and Quality groups. Members
undergo a rigorous selection
process, which measures
employee competencies,
scientifically and objectively.

Star Awards - Star Awards
are Glenmark’s annual rewards
program that recognize and
reward the high performing
members of the Sales Team.
Each region has its own
awards where collectively they
celebrate the wins of the year.

Connect

As an organization, we strongly believe that we are more than the sum
of our parts. We come together as over 15,000 individuals located across
50+ countries, with diverse job functions to achieve a common purpose
and united by a strong vision and mission.

Through regular town halls and established platforms such as Leadership
Connect employees get a first-hand understanding of the organization’s
vision and strategy from the senior-most leadership of the Company;
creating a shared sense of purpose, and a work culture that is conducive
to collaboration and teamwork.

With Glenmark Connect, the Company’s global intranet; SynerG, our
global internal newsletter featuring employee stories and significant
events around the Glenmark world; as well as the corporate social
media handles on LinkedIn and Instagram; our employees keep
themselves abreast of the latest developments within the organization.

Another dimension of ‘connect’ is knowledge sharing across the
organization. We recognize the plethora of perspectives and expertise
our employees bring to the table, and we strive to leverage this collective
knowledge of the workforce through our people-powered learning and
engagement platforms. This takes the form of employee-to-employee
connect, alongside the more formalized training sessions conducted

by Glenmark. For a global team such as ours, we leverage the power of
technology to ensure that our teams across continents can connect on a
single platform.

At Glenmark, we are dedicated to cultivating an environment
where each and every employee feels genuinely heard, recognized,
and appreciated. We firmly believe in the power of creating a
workplace where individuals’ voices matter, their contributions are
acknowledged, and their inherent value is deeply respected.
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iSAY has been our platform to listen to the voice of our employees so that we can improve

our work environment on a continual basis. This platform provides employees with an
opportunity to share their thoughts, opinions, and experiences on various aspects of our

BUILD o . -

workplace, primarily through engagement surveys. This year we partnered with the Great

Place to Work® (GPTW Institute), a global authority on workplace culture, to conduct an

organization-wide engagement survey. Our engagement score has consistently increased

over the years, reflecting our commitment to building a great workplace.

Learning & Development

Our structured learning and
development approach ensures
employees are equipped to handle
current roles and responsibilities
as well as have an opportunity

to develop themselves to take

up larger or more critical roles

in line with their aspirations and
the organizational needs. This
holistic approach ensures that

our employees contribute to the
organization’s vision, grow in their
roles, and eventually take on the
mantle of leadership.

Our learning interventions are
developed through a blended
approach, where the classroom
as well as technology-enabled
platforms are leveraged to ensure
seamless learning for employees.

Technology Enablement

Aspire is our Learning
Management System (LMS)
that is digitally accessible to all
employees across the world.

It is an innovative, cloud-based
and validated LMS designed to
improve employee skills, reduce
compliance risks, and effectively
train all our employees through
digital learning. Various quality,
compliance and skill building
training programs are managed
through the LMS for various
locations.

Further, we have also launched
the GCL DIGITAL platform in
2022 with the aim of enabling
continuous learning for our
employees. This in-house digital
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learning platform comprises 300 learning assets and is based on three
pillars, namely - Choice, Convenience and Curation. The platform offers
learning assets in multiple formats to suit different learning styles and
provides the opportunity for our employees to learn on-the-go in an
interactive format.

We also have platforms tailored for our field force - Glenmark Learning
Academy caters to the knowledge requirement and Glenmark Center
for Academic Training leverages the power of technology to drive skill
building. These are designed with the goal of adding value and improving
customer engagement.

Glenmark Competency Model:

Anchored on the Glenmark
Competency Model,

Drive Glenmark Centre for
Result

Learning offers best-in-
class learning programs in
partnership with reputed
global learning experts as a
part of the Global Learning
Calendar. It delivers
high-impact Competency
Development Programs
across a variety of topics
focusing on leadership,
professional excellence and
transition. These programs
are designed with built-in
immersive experiences and
real-world scenario-based
application settings.

Glenmark Competency Model ensures that our workforce is future
ready. It encompasses a range of competencies that collectively
ensures our talent remains relevant in the face of changing patient and
health care requirements, technological advancements, and evolving
business needs. Our Values of Achievement, Respect and Knowledge
form the core of our competencies. Being an organization that
prioritizes value-led knowledge dispersion, we have created a robust
learning ecosystem committed to giving our employees the best
learning experiences.
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Training Hours for Employees

Gender Total Training Hours Average Training Hours
per employee

Male 4,76,762 35
Female 50,659 26
Overall 5,27,421 34

Specific Learning Interventions

The Operations and Quality functions have a specially designed AXLE
program for the middle management who act as the bridge between the
department head and the operators covering over 120 employees. The
program is aimed at helping the participants to:

Build a sense
of trust and
psychological safety in
the teams to choose
a more proactive
approach to ensure less
firefighting actions at

the plant
Influence
team members, Delegate
seniors and cross- responsibilities
functional stakeholders effectively to
to drive greater empower teams
alignment between and utilize their own
their respective teams energy for higher
and stakeholders order work

Sales Development Academy

is an integrated platform for the
identification and development of
high-potential employees across

our field force team in Central and
Eastern Europe. It offers curated
employee learning and development
plans through dedicated mentors
who also review progress on an
ongoing basis.

Research and Development is at

the core of the life sciences industry.
Recognizing this, we harness the
power of innovation to expand our
product portfolio towards gradually
moving up the value chain and
increasing the proportion of specialty
medications in our product mix.

While the field of science is
constantly evolving, and technologies
are supporting the development of
a whole new generation of drugs,
we think augmenting our R&D
efforts will sharpen our competitive
advantage and support our purpose
of protecting lives. Our initiatives

on Quality by Design and Learning
on the GO are specific quality and
knowledge improvement efforts
focused on our R&D Group.
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Career life-cycle specific programs

100% of our eligible employees receive regular performance and career
development reviews from the leadership, that ensure continued feedback
and support in taking on more responsibilities and advancing their career.

We also have programs curated to specific stages of their career within in
the organization:

|. New joiners: ‘Fly High with Glenmark’ is a global onboarding program,
designed to induct our recruits into the organization’s culture, policies,
processes and systems. The program is a one-stop platform to get
an employee oriented within the organization; enabling a smooth on-
boarding process so they can hit the ground running.

II. New employee hires (FY 2023)

Male Female <30 30-50 >50
Years Years Years
Core 17 2 0 8 n
Management
& Senior
Management
Middle 57 7 0 52 12
Management
Junior 257 89 33 305 8
Management
Non- 3,419 379 2,557 1,225 16
Management

|. First-time Managers: These programs are calibrated to support
employees across their major transitions within the organization. These
include the ‘First Time Manager Program’ and the ‘Manager of Managers
Program’ which enable new leaders adapt to their changing roles, swiftly
and effectively.

Il. Junior to Mid-management:

LIFT (Let’s Ignite, Forge,
Transform)’ is a flagship
leadership intervention, which
focuses on identifying and
developing high potential talent
at junior to mid-management
level to take up targeted senior
leadership roles. Currently,

two leadership journeys are
taking place as part of the LIFT
initiative. The first one is geared
towards the Manufacturing Site
Head role, and the second one
towards the Country Manager
role, collectively covering a total
of 20 participants. This high-
intensive program is designed
to strengthen the participants’
leadership and functional
capabilities through a mix of
cohort-led and personalized
interventions, over a period of
two to four years. Some of these
interventions include planned
role movements (within and
outside their own functions),
high-impact projects, shadowing,
trainings programs, mentoring
and peer learning.
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Ill. Mid-Management to Senior

Leadership: One of the key
leadership development initiatives
at Glenmark is the ‘GOLD’
program. The GOLD program

is a flagship program for mid

to senior high-potential leaders

to develop leadership skills.
Important aspects of the program
include a 360-degree assessment,
learning workshops, webinars,
cross-functional business projects,
individual coaching, and mentoring
by senior Glenmark leaders.

? Overall, 31 employees were
covered in the fourth Cohort of
the GOLD program, resulting in
about 2,300 hours of learning.

? The last three cohorts saw
over 60 high potential leaders
successfully completing the
GOLD program; with 65% of the
participants getting promoted
into high-impact job roles.

|V. Top-tier Leadership Development:

‘GlenEagles’ is Glenmark’s flagship
leadership development program
for senior leaders. It is a year-

long multi-modal and immersive
development journey, which helps
participants gain self-awareness
and develop Wfuture leadership
capabilities. This is a unique
program where the participants
are working on cross functional

high-impact projects identified
by the Chairman and Managing
Director, and mentored by leaders
from the core operating Group.

7 In totality, 22 employees were

covered with about 2,000 hours of

learning.

4 Winning in the Marketplace It
is a long-duration leadership
development program for
commercial leaders to enhance
and bring about a step change
in their business acumen and
leadership quotient. Under the
mentorship of business leaders,
over the period of a year, 24
commercial leaders underwent
a rigorous journey comprising
multiple assessments, learning
labs, leadership workshops,
business simulation, SME (subject
matter experts) led workshops,
and learning application
assignments.

Talent Management and
Succession Planning

We have initiated a comprehensive,
objective Talent Management
framework. The process design
supports identifying, engaging,
developing and deploying talent
aligned to the organization’s vision
and goals. The framework prioritizes
proven performance and potential

for success in new and varied roles
and opens possibilities to build a
diverse and enriching career at
Glenmark. Managers and leaders,
supported by HR partners, identify
critical talent which is engaged
and developed through regular
reviews and feedback. One of

the key components of the talent
management process is succession
planning for critical roles. The
process ensures smooth transition
for critical roles. A well-defined

succession plan safeguards our future

by nurturing talent and fostering a
culture of growth.

In the years ahead, we look forward
to making significant strides

towards building a strong leadership
pipeline and furthering a culture of
meritocracy and continuous learning.

Employee Turnover

Financial Year % Turnover

FY 2023 19%
FY 2022 19%
FY 2021 15%
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Care

At Glenmark, we are invested in the well-being of our employees beyond their professional success. We take a
holistic view to employee health and are invested in their all-round growth. Our care program rests on four Pillars

of Wellness:

Pillars of Wellness

3

? Create awareness
around lifestyle
diseases

? Promote self-care

1 Encourage a healthy
lifestyle

&

? Availability of
Employee Assistance
Programs

S Regular webinars
promoting mental and
emotional wellness

planning

? Provide

? Provide access to
resources for financial

comprehensive
medical and life

? Programs/activities
that bring teams
together

? Foster inclusivity

insurance programs

We believe that a supportive workplace leads to improved employee engagement, higher job satisfaction, lower
attrition rates, enhanced creativity and innovation, and an overall increase in productivity and performance.

Within our organizational boundaries, our Employee Health and Safety (EHS) program ensures their physical
well-being. Beyond work, we have initiatives that cater to our employees’ mental health and wellness, providing
opportunities for volunteering, donating, and coming together for festivals, celebrations, and sporting events.

Employee Wellness, Mental Health and Volunteering Programs

In order to drive engagement

at work and an overall sense of
well-being, we have implemented
a number of initiatives that cater
to the holistic development of

our employees including mental
health programs (yoga sessions),
awareness programs (for breast
cancer, diabetes, hypertension, and
even teratogenic awareness for
expectant mothers), volunteering
opportunities (through activities
such as Joy of Giving, covered
further in the Social and
Relationship Capital Section),
fitness initiatives, and team
sporting events (Glenmark Cricket
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League; a highly anticipated
annual event for employees from
locations across India).

Every region has a unique
approach toward employee well-
being.

)

¢ ‘Employee Assistance Program

is available for all employees
in India. The program is free,
voluntary and confidential for
all our employees. It provides
services such as counselling
sessions, life coaches and
mental well-being programs.

1 Employees in North America
have the benefit of 24/7 access
to certified professionals for
mental health support and
counseling through their
comprehensive benefits
package. The promotion of
physical well-being is evident
through the availability of
yoga sessions, fitness boot
camps, and a state-of-the-
art gymnasium on-site, with
additional fitness challenges to
engage employees.
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Great Place To Work®
Certification

This year we partnered with

Great Place to Work® (GPTW)
Institute, a global authority on
workplace culture, to conduct an
organization-wide engagement
survey. Our engagement score has
consistently increased over the
years, reflecting our commitment
to building a great workplace.

Great
Place
10

Work.

Certified

FEB 2023 - FEB 2024
INDIA

Human Rights

As a global organization, Glenmark’s
operations can have a far-reaching
impact on diverse communities

and stakeholders. Recognizing this
responsibility, we have consistently
upheld the fundamental principles
of human rights across our business
activities and in every location
where we operate. Our Human
Rights Policy mandates zero
tolerance towards discrimination,
child labor, and forced labor

across our value chain. Through

the implementation of our human
rights policy, we ensure adherence
to global standards in line with

the Universal Declaration of

Human Rights, International Labor
Organization’s (ILO) Fundamental
Human Rights Conventions, and the
UN’s Guiding Principle on Business
and Human Rights.

We are delighted to report that Glenmark India*, received the
prestigious Great Place To Work® Certification for the period 2023-24.
This certification was awarded, based on a detailed workplace culture
assessment, conducted by the Great Place to Work® Institute, on the
foundation of their Trust Index™ and Culture Audit™ Framework. The
Trust Index™ Framework captures employee feedback around the five
key dimensions of Trust, Respect, Fairness, Pride and Camaraderie, while
the Culture Audit Framework captures design of people practises around
Maximizing Human Potential, Values, Innovation for All, and Leadership

Effectiveness.

Human Rights Due-Diligence

Our deep commitment to
safeguarding human rights and
ensuring that our operations

and business practises align

with internationally recognized
human rights principles led us to
conduct a comprehensive human
rights assessment periodically
across our facilities. Last year the
assessment was conducted by an
external, third-party organization
with the primary objective of
identifying any human rights-
related risks in our operations.
The identification of risks was
followed by the development of
a proactive mitigation strategy
taking into account industry-
specific characteristics and best-
case practises. This assessment
has helped us strengthen our

commitment to protecting the
rights of our employees and
workers by taking pre-emptive
action and providing them a
platform to communicate about
the issues they are facing. The
assessment was conducted
across our offices, R&D sites, and
manufacturing facilities. The focus
areas included health and safety,
fair compensation, labor rights,
and right to privacy. We have in
place policies - Global Grievance
Redressal and Human Rights - that
provide a mechanism to report
such cases.

Employee Rights - We prioritize
the rights and well-being of

our employees. To this end, we
conducted an assessment that
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included evaluating working
conditions, the presence of a safe
and inclusive work environment,
and systems for protecting
employee data privacy. We are
an equal opportunity employer
and strictly condemn any kind of
discrimination based on caste,
religion, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, race, color, ancestry,
marital status, or affiliation with
a political, religious or union
organization or majority/minority
groups, among others. We
continuously engage with our
workforce to address concerns

and encourage open dialogue. Any
breach is reported to our Human
Resources team, and can be
initiated by any of our employees
or contract workers.

Prevention of Child and Forced
Labor - We are committed

to preventing child labor and
forced labor in all aspects of our
operations and supply chain.
We conducted a comprehensive
assessment to identify any

risks related to these issues

and confirmed the presence

of measures to prevent their
occurrence.

Key Performance Indicators for FY 2023

Number of reported
incidents of
discrimination- O

Number of reported
incidents of child labor
within the Company’s
operations- O

Number of identified

incidents of violations
involving the rights of
indigenous peoples- O

Number of reported
incidents of sexual
harassment- 2

Number of reported
incidents of forced labor
within the Company’s
operations- O

Membership of employees
and worker in association(s)
or Unions recognized by the
Company- 6%

By conducting this assessment, we reaffirmed our commitment to
ongoing improvement and alignment with the international human rights
standards. Our dedication to upholding human rights is an integral part
of our mission to provide high-quality healthcare solutions and make a
positive impact on society and the communities we serve.
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Employee Health and Safety
(EHS)

At Glenmark, the safety, health,
and well-being of our employees
is our foremost priority. We are
committed to fostering a safe
work environment through the
development and implementation
of our EHS (Environment, Health,
and Safety) policy. This policy
ensures the establishment

of a robust health and safety
management system that adheres
to industry best practises. Our
focus on health and safety extends
to all employees working across all
our manufacturing facilities.

EHS Policy

Our EHS policy is designed

to ensure the safety of our
employees and workers. It is based
on the Deming Cycle of ‘Plan Do
Check Act’ (PDCA) and focuses
on the comprehensive assessment
of our manufacturing plants’
safety practises. We conduct
regular training and equipment
inspections to ensure the highest
level of safety for our employees.

We acknowledge the inherent

risks associated with our industrial
operations and are committed to
enhancing our safety practises

and equipment to prioritize safety,
reliability, and effectiveness. Our
commitment extends to aligning
our health and safety management
system with global best practises.

Safety Committee

We have established 41 apex and
departmental EHS Committees
comprising 422 management
members, 26 non-management,
and 69 contract workers’
representatives.
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To identify hazards and assess potential risks, we conduct periodic Hazard
and Operability Studies (HAZOP) and Hazard Identification and Risk
Assessments (HIRA), taking proactive measures to mitigate these risks.

These services encompass a
range of programs and initiatives
designed to protect and promote
the health of employees in the
workplace. In the reporting year,
we demonstrated a proactive
approach by

EHS policy

based Assessment
st of our HAZOP HIRA . . .
Deming Cycle of (API plants) (API and ? Ensuring that the design of
Plan Do Check plan':safety oo buildings and equipment were
practises

aligned with the relevant safety
standards.

Act (PDCA) plants)

4 Establishing administrative
controls (SOPs) to direct and
monitor our operations.

The safety Annual assessment Periodic training
assessment covers of global safety of employees on ¢ Setting up Occupational Health

Centers across all our facilities
according to applicable legal
requirements.

every process programs HIRA and HAZOP

undertaken and
equipment installed
in the plant

Nearly and Hazard Management Online Portal

An online portal, with an accompanying SOP, was created to facilitate
the reporting of near-misses and hazards by all employees. The portal
includes a timeframe for the EHS lead and area owner to evaluate OHS
risk and implement corrective actions based on the OHS risk level of
reported hazards and near-misses.

Occupational Health Services

Occupational health services are vital components of our commitment to
employee well-being and safety.

Global Safety Programs Over the Years

| Corporate Overview
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2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
z ? z . O .

Working at Confined Machine Personal Industrial Traffic Process
heights + process guarding + protective hygiene + management safety +
Chemical safety + Emergency equipment + Occupational + Manual Lifting tools
safety + Lifting tools preparedness Management health material & tackles
Contractors & tackles + and response of change management handling &

safety + Electrical plan control ergonomics

Lock out safety

and tag out
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16

|
Global Safety Programs

implemened by FY 2023

The Global Safety Program is a
well-structured program that
assisted all functional OHS
coordinators at the locations with
the implementation of OHS and
legislative requirements. The site
leadership team’s daily, weekly,
and monthly OHS inspections have
benefited in the identification and
quick rectification of identified
OHS deficiencies.

Supporting the Global Safety
Program initiative, this year

we launched safety e-modules

on Chemical Safety, Machine
Guarding, Confined Space Entry
Safety, and the Lock Out & Tag

Out program for easy access and
effective learning. Accordingly, 16
Global Safety Programs have been
launched over the period of six years
to improve safety at the sites. While
the programs are ongoing in nature,
a year-end assessment was made
to establish the performance of the
facilities. The assessment helped us
ascertain the progress of individual
plants while also allowing us to
benchmark performance across the
Company and identify opportunities
for learning and future course
correction. Each month, a plant’s
cross-functional team reviews the
effectiveness of the implementation
of these programs with the
corporate EHS team.
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Certifications & Audits

ISO Standards

The ISO 14001:2015 helps Glenmark outline the key elements of an
Environment Management System (EMS), including the identification
of environmental aspects, setting of objectives and targets,
implementation of operational controls, and continuous improvement
processes. Adherence to this standard, ensures that we systematically
address environmental concerns, reduce our carbon footprint,

enhance sustainability practises, and demonstrate our commitment to
stakeholders and the broader community for responsibly managing the
environment.

The ISO 45001:2018 standard provides a comprehensive framework

for us to proactively manage occupational health and safety risks and
create safer working environment for employees and stakeholders. This
certification emphasizes the identification of hazards, assessment of
risks, and implementation of effective controls to prevent work-related
injuries, illnesses, and fatalities. By adhering to this standard, Glenmark
can foster a safety culture, promote employee well-being, and enhance
their overall occupational health and safety performance.

1

|
Global manufacturing facilities certified for

1SO 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 standards.
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IS 14489 Audits

In FY 2023, IS 14489 audits were conducted at Nashik and Indore sites. The IS 14489 audit process reviewed
our preparedness to manage Occupational Safety and Health related risks. This code provides instructions for
establishing, conducting, planning and documenting of audits on occupational safety and health systems at

Glenmark at a defined frequency.

Prioritizing Safety

To minimize the impact of potential
incidents or major consequences,
our aim is to raise awareness

about safety practises throughout
our organization. In line with this
goal, we provide comprehensive
safety training to our employees,
recognizing their crucial role as first
responders in unforeseen situations.
By empowering them with the
necessary knowledge and skills,

we strengthen our capabilities and
enhance the safety culture across our
organization.

1,41,114

The total training hours
in FY 2023

Bringing Training To
The Employees

To ensure that training sessions are
logistically easier to implement,

our Nashik Plant rolled out an
Innovative Mobile Presentation
Training System. This is a portable
kiosk, which allows trainers to reach
all Glenmark employees at their
work place without hampering daily
operations. This is an important
innovation to ensure even the
smallest safety related updates are
communicated seamlessly, without
the need to move employees to a
specific venue and organize a major
training program. This also reduces
time lags in communicating to
employees. This training system will
be rolled out across other site as
well during the following year.

Process
safety
management

Job safety
analysis

Industrial
hygiene

First aid

Powder
safety

Safety Data
Sheets (SDS)

ISO 14001 and
45001 internal
and lead

auditor course

Incident
Investigation
workshop

Emergency
preparedness

1514489 OHS
auditing
standard

OHS
E-Learning
modules -
LOTO

Machine
Guarding

Contractors
Safety

Incident
Investigation
workshop

Hazard
Identification
and Risk
Assessment
(HIRA)

Hazard
Operability
Study
(HAZOP)
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201015 2019-20 | 2020-21 202122 207223
0.05 0.02

LTIFR 0.10 0.10 0.03

Occupational disease 0 0 0 0 0
OIFR 0 0 0 0 0
Near-miss and Hazards reported 7,027 8,004 8,556 9,421 10,052
Injuries 268 187 105 108 85

We have ensured 100% closure rate in addressing any incident. Whenever an incident takes place, we ensure that
corrective and preventive action (CAPA) is taken, and then implemented across all our sites.

New Initiatives implemented in FY 2023

3 critical safety areas identified,

|.e. Machine guarding, Lock Out OHS Inspections by Senior
Tag Out, Working at height by Leadership team & EHS team
senior management with area specific HODs

Monthly Safety
campaigns

Behavior-based
Safety survey
at three sites by ‘
external expert
New

Initiatives
‘ [

Occupational Health
Safety Inspections/audit
by External Safety auditor
at all Manufacturing sites

Training Workshops on
Incident Investigation
for area owners through
External experts

Competency Matrix for
EHS team to identify
training needs the with
support of Corporate HR

Cross sites audits
by EHS Site
heads for 7 sites
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Our Awards

Annual Health

Safety Environment
\ l Strategy Summit &
Awards

National Level
OHS Award
in Platinum Category
(Goa site)

Winner of
Grow Care India
Fire Safety Awards
in Gold category in Pharmaceuticals
sector for Outstanding Achievement
in Fire Safety Management

(R&D Centre, Taloja)

\V4
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Natural
Capital

&

& ®
As a responsible corporate citizen, we are .,,0 e® »
cognizant of how our operations impact the o, ®
environment. ‘ A
Natural capital refers to the Earth’s natural Contribution to SDGs

resources, ecosystems and biodiversity that

provide essential inputs necessary for our S
. . .. . . AND SANITATION

business activities. During the year under review,

we have implemented several precise measures E

to minimize our environmental footprint and
protect the ecosystems that support our 12 G| 13 S
ANDI

APnon
operations. cx) @

Note: This section covers India locations unless otherwise stated.
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Focus Areas

-

Climate Resilience

Resource Efficiency

w N

Energy Management

-

Water Stewardship

Interlinkages with other capitals

Social & Relationship Capital

Included community engagement
and responsible stakeholder \
management.

Intellectual Capital

Contributed to enhanced
institutional knowledge on
environmental sustainability.

Highlights for the year

Increase

|
in share of Renewable

Energy in energy mix

SBTi
|
approved GHG

emission reduction
targets

Mapping with NGRBC Principles

Material Topics

# Climate Change

# Circular Economy

Manufactured Capital

Digitization and automation

have been integrated into the
manufacturing process to enhance
operational efficiency and reduce
resource consumption.

.y”

Reduction

[ |
in emissions of GHG/

emission intensity

1\ —d

Financial Capital

3 36.9 million capital invested in
energy efficiency measures resulting
in cost savings of ¥151.7 million due
to improved efficiencies.

4

|
manufacturing facilities

and 2 R&D facilities are
‘Zero Waste to Landfill’

# Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe.

Z Principle 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment.
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Ambitions/Commitments

Become
carbon neutral

by the year 2030
(Covers Scope 1
and Scope 2
emissions)

Achieve
water neutral
operations by
the year 2025

‘Zero Waste
to Landfill’
by the year
2027

Commitment-wise Initiatives taken in FY 2023

Achieve Water Neutral Operations by 2025

v

#  Our water conservation efforts extend from process improvements for reduction at source, to
technology-led solutions for utilities, and CSR activities for replenishment.

?  We reuse and recycle our consumed water and treated effluents, we have Zero Liquid Discharge
(ZLD) facilities for treating effluents, and have also implemented water replenishment initiatives after
identifying water-stressed areas in the vicinity of our plants.

?  We have already created 300,000 KL water potential across 15+ sites in Maharashtra and Madhya

Pradesh. We have created an additional 784,870 KL water potential across 12 sites in Gujarat and
Maharashtra, which will be realized in FY 2024.

Reach ‘Zero Waste to Landfill’ by 2027

v

As of FY 2023, four manufacturing facilities and two R&D facilities have achieved our ‘Zero Waste to
Landfill’ objective, which will subsequently cover all Glenmark’s sites.

Become Carbon Neutral by 2030

v

We have taken measures to reduce our carbon footprint, by using cleaner sources of fuel such as LPG,
PNG in our operations, adopting bio briquette boilers, energy efficient equipment, and increasing the
renewable energy usage in FY 2023 compared to FY 2022.
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SCIENCE
BASED
TARGETS

DRIVING AMBITIOUS CORPORATE CLIMATE ACTION

Reaffirming our commitment
towards sustainability

We recently joined the esteemed Science
Based Targets initiative (SBTi) business
ambition for well below 2°C, and got certified
following a rigorous 5-stage review. We
became the second Indian pharmaceutical
Company to receive this approval.

The SBTi’s approved our commitment to
reduce its absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions by 35% (from a FY 2021 base year)
by FY 2035. The target boundary includes
biogenic land-related emissions and removals
from bioenergy feedstock. The approval also
extends to our pledge to reduce scope 3 Green
House Gas (GHG) emissions from purchased
goods and services, fuel and energy related
activities, downstream transportation and
distribution, and investments by 28% per ton
of pharmaceutical products within the same
timeframe.

The Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi)
mobilizes companies to set science-based
targets and boost their competitive advantage
in the transition to the low-carbon economy.

It is a partnership between CDP, the United
Nations Global Compact, World Resources
Institute (WRI) and the World Wide Fund for
Nature (WWF).

F1ELLE
airman and
Managing Director

We are pleased to
announce that the Science
Based Targets initiative
(SBTi) has validated our
Green House Gas (GHG)
emission targets. This
certification gives us an
impetus to further pursue
our ESG goals, while also
benchmarking us at a
global scale. We are proud
to be the second Indian
Pharmaceutical Company
to have our targets
certified by the SBTi.
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Natural Resource
Management

We are dedicated to efficient

and sustainable natural resource
management. We strive to
minimize our consumption of
water, energy, and raw materials
through the implementation

of conservation measures and

the adoption of innovative
technologies. Our initiatives include
water recycling systems, energy-
efficient manufacturing processes,
and responsible sourcing practises
for raw materials.

Governance Mechanism

We have a robust governance
mechanism that includes a

Board level ESG committee,
which is responsible for framing
the sustainability and climate
change initiatives at Glenmark.
The committee comprises two
Independent Directors and is
chaired by our Chairman and
Managing Director. The President
is responsible for taking monthly
progress updates of initiatives
towards Climate Change. He
oversees the implementation and
management of the progress
made against the targets set by
Glenmark.

1 manufacturing sites
across the world have been

ISO 14001
and ISO
45001 certified

In FY 2023, there has
been no significant
regulatory fines or
sanctions for non-
compliance with
environmental laws or
voluntary standards.

Energy Management

We recognize the significant role that
energy plays in our operations and
the potential environmental impact
associated with its use. We strive to
minimize our energy consumption
through efficient practises,
technological advancements, and

the implementation of energy
management systems. Our approach
includes regular energy audits,

the identification of energy-saving
opportunities, and the integration

of renewable energy sources

where feasible. We prioritize

energy efficiency measures in our
manufacturing facilities, office spaces,
and logistics operations to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and lower
our carbon footprint. By continuously
improving our energy management
practises, we not only contribute

to mitigating climate change but
also achieve cost savings, enhance
operational efficiency, and promote a
sustainable future.
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Key Performance Indicators
(FY 2023)

13,80,417

Total Energy Consumed (GJ)

85,769

Total energy consumption from
renewable energy sources (GJ)

6.2%

Total energy consumption from
renewable energy sources (%)

Total Energy Consumed (GJ)

13,80,417
10,77,519 1115900
— F

FY21 FY22 FY23

Total energy consumption from
Renewable resources(GJ)

85,769
53,651
32,244
FY 21 FY 22 FY 23
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$36.9 million

Capital Investment in
Energy Efficiency
measures

61%

Energy consumption at Taloja
and Mahape R&D centers from
renewable energy sources

0.080 GJ/KG

Energy intensity

2151.7 million

Cost Savings

380 KL

Biofuel and biodiesel
consumption

14.15%

9.43%
37.85%

20.47%

1.07% Biodiesel

@ Biofuel

® Biobriquette

® High Speed Diesel (HSD) ® LPG and PNG
Furnace Oil

® Low Sulphur Heavy Stock (LSHS)

® Light Diesel Oil (LDO)
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During the year, we invested Initiatives
% 37 million in energy-saving
initiatives to fulfill our goal of
becoming carbon neutral by 2030.
Our most significant investments
have been made in boiler fuel
conversion, heat pump Installations,
digitization, lighting, automation and

Investing in alternate sources of energy

fuel-saving initiatives. Our attempts During the reporting year, we initiated the pursuit for a third-party

are focused on enabling our current captive solar power plant for our Nashik and Aurangabad plants. We
operations to become viable for have also signed Power Purchase Agreements for the establishment
carbon neutrality and release limited of hydro-power open access as a renewable source of energy at Taloja
emissions. Along with continuous and Mahape R&D sites. Approximately, 61% of the energy requirements
investments, we have also tracked at the R&D sites are met by this renewable energy source.

the savings generated from these
interventions. Tracking the economic
gains from our energy-saving
initiatives helps us improve our
strategies and divert more resources
towards energy conservation
initiatives. Our most notable cost-
saving initiatives are focused on To improve our lighting system, we have replaced 400 36\W Compact

fuel optimization, and transitioning fluorescent lamps (CFL) tube rod lights with 18W LED Phillips Lighting
Lamp (PLL) rod lights. We also replaced 710 36 W conventional lamps with
15/18/20W LED lamps. Light motion sensors have also been installed across
the sites to minimize wastage.

Conservation of Energy

of our Heating, Ventilation, and Air

Conditioning (HVAC) reactivation to

electric heating to increase heating

efficiency and reduce condensate We have optimized operation of pumps used for motors and blowers by

losses. measures such as installing Variable Frequency Drive (VFD), new bearings
for motors, to mention a few. The installation of heat pumps at the
Aurangabad and Nasik plant have helped us save about 1,74,849 KWH of
energy in FY 2023.

Optimization

Automation - Initiatives such as the digitization of HVAC systems help maintain precise air quality and
achieve energy savings. At our regulated site in Goa, we have initiated HVAC digitization, due to which
the projected energy savings are about 54,77,728 KWH in FY 2023.

Refrigeration, Heating and Compress Air Systems - Implementation of solutions to reduce steam
utilization, such as installing heat pumps, as well as installing newer, more energy-efficient refrigerant air
dryers have resulted in significant reductions in power consumption in manufacturing processes.

Fuel Optimization - Measures such as converting boiler fuel from High-Speed Diesel (HSD) to piped
natural gas (PNG), installing a new lotion manufacturing tank to match batch size, and redesigning HVAC
piping to recover, collect and feed condensate back to the boiler using gravity have helped optimize and
reduce fuel consumption across various sites. We have also started using cleaner fuels, such as biofuels, in
our operations at Nashik and Aurangabad, and Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) for hot water generation
at Baddi and steam generation at Nalagarh and PNG in boiler operations at Goa.

Process Optimization - The plants undertook various measures during the course of the year to optimize
their processes. Across the various plant locations, measures were undertaken during the year to improve
processes. For instance, the Sikkim plant automated its steam supply to optimize the Fluid Bed Processor;
the Nalagarh plant modified its packing lines colwrap machines by reducing thickness of heater plates to
reduce heating time, which in turn led to power savings.
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Case Study - Nashik Plant

Energy Savings in HVAC Reactivation Heating

Previous Scenario

Reactivation heating in HVAC System Dehumidifiers Action Taken
was previously conducted using Steam generation in
non-IBR (Indian Boiler Regulation certified) boilers.

We have now switched over from steam
heating to electrical heating, which has

Steam heating is expensive since wet steam resulted in cost benefits.

generation results in relatively low heating value and
more condensate losses.

Energy Savings

1,12,335 Ltr

(~%10.2 million)

|
Annual Diesel Saving

Heat Pump Installation

Previous Scenario Action Taken

Fins-type Electrical air heaters were
installed in each Air handling unit (AHU)
for maintaining relative humidity in the
respective processing areas.

The heat pump has been installed for the generation
of hot water. Hot water and cold water circulation
loops are installed for all 34 AHUs.

This system absorbs heat during dehumidification
and converts the same into hot water. Since it also
generates chilled water, the load on the chiller has
also been reduced.

A total load of 452 KW heaters was
connected in 34 AHUs.

Energy Savings
After installation of heat pump existing chillers

load decreased by Avg. 6,557 Tonnes of
refrigeration (TRH) per month.

Average per month energy savings

Z 0.498 million saved every achieved by installation of heat
month, at a rate of 11.5 per pump is 44390 KWH (kilowatt
KWH in four months (August hour) achieved during high ambient
to November). humidity season (July to November)

due to installation of heat pump.
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Emission Management

We are dedicated to efficiently managing emissions to minimize our environmental impact and contribute to global

efforts to combat climate change. We recognize that greenhouse gas emissions from our operations have the potential

to contribute to climate change, and we work towards mitigating the same. We employ comprehensive emissions
management strategies that include the measurement, monitoring, and reduction of our carbon footprint. Through
continuous improvement initiatives, we strive to enhance energy efficiency, optimize processes, and invest in cleaner
technologies. We set ambitious emissions reduction targets and regularly assess our progress to ensure we meet or exceed
regulatory requirements and industry best practises. By reducing our emissions, we aim to protect the environment, support
the transition to a low-carbon economy, and promote sustainable development in line with our commitment to corporate
responsibility.

Automation initiatives such as digitization of HVAC systems have helped maintain pure air quality and led to emission
reductions, for instance in our regulated site in Goa, we have achieved projected emission reductions of 4,686 TCO2e.

Additionally, the installation of heat pumps at the Aurangabad and Nasik plants has helped reduce emissions by about
2,026 TCO2e (metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent).

Through our efforts we have managed to achieve reduction in Scope 1 emission by 42% as
compared to the FY 2021 base year.

Key Performance Indicators

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021

Scope 1 (TCO2e)' 26,141 41,554 45,376
Scope 2 (TCO2e) 1,61,105 115,407 1,10,140
Scope 3 (TCO2e)* 1,75,069 119,426 1,76,551

*data reported for GPL India only
GHG Emission intensity (Scope 1& 2) - 0.010 TCO2e/KG

'Categories covered under Scope 1

1. Purchased goods and services Purchased Goods & Materials

2. Capital goods Capital Goods & Materials - Projects
3. Fuel and energy related activities Energy Related Emissions

4. Upstream transportation and distribution Domestic and International Inbound
5. Waste generated in operations Waste Generation & Disposal

6. Business travel Air Travel + Rail travel

7. Employee commute Employee Commute

8. Downstream transportation and distribution Domestic and International outbound
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Water Management

We recognize the importance of
responsible water management

in preserving this vital resource
and minimizing our environmental
impact. We are committed to
efficient water usage throughout
our operations, from manufacturing
processes to office spaces. We
implement water conservation
measures, such as installing water-
efficient equipment, optimizing
water consumption in our
production facilities, and promoting
awareness among employees to
encourage responsible water use.
Additionally, we regularly monitor
water usage, conduct assessments
to identify areas for improvement
and implement innovative
technologies to minimize water
consumption. By integrating water
management practises into our
operations, we not only reduce
our environmental impact but

also contribute to the long-term
availability of clean water for
communities and ecosystems.

We remain committed to achieving
water neutrality by 2025. Our water
conservation efforts extend from

process improvements for reduction at source, technology-led for utilities/
domestic to CSR activities for replenishment.

# Under the first criterion, water
conservation techniques for
washing and so on, through
process improvements
(cleaning operations, uniform
washing operations) - batch
size changes, changes in
cleaning frequency, sprinkler
systems for cleaning have been
implemented.

Z Improvements to sites have also
been made, which are beneficial
for our water consumption
reduction efforts as well. We
reuse the purified, used water
in our washing cycle times. We
have also reduced the washing
cycle time to decrease water
consumption intensity at our
Aurangabad site.

# \We reuse and recycle used
water and treated effluents,
respectively. Reject water from
RO treatment plants is primarily
reused in toilet flushing and in
the cooling tower. We have also

started using high-pressure jet
pumps for equipment cleaning
to reduce water consumption.

Under the second criterion, we
have Zero Liquid Discharge
facilities built for treating
effluents at our Aurangabad,
Sikkim, Ankleshwar, Dahej,
Kurkumbh and Mohol sites.
These have helped achieve
100% recycling of treated
effluents leading to a reduction
in freshwater consumption.
Treated effluents are used in
utilities like cooling towers,
boilers, and so on. Other sites
also recycle 100% treated
effluents, which are then used
for toilet flushing and gardening
activities.

We have also implemented
water replenishment initiatives
after identifying water-stressed
areas in the vicinity of our
plants.
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Key Performance Indicators

7,93,465

Water withdrawal by
source (KL)

92,122

Water withdrawal from
water-stressed sites (KL)?

7,68,395

Total Water consumed (KL)

0.0463

Water Intensity (per unit
Production in Kgs)

11,92,996

Water saved in FY 2023
with base year FY 2013 (KL)

2,75,536

Wastewater recycled (KL)

25,070

Water discharge (KL)

8,34,571 793.465 4,77,383
7,74,890 L 4,30,951 |
|
92,122
FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 EFY 21 FY 22 FY 233

We also have rainwater harvesting
and recharging facilities at eight out
of our 14 sites. We have implemented
a rainwater harvesting project at
Achana village in Indore (water stress
site). The project was implemented

in the year 2019 to recharge ground
water at the village through the
repair and reconstruction of the

dam and the development of a

dam overflow management system.
The initiative helped successfully
recharge the groundwater table as
well as supported 200 tube wells and
bore wells in the surrounding areas of
the village.

Our aim is to replenish the water
levels in nearby areas through our
CSR activities. We have already
created 300,000 KL water potential
across 15+ sites in Maharashtra

and Madhya Pradesh through our
CSR initiatives. This also includes
water conservation initiatives in our
manufacturing facilities. Additionally,
we have created 7,84,870 KL water
potential across 12 sites in Gujarat
and Maharashtra through CSR in FY
2023 as part of our drive to be water
neutral by 2025. These projects were
completed by March 2023; with the
realization taking place in FY 2024.

FY 2023

Surface water + rain water 7,426
Ground water 2,82,180
Third-party water* 5,03,859
Sea water (o)
Produced water (o)
Total Water Withdrawn 7,93,465

?Water stressed areas consider as per CGWB (Central Ground Water Board) India water tool
SWater Risk Filter was used for the assessment in FY 2021 and FY 2022; CGWB India water tool was used for the

assessment in FY 2023.
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Rainfall

- Identification Rainfall Rainfall risk
probability of drainage return period -
assessments confluence points calculations

Catchment Definin i
Identification of = Water'holdlng
. runoff catchment capacity
dependable rainfall ) ) ) ] )
estimations boundaries estimation

The estimation of the potential

for water recharge has also Soil conditions Evaporation rates,
been assessed. We engaged an

external assurance provider to Subsurface geological ' ' .
conduct scientific assessments comefifens Rainfall estimations
on the following parameters.

Dependable users of

Infiltration factors
harvested water

Field visits were also conducted to validate the existing structures and the potential for project implementation.
On the basis of these assessments, site-specific structures have been recommended. They include desilting of
ponds, check dams, nala (canal) widening, percolation tanks, contour bunds, and deepening of farm ponds.

0.07
0.0588

oo 0.0508 o057 00517 00531 00532
0.0437 \
0.05 0.046 0.045 (0.0443 \ ( ‘ } ( |
/ \
0.04 ( [ ( | ‘

0.03

0.0463

KL/KG

0.02

0.01

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23

Financial Year
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Waste Management

Responsible waste management across our operations to reduce By prioritizing waste management,
is an integral part of our the environmental impact of we aim to minimize pollution,
commitment to environmental our operations. That includes conserve resources, and contribute
sustainability. We recognize the segregating waste streams and to a healthier and more sustainable
importance of minimizing waste partnering with reliable waste future for our organization and the
generation, promoting recycling management service providers. communities we serve.

and reuse, and ensuring the safe We adhere to relevant regulations

disposal of hazardous materials. and industry guidelines to ensure

We have implemented a robust compliance and promote circular

waste management strategy

economy principles.

Key Performance Indicators

2,557 mT

Total Non-Hazardous
Waste generated and
disposed

L

13,046 MT1| 7.4 MT

Total Hazardous Battery Waste
Waste generated and Generated
disposed

L

7,840 MT

Hazardous waste
co-processed in
FY 2023

L

2,671 M7 | 4 MT

|
Plastic waste collected E-waste generated
& channelized and disposed

25.78 M7

Bio-Medical
Waste generated
and disposed

L

18,329.18 mMT

Waste directed to disposal
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Total Hazardous Waste
Disposed (MT)

13,064
10455 10,619
FY21 FY22 FY23

Hazardous Waste Co-Processed (MT)

FY23

FY22

FY21 j 3,639

6] 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000

Pharmaceutical waste management measures

We also emphasize waste disposal
through co-processing techniques
as they have a dual benefit. The
co-processing methodology

is the use of waste materials
generated as alternative fuels

and raw materials (AFR) to
recover energy and material from
them. Over the years, we have
increased the percentage of co-
processing / pre-processing the

hazardous waste that we generate.
It accounts for 60% of the total
hazardous waste disposed as

of FY 2023. At present, 7 sites
send their hazardous waste for

Co and Preprocessing whereas

4 manufacturing sites and 2

R&D centers have achieved

our objective of ‘Zero Waste to
Landfill’.

Hazardous waste by disposal FY 2023 in MT

Co-processing

7,840

Incineration

585

Landfill

2,171

Recycling

2,468

in MT

Extended Producer
Responsibility

Achieved
100%

of Extended Producer
Responsibility target for
post consumed plastic
packaging.

Hazardous waste disposed by
disposal mechanism (MT)

19%

60%

17%

® Landfill
® Recycling

@® Co-processing
® Incineration
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Climate Change Resilience

Acting on Climate Change

The danger that climate change
poses on business operations

has amplified in recent decades.
Climate change has a severe
impact on human health,
communities, and economic
activities. We operate across

four continents with different
levels of exposure to climate
change-related risks and are aware
of our environmental impact.
Consequently, we engaged a
third-party consultant to conduct
a comprehensive Climate Risk
Assessment (CRA), which is a
forward-looking exercise for
identifying the potential impact

of likely climate change-related
situations on current and future
business activities. The assessment
was conducted through scenario
analysis to identify the physical
and transition risks critical to

our business. This dual-lensed
approach helps clearly outline
cross-functional factors that affect
our business across all operations.

Scenario Analysis

The scenario
selection consisted of
drawing from leading
reference scenarios
promulgated by the
Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) and
International Energy
Agency (IEA). We
carried out the

CRA based on two
IPCC scenarios for
physical risks and
two IEA scenarios for
transition risks.

170

Climate risk assessment process

Selected the
appropriate
climate change
analysis scenario

Appraised the

risks and evaluated
their potential
impact on our
business, including
categorization of
risks as per urgency
to business

Conducted a
thorough analysis
of potential
physical risks for
all our warehouse
and manufacturing
locations globally

Developed
mitigation strategies

Identified
transition risks
pivotal to our
business

Physical Risk

Present day

Time
Horizons

STEPS scenarios

O Representative
Concentration and 2050
Pathway (RCP) 2.6
and RCP 8.5 scenarios

o IEA’s NZE2050 and ‘ Present day

Transition Risk

and 2050
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Climate Risk Identification

e Physical Risks / Opportunities 9 Transitional Risks

Risk- Rise in global temperatures will lead to Growing prevalence of carbon taxes, coupled
lower productivity due to thermal discomfort, with increased demand for low-carbon emitting
heat strokes and even deaths. Increased demand products, and regulations related to waste, water
for air-conditioning will lead to high energy and resource management project an increase
demand at all the sites. in our operational costs and decrease in revenue

from sales due to changing customer preferences.

Risk- Water has become a scarce resource

worldwide. For us at Glenmark, lack of water for Risk of competitors gaining cost advantages
site operations implies a high cost of purchasing during our transition period.

water from other areas and stakeholder conflict

leading to reputational risks.

Other acute risks include cyclonic activities, Disruption in upstream and downstream supply
flooding and extreme weather conditions that chains can also affect our operations by causing
can cause damage to critical infrastructure in the an increase in capital expenditure and reduced
way of harming electrical circuits, transportation production capacity. It can also lead to loss of
of raw materials, packing materials and goods capital and strained stakeholder partnerships
and in the worst case, the employees and labor that can harm the reputation of the Company.

situated in the vicinity.

Opportunity- Increase in temperature will make
more regions suitable for vector borne diseases.
Warmer temperatures could lead to higher
survival rates of ticks or mosquitoes which will
cause an increase in demand for immunology
products in regions like Europe and the U.S. that
earlier experienced much cooler climates.

o Risk Impact and Evaluation

The CRA helped us identify and map out physical climate risks across the locations of our operations.
The overall climate risks for the countries where our warehouses are located were identified.

UK Germany Spain Netherlands Finland Sweden Poland Peru

Extreme Heat

Water scarcity

River flood

Wildfire

Urban Flood

Cyclone

Coastal Flood

Il High Risk I Medium Risk [ Low Risk Not Applicable
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e Climate Change Strategy Glenmark’s Next Steps - Mitigation Measures

By conducting a scenario-based CRA Once we identified these risks to our business after

we were able to develop a climate conducting the climate risk assessment, we have shifted
change strategy with a targeted our focus towards increasing capital investments in low
approach to help our business grow carbon and energy-efficient technologies and equipment,
amid a dynamic operating environment. refining supply chain compliances to ensure transparency,

and encouraging investments in R&D for the development
of low Global Warming Potential products. We are also
working towards diversifying our supply chain to cope with
distribution and availability-based factors that are under the
threat of climate change. We have developed a Glenmark
Supplier Protocol to conduct supplier assessments on ESG
parameters.

The scenario analysis elucidated the
multi-pronged effects of climate change
on our business strategy and financial
planning. In this context, our climate
mitigation strategy is designed to
incorporate short- and long-term action
points so that we are equipped with
accurate response mechanisms.

Long-term strategy planning

We intend to undertake a proactive approach towards creating an agile business model that can
respond to climate change-induced disruptions

Investing in energy-

efficient cooling
infrastructure for operations,
storage and distribution

Captive power plants,
energy-efficient
operation technology

Mitigation
Measures
for Physical
Risks Watershed management
Supply chain mapping for and investing in robust
associated climate risks storm water management

system at sites

Mitigation Measures for Transition Risks

? Carbon Neutral ? Include Renewable ? Investment in S Strategic partnerships

Target Energy in Glenmark’s low-carbon technology to accelerate
ortfolio. for manufacturin decarbonization

? Resource P 9 ‘
Management Plan g Energy efficiency S Supply chain

e ~ initiatives in all assessment
Circular . . . .

operational locations for reputational risks

Economy and
Waste Reduction
Initiatives
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Biodiversity Conservation

Acting on Climate Change

We value biodiversity and
recognize its importance for a
better tomorrow. We promote
biodiversity conservation by
engaging in sustainable land
use practises, supporting
habitat restoration initiatives,
and implementing measures to
protect endangered species.

By integrating biodiversity
considerations into our decision-
making processes, we aim to
preserve ecological balance and
contribute to the conservation
of biodiversity hotspots. We
were able to increase the
number of trees planted this
year by undertaking many
plantation drives at our sites.

Saplings Planted

26,414

F

3,697 3,763

FY 21 FY 22 FY 23

26,414

Number of trees
planted in FY 2023

Future Outlook

Looking ahead, we remain
committed to continually
improving our natural capital
management practises. We
will invest in research and
development to develop
sustainable alternatives,
explore innovative
technologies to further
reduce our carbon and water
footprint, and collaborate
with stakeholders to drive
positive change. By aligning
our operations with the
principles of sustainable
development and responsible
natural capital management,
we aim to create long-term
value for our business,
society, and the environment.
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Our Awards

BW
Businessworld’s India’s

Most Sustainable
\ ’ Companies Top 30 List ‘ ’ \ ’
Ranked 3" in
\ ’ Pharmaceutical and \ ’ \ ’
Healthcare Sector
\’ \

Ranked 15t
Overall

Sustainable
Organization Award by
Economic Times

Apex India
Green Leaf

Ny  Envionmentaward N g

(Nalagarh site)

Winner of

Grow Care India
Apex India Green Leaf l \ Environment Awards ’
\ ‘4 Environment Award ) 4 - Gold category in A )

- Gold category in Pharmaceuticals
\ ’ Pharmaceuticals sector \ l \ ’ sector fpr Outstapding \ ’
(Aurangabad site) Achievement in

" \‘ Environment Management ‘l

(R&D Centre, Mahape)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered Office

B/2, Mahalaxmi Chambers,

22, Bhulabhai Desai Road,
Mumbai - 400026, Maharashtra,
India

Corporate Office

Glenmark House

B.D. Sawant Marg, Chakala,

Off Western Express Highway,
Andheri (East),

Mumbai - 400099, Maharashtra,
India

Tel.: +91 22 40189999

Site: www.glenmarkpharma.com
Email: complianceofficer@
glenmarkpharma.com

CIN No: L24299MH1977PLC019982

Auditors

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

Internal Auditors

Aneja Associates
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

Cost Auditors

Sevekari, Khare and Associates,
Cost Accountants, Mumbai

Solicitor

Trilegal, Mumbai

Registrar and Transfer
Agents

KFin Technologies Limited
Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally
Mandal, Hyderabad - 500032

Banker
Bank of India

Company Secretary

Mr. Harish Kuber

GLENMARK
PHARMACEUTICALS Ltd.

Manufacturing Facilities
Formulations

e E-37-39, MIDC Industrial Area,
D Road, Satpur, Nashik -
422007, Maharashtra

¢ Plot No. S-7 and S-9, Colvale,
Industrial Estate Colvale,
Bardez - 403513, Goa

« Unit - I, Village Kishanpura,
Baddi-Nalagarh Road, The
Baddi, Dist. - Solan, HP - 174101

« Unit - Il, Village Bhattanwala,
PO Rajpura, Teh Nalagarh,
Dist.- Solan, HP - 174101

e Unit - lll, Village Kishanpura,
Baddi - Nalagarh Road, Dist. -
Solan, HP - 174101

« Plot No 2, Phase -Il, Pharma
Zone, Special Economic
Zone Area, Pithampur, Indore
454775, Madhya Pradesh

¢« Plot No. B-25, Five Star MIDC,
Shendra, Dist. - Aurangabad,
Maharashtra

¢ Samlik-Marchak, Industrial
Growth Centre, Near Ranipool,
Dist. - Gangtok, Sikkim 737135

¢ Fibichova 143, 566 17, Vysoke
Myto, Czech Republic

¢ Calle 9 Ing Meyer Oks N
593, Parque Industrial Pilar,
B1629MX Buenos Aires,
Argentina

e 4147 Goldmine Road, Monroe,
NC 28110, U.S.

R&D Centres

¢ Plot No. A 607, Mahape
Industrial Area, MIDC Mahape,
Navi Mumbai - 400709,
Maharashtra

¢ Plot No. C 152, MIDC Malegaon
Industrial Area, Sinnar, Dist.
Nashik - 422113, Maharashtra

¢ Plot No. M4, Taloja Industrial
area, MIDC, Taluka Panvel, Dist.
Raigad - 410208, Maharashtra

Clinical Research Centre

* Plot No. M4, Taloja Industrial
Area, MIDC, Taluka Panvel, Dist.
Raigad - 410208, Maharashtra

ICHNOS SCIENCES Inc.

Global Headquarters

1 World Trade Center, 76th
Floor, Suite D, New York, NY
10007

R&D Centre

¢ Route de La Corniche 5A,
1066 Epalinges, Switzerland

Development and
Manufacturing

¢ Chemin de la Combeta 5,
2300 La Chaux-de-Fonds,
Switzerland

GLENMARK LIFE SCIENCES

Manufacturing Facilities

¢ Plot Number 3102 to 3109,
3103, GIDC Industrial Estate,
Ankleshwar - 393 002, Gujarat.

e Plot Number Z-103/I, SEZ,
Phase Il, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat,
Dahej - 392130

*  Plot Number 141-143, 160-165,
170-172, Chandramouli Sahakari
Audyogik Vasahat, Pune -
Hyderabad Highway, Mohol,
Solapur - 413213.

e Plot Number A80, MIDC Area,
Kurkumbh, Daund, Pune -
413802, Maharashtra

R & D Centre

¢ Plot No. A-607, TTC Industrial
Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi
Mumbai, Dist. Thane - 400 709,
Maharashtra.

¢« Plot No. 3102 to 3109, 3103,
GIDC Industrial Estate,
Ankleshwar - 393002, Guijarat.

e Z-103/1, SEZ, Phase Il, District
Bharuch, Dahej - 392 130,
Gujarat.
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INDEPENDENT NON-FINANCIAL ASSURANCE STATEMENT

DNV
INDEPENDENT ASSURAMNCE STATEMENT

Introduction

DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited has been commissioned by the Management of Glenmark
Pharmaceuticals Limited (Corporate Identity Number L24299MH1977PLC019982, hereafter referred as ‘Glenmark’
or ‘the Company’) to carry out an independent assurance of its non-financial/sustainability performance
(qualitative and quantitative data) disclosed in Glenmark’s Integrated Report 2022-23 (‘the Report’) in its printed
and online formats. The sustainability performance in this Report covers disclosures corresponding to the
reporting period 15t April 2022 - 315t March 2023 and related to material topics identified by Glenmark.

The sustainability disclosures have been prepared by Glenmark based on the Guiding Principles and Content
Elements of the International <IR> Framework (January 2021, the ‘<IR> Framework’) of the International
Integrated Reporting Council (‘IIRC’), the Global Reporting Initiative’s (GRI’s) Sustainability Reporting Standards
(*GRI Standards’) and other frameworks to which Glenmark subscribes, to bring out the various Content Elements
of the <IR> Framework as well as performance trends related to identified material topics.

We performed a limited level of assurance based on DNV'’s assurance methodology VeriSustain™!. In doing so,
we evaluated the quantitative and qualitative sustainability performance disclosures presented in the Report for
the activities undertaken by the Company. Our assurance engagement was planned and carried out during May
2023 - August 2023.

The reporting topic boundaries of non-financial performance are based on the internal and external materiality
assessment covering Glenmark’s pharmaceutical operations as set out in the Report in the section “About this
Report”.

Responsibilities of the Management of Glenmark and of the Assurance Provider

The Management of the Company has the sole responsibility for preparation of the Report as well as the processes
for collecting, analysing and reporting the information presented in the Report. The Management is also
responsible for ensuring the maintenance and integrity of its referenced disclosures on sustainability performance
and management approach in the Company’s website. In performing this assurance work, DNV'’s responsibility is
to the Management of Glenmark; however, this statement represents our independent opinion and is intended to
inform the outcome of the assurance to the stakeholders of the Company.

DNV’s assurance engagements are based on the assumption that the data and information provided by Glenmark
to us as part of our review have been provided in good faith and are free from material misstatements or errors.
We were not involved in the preparation of any statements or data included in the Report except for this Assurance
Statement.

During the assurance process, we did not come across any limitations to the scope and boundary of the agreed
assurance engagement. We understand that the reported disclosures on economic performance, including
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses incurred by the Company, and contributions to the Glenmark
Foundation and Glenmark Aquatic Foundation are based on audited financial statements presented in the Annual
Report and audited financial statements, which is subject to a separate independent statutory audit process and
was not included in our scope of work. As part of our assurance process, we did not engage with any external
stakeholders.

Basis of our Opinion
We planned and performed our work to obtain the evidence considered necessary to provide a basis for our

assurance opinion, and as part of the assurance engagement, a multi-disciplinary team of sustainability and
assurance specialists conducted assessments and interactions with key internal stakeholders at Glenmark’s
Corporate Office in Mumbai, India and sample operations based on DNV’s sampling plan. We adopted a risk-based
approach, that is, we concentrated our verification efforts on the issues of high material relevance to Glenmark
and its key stakeholders. We undertook the following activities:

1The VeriSustain protocol is based on the principles of various assurance standards including International Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (ISAE 3000) Revised (Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information) and the GRI Principles for
Defining Report Content and Quality, international best practices in verification and our professional experience; and is available on request
from www.dnv.com

Project Number: PRIN-584977-2023-AST-IND Page 1 of 4
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DNV

¢ Reviewed Glenmark’s approach towards addressing the Guiding Principles and Content Elements of the
<IR> Framework, including stakeholder engagement and materiality determination processes;

e Carried out virtual verification of sample operations of Formulations sites in India ie. Manufacturing units
located at Nalagarh (Himachal Pradesh), Indore (Madhya Pradesh) Goa and Onsite verification of
operations of API site in India i.e. Manufacturing unit at Ankleshwar (Gujarat) to review the processes
and systems for preparing site level sustainability data and implementation of sustainability strategy.
DNV was free to choose sites for conducting assessments;

e Conducted interviews with senior management teams and other representatives including data owners
and decision-makers responsible for implementation of the Company’s policies and management of
sustainability issues as disclosed within the Report. We were free to choose interviewees and interviewed
those with overall responsibility to deliver Glenmark’s sustainability objectives;

e Assessed the robustness of the data management systems, data accuracy, information flow and controls
for the reported disclosures and specific performance data related to identified material topics, as well as
the processes for data consolidation in context to the principle of Completeness as per DNV’s VeriSustain;

e Examined and reviewed selected supporting evidence including documents, data and other information
made available by Glenmark related to sustainability disclosures presented within the Report;

e Performed an independent assessment of Glenmark’s reporting against the reporting requirements
related to the Content Elements of the <IR> Framework and the value creation disclosures related to the
capitals identified by Glenmark.

Opinion and Observations
On the basis of the verification undertaken, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Report does not properly describe Glenmark’s adherence to the Guiding Principles and Content Elements of the
<IR> Framework including representation of the material topics, business model, disclosures on value creation
through six (6) capitals, related strategies and management approach, and GRI Standards: Core option of
reporting including the GRI 2: General Disclosures 2021, GRI 3: Management Approach 2021 and disclosures
related to the following GRI topic-specific Standards which have been identified by the Company to bring out its
performance against its prioritised material topics.

e GRI 201: Economic Performance 2016- 201-1; 201-2; 201-3

e GRI 204: Procurement Practices 2016- 204-1;

e GRI 205: Anti-Corruption 2016- 205-1, 205-2

e GRI 206: Anti-competitive behavior 2016 - 206-1

e GRI 207: Tax - 207-1, 207-2, 207-3

e GRI 302: Energy 2016 - 302-1, 302-3, 302-4; 304-5

e GRI 303: Water and Effluents 2018 - 303-1, 303-2, 303-3, 303-4, 303-5;

e GRI 304: Biodiversity - 304-3

e GRI 305: Emissions 2016 - 305-1, 305-2, 305-3, 305-4, 305-5

e GRI 306: Waste 2020 - 306-1; 306-2; 306-3; 306-4; 306-5;

e GRI 308: Supplier Environmental Assessment 2016- 308-1; 308-2;

e GRI401: Employment 2016- 401-1, 401-3 ;

e GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety 2018- 403-1, 403-2, 403-3, 403-4, 403-5, 403-6, 403-7; 403-8 ; 403-

9 ; 403-10

e GRI 404: Training and Education 2016 - 404-1, 404-2; 404-3

e GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016 - 405-1, 405-2;

e GRI 406: Non discrimination 2016- 406-1;

e GRI 407: Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining 2016- 407-1;

e GRI 408 : Child Labor 2016 - 408-1

e GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory Labor 2016- 409-1;

e GRI411: Rights of Indigeneous People 2016- 411-1;

e GRI 413: Local Communities 2016- 413-1;413-2

e GRI 414: Supplier Social Assessment 2016- 414-1, 414-2;

e GRI 416: Customer Health and Safety 2016- 416-1, 416-2;

e GRI 417 : Marketing and Labelling 2016 - 417-1, 417-2

e GRI 418 : Customer Privacy 2016 - 418-1

Note: Scope 3 emissions reported as part of GRI 305-3 include emissions due to purchased goods and services, employee

commute, business travel, Upstream transportation and distribution, Downstream transportation and distribution and Waste
generated in operations.

Project Number: PRIN-584977-2023-AST-IND Page 2 of 4

177

| Corporate Overview

| Financial Statements | Statutory Reports



Independent Non-Financial Assurance Statement Glenmark Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

DNV

Without affecting our assurance opinion, we provide the following observations against the principles of
VeriSustain:

Stakeholder Inclusiveness

The participation of stakeholders in developing and achieving an accountable and strategic response to
Sustainability.

The Report brings out the formal and informal mechanisms through which Glenmark’s engages with the internal

and external stakeholder groups it has identified across its business lifecycle, that is, employees, investors,
patients, contractors, suppliers and service providers, local communities, government bodies and regulatory
bodies and non-governmental agencies. The modes and frequencies of engagement with these stakeholder
groups as well as key topics that have come out from these channels are explained within the Report.

Nothing has come to our attention to suggest that the Report does not meet the requirements related
to the Principle of Stakeholder Inclusiveness.

Materiality

The process of determining the issues that is most relevant to an organization and its stakeholders.

The Report describes the materiality assessment carried out by Glenmark covering its key business segments
aimed at identifying significant environmental, social and governance topics which are important to its
stakeholders and relevant to the Company’s long-term value creation. The identified material topics and matters
are prioritized based on impacts and relative importance, to form the overall report content. Glenmark confirms
that material topics considered for disclosures within the Report were reviewed and validated by the Board and
senior management personnel, and that there are no significant changes in material topics from the previous
reporting period.

In our opinion, nothing has come to our attention that Glenmark has missed out any known material
issues, nor that the Report does not meet the requirements related to the Principle of Materiality.

Responsiveness

The extent to which an organization responds to stakeholder issues.

The Company has responded to key material topics through descriptions of its value creation process including
evaluation of its business strategies through descriptions of the Company’s policies, management approach,
targets, performance indicators and governance mechanisms related to identified material topics such as key
outcomes.

Nothing has come to our attention to suggest that the Report does not meet the requirements related
to the Principle of Responsiveness.

Reliability

The accuracy and comparability of information presented in the report, as well as the quality of underlying data
management systems.

The Report brings out Glenmark'’s sustainability performance related to its identified material topics using selected
GRI topic-specific Standards. The sustainability performance data is captured on a monthly basis from across its
businesses through its data management system, and subjected to internal audits. The majority of the data and
information verified through our assessments at sampled manufacturing units and aggregated at the corporate
level were found to be fairly accurate and reliable. Some of the data inaccuracies identified during the verification
process were found to be attributable to transcription, interpretation and aggregation errors and these errors
have been identified, communicated and corrected.

Nothing has come to our attention to suggest that the Report does not meet the requirements related
to the Principle of Reliability.

Completeness

How much of all the information that has been identified as material to the organisation and its stakeholders is
reported

The Report articulates disclosures related to the Company’s sustainability performance for the identified material
topics and reporting boundaries during the reporting period through appropriate GRI topic-specific Standards and
Company-specific metrics, and the key requirements of the <IR> Framework related to Content and Quality,
including value creation through six (6) capitals, business model, strategy, management approach and
descriptions of monitoring systems.
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Nothing has come to our attention to suggest that the Report does not meet the Principle of
Completeness with respect to scope, boundary and time.

Neutrality

The extent to which a report provides a balanced account of an organization’s performance, delivered in a neutral
tone

The Report has disclosed the key sustainability issues, challenges and performance faced by Glenmark during the
reporting period in a neutral tone, in terms of content and presentation, and had also considered the overall
sustainability context and external environment in bringing out its value creation disclosures across six (6)
capitals.

Nothing has come to our attention to suggest that the Report does not meet the requirements related
to the Principle of Neutrality.

Statement of Competence and Independence

DNV applies its own management standards and compliance policies for quality control, in accordance with ISO
IEC 17021:2015 - Conformity Assessment Requirements for bodies providing audit and certification of
management systems, and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including
documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

We have complied with the DNV Code of Conduct? during the assurance engagement and maintain independence
where required by relevant ethical requirements. This engagement work was carried out by an independent team
of sustainability assurance professionals. DNV was not involved in the preparation of any statements or data
included in the Report except for this Assurance Statement and GHG verification statement. DNV maintains
complete impartiality toward stakeholders interviewed during the assurance process.

For DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited

Digitally signed : Digitally signed
Lankalapa by Lankalapalli, Karthik by Karthik

”I, Bhargav Ramaswa Ramaswamy

Date: 2023.08.25 Date: 2023.08.25
Bha rgav  16:37:17 +05'30' my 16:56:02 +05'30'
Bhargav Lankalapalli Karthik Ramaswamy
Lead Verifier Assurance Reviewer

DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited, India. | DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited, India.

25t August 2023, Mumbai, India.

DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited is part of DNV - Business Assurance, a global provider of certification, verification,
assessment and training services, helping customers to build sustainable business performance. www.dnv.com

2 The DNV Code of Conduct is available on request from www.dnv.com
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Annual Report 2023 Management Discussion & Analysis

Macroeconomic Outlook

The global economic outlook remains highly uncertain due to the cumulative effects of the two major shocks in
the last three years - the COVID-19 pandemic and the war in Ukraine. Early in 2023, there were signs of recovery
that the world economy could finally stabilize, but sticky inflation and recent volatility in the global financial sector
have dampened some of these prospects. Stubborn inflationary trends in the economy and the conseguent rise in
interest rates by Central Banks across the world have prolonged the overall global economic recovery.

However, it is anticipated that the global economy will gradually overcome these challenges as the year goes
by. Strong growth in emerging markets and developing economies, the unwinding of supply chain disruptions,
as well as the normalization of food and energy prices, will facilitate this resurgence. According to the latest
forecasts, global growth is projected to be 2.8% in 2023 and 3.0% in 2024. Global inflation is expected to reach
approximately 7.0% in 2023 and around 5.0% in 2024.

WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK APRIL 2023
GROWTH PROJECTIONS BY REGION
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Source: IMF, World Economic Outlook: April 2023

Note: Order of bars for each group indicates (left to right) 2022 2023 projections, and 2024 projections

Indian Economy

Notwithstanding the prevailing macroeconomic
headwinds, many market analysts continue to have
confidence in India’s growth prospects. Recently
published data suggests that the Indian economy has
outperformed global markets amid various uncertainties.

The Government of India has provided a strong impetus
to enhance public and private capital investments
across sectors. Additionally, the growing upper
middle-income population is expected to drive high
consumption and play a crucial role in fueling Indian
economic growth over the next five years. Inflation may
peak as the global economy moderates and crude oil
prices as well as raw material prices stabilize next year.
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) expects India to
grow by 5.9% in FY 2024 and by an average rate of 6.1%
over the next five years.

Source: International Monetary Fund, World economic outlook—A
rocky recovery, April 2023; Deloitte, India Economic Outlook,
April 2023

Global Pharmaceutical Sector

As the world learns to cope with the lingering effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the forecast for global
expenditure on medicines has evolved in the post-
pandemic era. Predictable challenges emerge as
policymakers across the globe shift their focus to
longer-term healthcare issues. Global spending on
medicine continues to be driven by innovation and
offset by the loss of exclusivity, leading to the launch of
lower-cost generics and biosimilars.

From 2020 to 2027, it is anticipated that global spending
on medicines will total US$ 497 Bn, exceeding pre-
pandemic levels. This is largely due to the increased
investment on COVID-19 vaccines and novel therapeutics,
as well as the impact on other therapeutic areas. Global
market growth will return to pre-pandemic projected
rates by 2024, despite year-to-year fluctuations and
regional variations. The global medicine market, using
invoice price levels, is expected to grow at a 3-6% CAGR
through 2027, reaching a total market value of US$ 1.9 Tn.
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Exhibit 1: Changes in the historical and projected global medicine spending model due to
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Source: IQVIA Market Prognosis, Sep 2022; IQVIA Institute, Nov 2022.

With established markets expanding more slowly and emerging markets in Eastern Europe, Asia, and Latin America
growing in both volume and spending, expenditure and volume growth will follow different trajectories across
regions. The near-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on medicine spending has been the notable short-term
disruptions in 2020. Short-term disruptions in 2020, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, was followed by a rebound
in 2021 and an expected return to pre-pandemic growth rates is expected by 2024. Considering predictions of
higher expenditure growth from COVID-19 vaccines and lower spending growth from existing treatments due
to disruptions from the pandemic, the five-year CAGR to 2027 is expected to be 4.6%, compared to 4.5% if the
pandemic had not occurred.

Exhibit 2: Comparison of current outlook to pre-COVID-19 outlook Constant dollar growth forecast (invoice)
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2020: Growth-2.0% slower than pre-
pandemic projection [~$268)

2021:+3.4% above pre-COVID-19
growth; +5,1% above 2020 growth
excluding vaccine and therapeutics

2021: 10.6% higher growth including
vaccines and therapeutics compared
to spending without them

2022: Significant decline in required
spending for COVID-19 vaccines as
much of the world is Inoculated to
some degree

Expected budget pressures will
emerge from longer-term pressures
of sustained pandemic



Annual Report 2023 Management Discussion & Analysis

Several regions across the globe are witnessing diverging growth trends, with some being more volume-driven
and others having a greater contribution by leveraging innovation. Countries in Latin America, Asia-Pacific, Africa
and the Middle East are expected to record volume growth of more than 10% by 2027. Additionally, their spending
growth is anticipated to increase by over 30%, indicating both population-driven volume growth and a shift towards
expensive products. On the other hand, North America and Western Europe are expected to have minimal volume
growth or remain flat over the next five years, while spending is predicted to increase by over 20%, excluding the
impact of off-invoice discounts and rebates.

Exhibit 15: Spending and volume growth by region
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Source: IQVIA Market Prognosis, Sep 2022: 1QVIA Institute, Nov 2022.

As per IQVIA Market Prognosis, the therapy areas with the highest forecast spending in 2027 are oncology,
immunology and anti-diabetics, followed by cardiovascular. Oncology is expected to grow at a 13-16% CAGR till
2027 as novel treatments continue to be launched for the treatment of cancer. Immunology is expected to grow
slowly at a rate of 3-6% due to the launch of biosimilars. While several biosimilars have already been launched in
Europe, leading to slow growth in the immunology segment, the launch of an adalimumab biosimilar in 2023 in the
U.S. is further expected to impact growth. With nearly US$ 168 Bn by 2027, diabetes is expected to be the third
largest therapy area globally, with growth estimated to be 3-6% over the next five years.

Exhibit 34: Top 20 therapy areas in 2027 in terms of global spending with forecast 5-year CAGRS, const US$

2027 spending 5-Year CAGR 2023-2027 const US$
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Source: IQVIA Forecast Link, IQVIA Institute, Nov 2022,
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As per IQVIA forecasts, the types of medicines driving expenditure and growth vary considerably across countries
and are broadly correlated with a degree of economic development. Generally, wealthier countries have higher
levels of spending on original branded products, especially earlier in the patented periods of these products. Lower-
income countries have a greater reliance on generic drugs and sometimes prefer non-original branded versions
called branded generics. Developed countries typically have higher shares of original branded products but vary
in the degree to which they shift usage to generics or non-original products after patent expiry, contributing to
differences in spending share for originators, including those that are off-patent.

Exhibit 30: Global medicine spending and growth by product type
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